PENSIONS BOARD
Date:

Thursday 12 August 2021

Time:

6.30 pm

Venue:

Committee Room (B6) - Lambeth Town Hall, Brixton, London, SW2 1RW*

*In line with legislation and continuing Covid-19 precautions, committee members will attend the meeting
in person at Lambeth Town Hall, with members of the public and press, visiting members and officers
invited to attend virtually. Instructions overleaf.
Copies of agendas, reports, minutes and other attachments for the Council’s meetings are available on
the Lambeth website. www.lambeth.gov.uk/moderngov

Members of the Committee
Councillor Scott Ainslie, Councillor Linda Bray (Chair) and Councillor Ibrahim Dogus

Co-optees
Ann Biddle, Ian Fall and Glenis Williamson

Substitute Members
Councillor Kevin Craig

Further Information
If you require any further information or have any queries please contact:
Marianna Ritchie, Telephone: 020 7926 8640; Email: mritchie@lambeth.gov.uk

Published on: Wednesday 28 July 2021

Queries on reports
Please contact report authors prior to the meeting if you have questions on the reports or wish to inspect
the background documents used. The contact details of the report author are shown on the front page of
each report.

@LBLdemocracy on Twitter http://twitter.com/LBLdemocracy or use #Lambeth
Lambeth Council – Democracy Live on Facebook http://www.facebook.com/

How to access the meeting
In line with legislation, Committee members will attend the meeting in person at Lambeth Town Hall.
Reflecting current government guidance to help prevent the spread of Covid-19, members of the public,
visiting Members and officers are invited to attend virtually. If you wish to attend the meeting in person,
public access can be made available for limited numbers, but please contact Democratic Services
(details on the front sheet of the agenda or Democracy@lambeth.gov.uk) before the meeting so that
arrangements can be made.

For Members of the Public
If you want to watch the live broadcast, this meeting is available to view as a Microsoft Teams Live
Event. If you are new to Microsoft Teams, clicking here will take you to the meeting page where you will
be prompted to download the app or watch on the web instead. Please follow the instructions to watch
on the web. On doing so, you can join our live event anonymously.
Members of the public wishing to make representations at this meeting must inform Democratic Services
(see front page for contact details) by 12pm on Wednesday 11 August 2021.

For Members of the Committee
In line with legislation, committee members will attend the meeting in person at Lambeth Town Hall.

For elected Members of the Council
Councillors who are not members of the Committee but wish to attend the meeting must inform
Democratic Services by 12pm on Wednesday 11 August 2021. Upon doing so they will be invited to
attend the meeting virtually.

Digital engagement
We encourage people to use Social Media and we normally tweet from most Council meetings. To get
involved you can tweet us @LBLDemocracy.

Audio/Visual Recording of meetings
Everyone is welcome to record meetings of the Council and its Committees using whatever, nondisruptive, methods you think are suitable. If you have any questions about this please contact
Democratic Services (members of the press please contact the Press Office).
Please note that the Chair of the meeting has the discretion to halt any recording for a number of
reasons including disruption caused by the filming or the nature of the business being conducted.
Persons making recordings are requested not to put undue restrictions on the material produced so that
it can be reused and edited by all local people and organisations on a non-commercial basis.

Representation
Ward Councillors may be contacted directly to represent your views to the Council: (details via the
website www.lambeth.gov.uk)

Security
Please be aware that you may be subject to bag searches and asked to sign in at meetings that are held
in public. Failure to comply with these requirements could mean you are denied access to the meeting.
There is also limited seating which is allocated on a first come first serve basis, and you should aim to
arrive at least 15 minutes before the meeting commences. For more details please visit: our website.
Please contact Democratic Services for further information – 020 7926 2170 or the number on the front
page.

Directions to Lambeth Town Hall, London, SW2 1RW
Lambeth Town Hall is located at the southern end of Brixton Road and is a highly visible landmark. It can
be accessed via a number of bus routes and is a short walk from both Brixton Station and Brixton
Underground Station.

AGENDA

PLEASE NOTE THAT THE ORDER OF THE AGENDA MAY BE CHANGED AT THE MEETING

Page
Nos.
1

Declarations of Pecuniary Interest
Under Standing Order 4.4, where any councillor has a Disclosable
Pecuniary Interest (as defined in the Members’ Code of Conduct (para.
4)) in any matter to be considered at a meeting of the Council, a
committee, sub-committee or joint committee, they must withdraw from
the meeting room during the whole of the consideration of that matter
and must not participate in any vote on that matter unless a
dispensation has been obtained from the Monitoring Officer.

2

Minutes of the Previous Meeting

1-6

To approve and sign the minutes of the meeting held on 14 April 2021
as a correct record of the proceedings.

3

Work Programme
Marianna Ritchie, Democratic Services, 020 7926 8640,

7-8

mritchie@lambeth.gov.uk

4

Pension Administration Performance Report - April to June
2021
Linda D’Souza, Head of Payroll and Pensions, 07854 752186,

9 - 54

ldsouza@lambeth.gov.uk

5

Lambeth Pension Fund - Funding Issues Update
Robert Browning, Head of Treasury and Pensions, 07394
402801, rbrowning@lambeth.gov.uk

55 - 68

6

Pension Fund Risk Register
Linda D’Souza, Head of Payroll and Pensions – 07854 752186,
ldsouza@lambeth.gov.uk : Robert Browning, Head of Treasury and
Pensions – 07394 402801, rbrowning@lambeth.gov.uk.

69 - 78

7

Business Plan 2021/22
Robert Browning, Head of Treasury and Pensions, 07394
402801, rbrowning@lambeth.gov.uk

79 - 92

8

Draft Annual Report and Accounts
Robert Browning, Head of Treasury and Pensions, 07394
402801, rbrowning@lambeth.gov.uk

93 - 168

9

Investment Performance Report - Q1 2021
Robert Browning, Head of Treasury and Pensions, 07394
402801, rbrowning@lambeth.gov.uk

169 - 186

10

Investment Performance (Manager) Report - Q1 2021
Robert Browning, Head of Treasury and Pensions, 07394
402801, rbrowning@lambeth.gov.uk

187 - 224

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 1

Agenda Item 2

PENSIONS BOARD MINUTES
Wednesday 14 April 2021 at 6.30 pm

Present:

Councillor Scott Ainslie, Councillor Linda Bray (Chair) and Councillor
Ibrahim Dogus

Apologies:
Also Present:

1

Anne Biddle and Ian Fall

Declarations of Pecuniary Interest
There were no declarations of pecuniary interest.

2

Minutes of the Previous Meeting
The name of Item 4 on the agenda was changed to Lambeth Pension Administration –
Performance report.
The minutes of the meeting held on 13 January 2021 were approved with the above changes.

3

Work Programme
Officers explained that the next municipal year’s work programme was under construction. In
response to questions officers stated that an update on the TCFD Strategy would be included in
the work programme.

4

Lambeth Pension Administration - Performance report for the period January
2021 to March 2021
Officers highlighted areas of the report, namely:






That they were preparing and issuing letters to pensioners specifying the pensions
increase order for 2021 which was 0.5%;
That the recommendations made by the Pensions Board to the Pensions Committee had
been discussed at the Pensions Committee meeting, and the risk rating for ESG had
moved from a 1 to a 4, and that adding climate change as a specific risk would come into
play when the TCFD framework was updated;
That the GMP reconciliation exercise was almost complete, and that rectifications should
begin in May 2021; and,
That HMT published Directions Orders on 12 February which disapplied the exit cap

Page 2
regulations effective from 12 February 2021 and as there had been no scheme members
in the Lambeth Pension Fund affected by the exit cap regulations, no rectification was
necessary.
RESOLVED:
1. To note the Pension Administration Service Performance update covering the period January
2021 to March 2021.

5

Lambeth Pension Fund - Risk Register
There was a discussion about how to improve the functioning of the relationship between the
Pensions Board and the Pensions Committee, and it was agreed that the Pensions Team and
Democratic Services would liaise with the Board and Committee Chairs to arrange this.
It was also agreed that all questions and communication should go through the Pensions Team,
including requests for specific investments from external bodies.
Officers explained that the risk rating for ESG risk was not higher than 4 given that ESG factors
are considered at all stages of the investment strategy, are regularly monitored, and will be of
increasing focus with upcoming regulatory changes around ESG reporting. In addition, the
Fund’s current indirect exposure to fossil fuel investments was small in relation to the entire
value of the Pension Fund.
RESOLVED:
1. To note and review the Lambeth Pension Fund Risk Register and the additional actions
proposed to mitigate risk.
2. To recommend any possible amendments to the Pensions Committee.

6

Lambeth Pension Fund - Investment Performance Review
In response to questions about investing in either the Renewable Infrastruture or London Fund
with the LCIV officers explained that discussions are still ongoing with LCIV and that the London
fund in particular encompassed two or three different asset classes, and that it may include
making some changes to the investment strategy.
RESOLVED:
1. That the report, together with the information in the accompanying performance report, be
noted.

7

Lambeth Pension Fund - Investment Manager's Summary
RESOLVED:
That under section 100A-H of the Local Government Act 1972, the press and public be excluded
from the remainder of the meeting on the grounds that, for the item of business summarised
below, it was likely that exempt information, as defined by Section 1001 and Schedule 12a of
the Local Government Act 1972 and as specified by reference to the appropriate paragraph

Page 3
thereof, would be disclosed to them:
3. Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person including the
authority holding that information.

The meeting ended at 7.43 pm
CHAIR
PENSIONS BOARD
Thursday 29 July 2021
Date of Despatch: Thursday 22 April 2021
Contact for Enquiries: Marianna Ritchie
Tel: 020 7926 8640
E-mail: mritchie@lambeth.gov.uk
Web: www.lambeth.gov.uk

Page 4

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 5
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

This page is intentionally left blank

Pension Board Work Programme 2021-22

Lead Officer/ Author
Democratic Services
Linda D’Souza
Linda D’Souza/Robert Browning
Linda D’Souza/Robert Browning
Robert Browning / Linda D’Souza
Robert Browning
Robert Browning
Robert Browning

Linda D’Souza/Robert Browning
Linda D’Souza/Robert Browning
Robert Browning
Robert Browning
Robert Browning
Robert Browning

Part II

21 October 2021
Start time 18:30
Report Title
Work Programme
Pension Administration Performance Report – July to September
2021
Pension Fund Risk Register
Training Policy and Programme
Climate Change Strategy
Stewardship Code Report
Investment Performance Report – Q2 2021
Investment Performance (Manager) Report – Q2 2021

Comments

Part II

Agenda Item 3

Linda D’Souza

Work Programme
Pension Administration Performance Report – April to June 2021
Lambeth Pension Fund – Funding Issues Update
Pension Fund Risk Register
Business Plan 2021/22
Draft Annual Report and Accounts
Investment Performance Report – Q1 2021
Investment Performance (Manager) Report – Q1 2021

Comments

Page 7

Lead Officer/ Author
Democratic Services

12 August 2021
Start time 18:30
Report Title

Pension Board Work Programme 2021-22

Lead Officer/ Author
Democratic Services
Linda D’Souza
Linda D’Souza/Robert Browning
Linda D’Souza/Robert Browning
Robert Browning
Robert Browning

Linda D’Souza
Linda D’Souza/Robert Browning
Robert Browning
Robert Browning
Robert Browning

Work Programme
Pension Administration Performance Report – October to December
2021
Pension Fund Risk Register
Governance and Funding Update
Investment Performance Report – Q3 2021
Investment Performance (Manager) Report – Q3 2021

Comments

Part II

Page 8

Lead Officer/ Author
Democratic Services

26 January 2022
Start time 18:30
Report Title

TBC
Start time 18:30
Report Title
Work Programme
Lambeth Pension Administration Performance Report – January to
March 2022
Pension Fund Risk Register
Closing and Audit Plan – 2021/22
Investment Performance Report – Q4 2021
Investment Performance (Manager) Report – Q4 2021

Comments

Part II

Page 9

Agenda Item 4

PENSIONS BOARD 12 AUGUST 2021
Report title: Lambeth Pension Administration – Performance report for the period April 2021 to
June 2021
Wards: All
Portfolio: Cabinet Member for Finance and Performance, Councillor Andrew Wilson
Report Authorised by: Fiona McDermott, Strategic Director Finance & Investment
Contact for enquiries: Linda D’Souza, Head of Payroll and Pensions, 07854 752186,
ldsouza@lambeth.gov.uk

Report summary
This is a performance report for the Pensions Board as part of their remit to oversee the
administration of the Lambeth Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS). The report includes
the agreed performance indicators, administrative updates, developments and projects.

Finance summary
There are no financial implications arising from the recommendations in this report.

Recommendations
1.

To note the Pension Administration Service Performance update covering the April 2021 to
June 2021.

1

Page 10
1.
Context
1.1 The Pensions Board is required to review and provide feedback on the performance of the
pensions administration service. This report provides information on the performance of
Lambeth Pensions in relation to all its members (active, deferred or pensioner members).
Membership data
1.2 The table below sets out the key changes in the membership since the last report:

Membership type
Active
Deferred pensioner
Pensioner
Widow/dependant

Totals at 31.03.21
5,016
8,456
6,300
1,146

Totals at 30.06.21
5,002
8,463
6,332
1,150

Key performance indicators
1.3 Lambeth Pensions measures the work processed using standard key performance
indicators. The total number of pensions cases completed on the Altair system in the
period April to June 2021 was 1,135. Cases are normally set to be completed within five or
ten working days depending on the nature of the case. Statistics on key performance
indicators can be found in Appendix One.
Communications
1.4 Pensioner Newsletter: The Annual pensioner newsletter was issued to pensioner
members in April 2021 advising them of the annual pension uplift of 0.5% effective from 12
April 2021.
1.5 Pensions Committee Pensioner Member Representative
Due to the resignation of the Pension Committee Pensioner Representative, an election
process took place within this quarter. There were three candidates who nominated
themselves for election and the deadline for ballots is 8 July 2021. As at 30 June 2021 the
number of ballots received was 1,642 (22% of eligible pensioner members).
On-line Activity
1.6 Member Self Service: Member Self-Service (MSS) is an on-line platform to enable
pension scheme members to access details about their LGPS pension rights. There are
currently 3,001 registered users. The team encourages all pension scheme members to
use MSS and links to the site are given in emails and other communications. Statistics on
usage are shown in Appendix One.
1.7 Lambeth Pension Fund Website: There is also a Lambeth Pension Fund website which
houses general information about the LGPS in addition to specific information pertaining to
the London Borough of Lambeth Pension Fund, for example:

Information about the running of the Lambeth Pension Fund (e.g. who the Pensions
Board and Pension Committee members are)

scheme guides and forms
2

Page 11





valuation reports
member newsletters
various pension fund policies (e.g. Communications Policy) and
annual reports.

1.8 The website is due to be refreshed on 9 July 2021 to make further improvements from an
administrator and user perspective.
Complaints and compliments
1.9 Lambeth Pensions received two complaints in this period. Details are shown in Appendix
One.
Internal Dispute Resolution Procedure
1.10 There was no stage one appeals this quarter.
Risk register
1.11 The risk register was updated this quarter. Details are provided in a separate report.
Lambeth Pension Fund Discretions
1.12 There were no Scheme member mandatory policy discretions exercised under the
Lambeth Pension Fund’s Discretionary Policy in this period.
Actuary and Advisor Contracts
1.13 The actuarial, benefit and governance consultancy contract procured through the National
LGPS Frameworks in 2017 and awarded to Hymans Robertson expired on 31 May 2021.
Officers exercised an extension option in the contract and, following Cabinet Member and
legal approval, have extended the contract with Hymans for a further three years, to expire
on 31 May 2024.
1.14 The existing contract with Mercer for investment advisory services has been running on a
rolling basis for several years. In line with best practice, and the requirements of the 2019
Competitions and Market Authority Order on Investment Consultancy and Fiduciary
Management, officers will look to undertake a competitive procurement for this contract
later in the year. It is expected that the National LGPS Frameworks will be used to carry
out the procurement, and the intention is to have the new contract ready to start from 1
April 2022, but further updates will be brought to Committee as plans develop.
Pensions Board Training
1.15 A selection of external conferences, workshops and other training opportunities has been
shared with members shown in Appendix Two. Should members find any of the sessions
of interest or have identified other training they would like to attend, please inform the
Pensions Team so that member training records can be updated.
1.16 These sessions form part of the main training offer to members; other sessions arranged
by fund managers or advisors will be held throughout the year and outside of formal
meetings. It is vital that members continue to develop and maintain their knowledge of the
overall sector, in particular the LGPS, to fulfill Fund obligations under MiFID II regulations
3

Page 12
as a professional client (it is within the discretion of fund managers and other providers to
withdraw their services to the Fund if they deem us non-compliant with the regulations).
1.17 An updated formal training plan and policy will be brought to the next Board meeting, but
sessions already planned to be delivered before then include a joint session between
Mercer and Insight on Liability Driven Investment (LDI), and climate change/net zero
training to be delivered by a Mercer specialist.

Ongoing developments
1.18 Written Ministerial Statement on McCloud: On 13 May 2021, Luke Hall, Minister for
Regional Growth and Local Government, made a Written Ministerial Statement on
McCloud and the LGPS. The statement confirms the key changes that the Government will
make to the LGPS regulations to remove the unlawful age discrimination.
1.19 The statement confirms that;

the age requirement for underpin protection will be removed

a member will not need to leave with an immediate entitlement to benefits to qualify
for underpin protection

the remedy period will end on 31 March 2022

the underpin calculation will be based on final pay at the underpin date, even when
this is after 31 March 2022

there will be two stages to the underpin calculation:
a) the first on the underpin date – the date of leaving or on the normal pension age
in the 2008 Scheme, if earlier
b) the second when the benefits are paid

the regulations will be retrospective to 1 April 2014.
1.20 It is anticipated that MHCLG will issue a full response to the consultation and to publish
draft regulations later this year. The Government’s intention is that regulations will come
into force on 1st April 2023.
1.21 Guaranteed Minimum Pension (GMP) Reconciliation and Rectification Update: The
GMP reconciliation project is now closed and the rectification process is underway. Live
processing is imminent and it is anticipated that corrected pensions will be paid from
August/September 2021.
1.22 Exit Pay Reform: In advance of plans by MHCLG to introduce changes to exit payments
following its consultation on reforming local government exit pay, MHCLG wrote to
councils requesting the provision of data on all redundancy payments, pension strain
payments and other special payments made in consequence of an exit from 2019/20 to
2020/21 by the 14 June and for previous years from 2014/15 to 2018/19 to the end of June
2021. It is anticipated that a similar request will be made for subsequent years. Lambeth
Council provided the requested data on 10 June 2021 and 24 June 2021 respectively.

4

Page 13
1.23 The data will be used to inform delivery of the Government’s policy to end excessively high
exit payments in the public sector.
1.24 Following the above on 2 July 2021 MHCLG published first estimates data on local
authority exit payments in England which covers payments made in 2019-20 and 2020-21.
This is the first summary of the exit payment data submitted by councils and will be
followed by a further publication in the coming weeks. The initial data shows that the
average exit payment made in 2020-21 across English local authorities was £26,000.
1.25 MHCLG Consultation on Special Severance Payments: Also, on 2 July 2021 MHCLG
published a consultation on New Best Value Statutory Guidance covering special
severance payments for local authorities in England. The intention of the guidance is to
limit the use local authorities make of Special Severance Payments. These are defined in
the guidance as payments made to employees, officeholders, workers, contractors, and
others outside of statutory, contractual or other requirements when leaving employment in
public service.
1.26 The draft guidance sets out the Government’s view of:




the criteria local government employers should consider before making a Special
Severance Payment;
the kinds of truly exceptional circumstances in which Special Severance Payments
may be appropriate;
the disclosure and reporting requirements for Special Severance Payments.

1.27 The draft statutory guidance which can be found on the Local Government Association
website, specifies what special severance payments are (for example, payments made in
a settlement agreement to discontinue legal proceedings without admission of fault) in
addition to providing some examples of the exceptional circumstances where a special
severance payment may be appropriate.
1.28 Payments such as redundancy payments, untaken holiday, payments ordered by a court
or payments made to compensate for ill health, injury or death do not constitute special
severance payments.
1.29 The consultation closes on 13 August 2021.
1.30 The Pensions Regulator Public Service Governance and Administration Survey: The
Pensions Regulator (TPR) has published its annual Public service governance and
administration survey. The primary objective of the survey was to track governance and
administration practices among public service pension schemes. In addition, the 2020-21
survey also included new questions on schemes’ response to the COVID-19 pandemic,
awareness and perceptions of the pensions dashboards, and the actions taken by Local
Government schemes in relation to climate related risks and opportunities.

5

Page 14
Other general updates presented to the Pension Committee
1.31 London CIV – Funding and Fee Savings: The most recent London CIV (LCIV) Business
Update call took place on 20 May 2021, during which updates were provided on their
current fund launch activity and new fund launch pipeline; the current fund offering is
attached at Appendix Three for information.
1.32 The LCIV Renewable Infrastructure Fund launched at the end of March 2021 with £435m
of commitments across five boroughs; a second close is due in early July with a further
expected £260m of commitments. The LCIV Private Debt Fund also launched at the end of
March with commitments of £290m from three boroughs, and a further anticipated £70m of
commitments due for the second close in July. Finally, a second close of the London Fund
is also due to take place in early July, whilst a proposed Sterling Credit Fund and Passive
Low Carbon Equity Fund are in the early stages of assessing client demand and
developing a mandate respectively.
1.33 As at 30 April 2021 the LCIV had £12,936m of assets under direct management, including
commitments but excluding passive pooling arrangements.
1.34 The Lambeth Fund is a key stakeholder in the LCIV, with approximately £1,141m or 64%
of the Fund’s active assets invested via the pool, one of the highest proportions of total
Fund assets compared to other London boroughs.
1.35 The annual fee saving to the Fund from pooling assets with the LCIV is estimated to be
approximately £1,048k for the year ending 31 March 2021.
1.36 Climate Change Policy, Stewardship, and TCFD: At the end of April the LCIV released
their Climate Change Policy and Stewardship Outcomes Report, and in May published
their Task Force on Climate-Related Financial Disclosures (TCFD) report. The Climate
Change Policy (attached at Appendix Four) is designed to highlight the LCIV’s position and
approach to mitigating climate change risk by setting 15 strategic objectives which will be
reviewed and reported on at least annually. Their overall approach involves a three-step
strategy:




Integration: embedding responsible investment into investment decision and design
based on investment beliefs;
Engagement: collaboration with companies, managers, peers, and participants; and
Disclosure: transparent reporting in line with best practice.

1.37 The Stewardship and TCFD reports have been published to address the requirements of
the UK Stewardship Code 2020 and annual TCFD reporting requirements respectively and
will be circulated to members after the meeting.
1.38 Staffing Update: Subject to FCA approval, LCIV have announced the appointment of
Mike Craston as Chair designate in succession to Lord Kerslake, to take up post in
September 2021. Craston is currently Chair and a Non-Executive Director of Aviva
Investors Holdings, a £300,000m asset manager that provides investment services to
companies in the Aviva group and external institutions. Other current roles and previous
6

Page 15
experience includes Chair at the Railpen Investment Board and roles at Legal and
General, Aegon Asset Management, Scottish Equitable and Schroders.
1.39 A Senior Portfolio Manager (Equities) has been appointed by LCIV and will start in early
July, whilst Alison Lee has been appointed to the role of Responsible Investment Manager:
Engagement. LCIV are also recruiting to the post of Head of Public Markets.
2.
Proposal and Reasons
2.1 It is proposed that the Pensions Board notes the performance of Lambeth Pensions as
outlined in this report
3.
FINANCE
3.1 There are no additional financial implications in relation to the items mentioned in this
report.
4.
LEGAL AND DEMOCRACY
4.1 There are no legal implications arising directly from the contents of this report.
4.2 There are no additional comments from Democratic Services.
5.
CONSULTATION AND CO-PRODUCTION
5.1 Where possible Lambeth Pensions shares ideas and working practices with other pension
funds.
6.
RISK MANAGEMENT
6.1 Action has been taken to mitigate any risks in relation to the items mentioned in this report.
The Risk Register highlights the appropriate control measures to mitigate potential risks.
7.
EQUALITIES IMAPCT ASSESSMENT
7.1 There are no equalities issues.
8.
COMMUNITY SAFETY
8.1 There are no community safety issues.
9.
ORGANISATIONAL IMPLICATIONS
9.1 Environmental
None for the purpose of this report.
9.2 Health
Not applicable.
9.3 Corporate Parenting
Not applicable.
9.4 Staffing and accommodation
None for the purpose of this report.
7

Page 16
9.5 Responsible Procurement
None for the purpose of this report.
10. TIMETABLE FOR IMPLEMENTATION
10.1 Not applicable.

8

Page 17

Audit trail
Consultation
Name/Position
Councillor Andrew Wilson

Lambeth directorate/
division or partner
Cabinet Member for
Finance and Performance

Date Sent

Date
Received

07.07.2021

08.07.2021

07.07.2021

09.07.2021

Finance and Investment /
Finance and Property

07.07.2021

16.07.2021

Finance and Investment /
Finance and Property

07.07.2021

12.07.2021

07.07.2021

12.07.2021

07.07.2021

07.07.2021

Fiona McDermott,
Strategic Director of
Finance and Investments
Christina Thompson,
Director of Finance and
Property
Hamant Bharadia,
Assistant Director of
Finance
Dawn Lelliott
Legal Services

Finance and Investment

Marianna Richie
Democratic Services

Legal and Governance

Comments
in para:

Legal and Governance

Report History
Original discussion with Cabinet
Member
Report deadline
Date final report sent
Part II Exempt from
Disclosure/confidential accompanying
report?
Key decision report
Date first appeared on forward plan
Key decision reasons
Background information
Appendices

NA
16.07.2021
16.07.2021
NA

No
N/A
N/A
N/A
Appendix One – Pensions Administration
Performance June 2021
Appendix Two – Suggested Training Q3-Q4 2021
Appendix Three – LCIV Current Fund Offering
March 2021
Appendix Four – LCIV Climate Change Policy April
2021

9

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix 1
PENSION ADMINISTRATION PERFORMANCE JUNE 2021

1. Summary of key cases recorded on Altair Workflow between 1 October 2020 to 30 June 2021
Case type

Total
cases
completed

Target
days to
complete

Percentage
completed
within target
Oct to Dec
2020

Percentage
completed
within target
Jan to Mar
2021

Percentage
completed
within target
Apr to Jun
2021

Rating

Comments

>= 95% Green
>= 90% Amber
< 90% Red

66

10

88%

85%

92%

Deaths

53

10

97%

90%

93%

Improvement from previous quarter.

Retirement
estimates &
actuals

204

8

91%

90%

95%

There was a higher than average number of
retirements processed in this quarter.

Due to staff shortages in this quarter (one leaver as at
31 March 2021 and one long term absence) the focus
was on completing the processes generating payments
to members (i.e. refunds, deaths, retirements and
pension payroll). This meant that there was a slight
delay in processing deferred statements and transfers.
There was also a high volume of transfer requests in
this quarter and additional scrutiny being undertaken in
light of the increased potential for transfer scams
during this time.

Transfers in /
out estimates
& actuals

162

25

98%

85%

60%

Refunds

20

10

96%

100%

100%

Page 19

Deferred
benefit
estimates &
actuals

Improvement from previous quarter. Due to staff
shortages in this quarter (one leaver as at 31 March
2021 and one long term absence) the focus was on
completing the processes generating payments to
members (i.e. refunds, deaths, retirements and
pension payroll). This meant that there was a slight
delay in processing deferred statements and transfers.

Appendix 1
PENSION ADMINISTRATION PERFORMANCE JUNE 2021

2. Member Self Service Statistics
Member Self-Service (MSS) is an on-line platform to enable pension scheme members to access details about their LGPS pension rights.
Type of
member

Number of
MSS users at
30.06.20

Number of
MSS users at
30.09.20

Number of
Number of
Number of
MSS users at MSS users at MSS users
31.12.20
31.03.21
at 30.06.21

Increase since
31.03.21

781
504
728
32

924
602
735
38

1,164
672
772
42

1,216
676
875
42

1,222
668
937
41

1,253
713
994
41

31
45
57
0

*Percentage of
users by
membership
type at 30.06.21
25.05%
8.43%
15.70%
3.57%

2,045

2,299

2,654

2,809

2,868

3,001

133

14.33%

*Membership: 5,002 actives; 8,463 Deferred Pensioners; 6,332 Pensioners; 1,150 Widow/dependants.

A summary of activity that compares the periods during 2019 to 2021 is given in the table below.
Activities

Number of log ins
First Time Logins
Incorrect passwords
Usernames not recognised
Disabled accounts
People viewing documents

Jan 2019
to Jun
2019
1,979
441
944
133
438

Jul 2019 Oct 2019 Jan 2020 Jul 2020 Oct 2020 Jan 2021 Apr 2021
to Sep
to Dec
to Jul
to Sep
to Dec to Mar to Jun
2019
2019
2020
2020
2020
2021
2021
1,740
277
626
1,038
207
103

905
131
248
434
60
241

2,053
525
879
103
430

1,619
403
366
976
94
102

1,124
163
281
452
67
495

1,089
126
286
431
65
277

1,668
127
311
573
65
583

Page 20

Active
Deferred
Pensioners
Widow/
dependant
Totals

Number of
MSS users at
31.12.19

Appendix 1
PENSION ADMINISTRATION PERFORMANCE JUNE 2021

3. Lambeth Pension Fund website statistics during 2021

Visits

Visits by Traffic Type

500
450
400
350
300
250
200
150
100
50
0

70.00%
60.00%
50.00%
40.00%
30.00%
20.00%
10.00%

Page 21

0.00%
JUL

AUG

SEP

OCT

NOV

DEC

Visits

Month
JUL
Visits
253
New
189
Visits
Page
328
Views
Visits by traffic type
Direct 32.40%
Organic 65.20%
Referral
2.40%

JAN

FEB

MAR

APR

MAY

JUN

JUL

AUG

New Visits

AUG
398

SEP
325

OCT
271

NOV
262

DEC
195

290

243

212

199

143

549

428

342

325

257

47.70%
35.90%
16.40%

42.80%
47.10%
10.10%

46.10%
52.40%
1.50%

48.10%
47.70%
4.20%

43.60%
51.80%
4.60%

JAN

SEP

OCT

NOV

DEC

JAN

FEB

MAR

Direct

Organic

Referral

FEB

MAR

APR

APR

MAY

MAY

JUN

JUN

311

393

430

350

359

454

276

326

358

267

291

355

422

512

538

442

454

571

39.10% 47.40%
58.90% 51.80%
2%
0.80%

55.50%
42.10%
2.40%

51.40%
46.00%
2.60%

52.20%
46.60%
1.20%

48.80%
48.60%
2.60%

*Visits by traffic – see below definitions:
Direct – Users who come to the website directly by typing in the web address (or using a favourite).
Organic Traffic – Users who come to the website from natural search engine results.
Referral - Visitors that landed on the website through a link on another website, such as Facebook or a site that references a blog article.

Appendix 1
PENSION ADMINISTRATION PERFORMANCE JUNE 2021

4. Complaints
Complaint
Pensioner member’s pension was abated due to reemployment and objected to the period for recovery of
arrears.
Deferred member unsatisfied with the delayed response
from Lambeth Pensions in payment of benefits due to ill
health.

Response

Open/Closed

Advised the member of the abatement policy and agreed a more suitable period to recover
arrears.

Closed

Advised the member of the reason for the delay and made appropriate payment..

Closed

5. Breaches – Pensions Administration 2021
The table below is an extract of the Breaches Log for 2021 in relation to this quarter inclusive of all breaches from previous periods that remain open.
Description
& cause of
breach

Reported
Yes/No (with
justification if
N and dates)

Actions to be taken / Outcome

Date
actions
taken

RAG

Possible effect of breach
and wider implications

Open /
Closed
with date

20.05.19

Non-payment
of employer
secondary
contributions
Non-payment
of employer
contributions

Yes

Historic issue with employer in terms of paying over
the secondary contributions. Various discussions to
resolve the situation have taken place including
legal proceedings.
Employer reminded of their statutory obligations.
Continued discussions ongoing and finalising
resolution. A cessation valuation has been
undertaken and payment of the full deficit has been
made to the Fund.

Ongoing

Red

The funding position of the
employer worsens over
time.

Open

Mar-20
onwards

Green

The funding position of the
employer worsens over
time.

Closed
May 2021

27.03.20

No

Reported
to
Regulator
N/Y with
date
No

No

For the LGPS a breach occurs if there is a failure to do anything required under the Regulations, Framework or overriding legislation. This includes providing
incorrect information. Action is being taken to identify any other breaches and if applicable these will be added to the Breaches Log. Single, low impact breaches
are usually considered to be immaterial. A series of breaches can amount to a material breach and then a decision would be needed about whether to report to
The Pensions Regulator. Currently the breaches listed above are not being reported.

Page 22

Date
Identified

Appendix Three - Suggested Training/Events, Q3/Q4 2021
Cost & Additional
Information

Website

Webinar

£900 - registration via
website

https://www.aon.com/unitedkingdom/retirementinvestment/pensions-training/course-calendar.jsp

Webinar

Free to attend: registration
https://lgps-live.com/nextwebinar/
via website

Date

Time

Event

Organiser

Location

05/07/2021,
07/07/2021
or
09/07/2021

All day

Defined Benefit Trustee Essentials

Aon

07/07/2021

15:30 16:50

LGPS Live: The TPR Combined Code & Coping
LGPS Live
with China

Value for Money – the trustees’ conundrum

09:00 12:55
12:30 13:30
10:15 14:45
14:00 16:00
10:15 14:45

Investment Strategies & Cash Flow
Management for Maturing Pension Funds

SPS Conferences Webinar

Quarterly Legal Update Seminar

Sackers

Webinar

Overview of the Local Government Pension
Scheme

Barnett
Waddingham

Webinar

Pensions Governance Workshop

CIPFA

Webinar

Overview of the Local Government Pension
Scheme

Barnett
Waddingham

Webinar

04/08/2021

TBC

LGPS Live Series - Topics TBC

LGPS Live

Webinar

01/09/2021

TBC

LGPS Live Series - Topics TBC

LGPS Live

Webinar

07/07/2021

08/07/2021
15/07/2021
15/07/2021
27/07/2021
28/07/2021

09/09/2021 All day
10/09/2021

LGC Investment & Pensions Summit

14/09/2021

All day

Professional Pensions Live 2021

16/09/2021

All day

Pensions Age Autumn Conference 2021

16/09/2021

11:00 12:00

Avoiding Greenwashing in 'Environmentally
Friendly' Portfolios

Webinar

Royal
Local Government Armouries
Chronicle (LGC) Museum,
Leeds
The
Professional
Brewery,
Pensions
London &
Online
The
Waldorf
Pensions Age
Hilton,
London
PLSA

Webinar

https://www.brighttalk.com/webcast/17145/488073?utm_
source=brighttalkFree to attend: registration
portal&utm_medium=web&utm_content=&utm_term=sea
via website
rch-result-15&utm_campaign=webcasts-search-resultsfeed
Free to attend upon request https://www.spsconferences.com/conference-details-julyvia website
8-2021
Free to attend: registration
https://www.sackers.com/?post_type=seminar&p=12637
via website
£175 - registration via
https://www.barnett-waddingham.co.uk/lgps-pensionwebsite
committee-local-pension-board-members-officers/
£345 - registration via
https://www.cipfa.org/training/p/pensions-governancewebsite
workshop-20210728-online
£175 - registration via
https://www.barnett-waddingham.co.uk/lgps-pensionwebsite
committee-local-pension-board-members-officers/
Free to attend: registration
https://lgps-live.com/nextwebinar/
via website
Free to attend: registration
https://lgps-live.com/nextwebinar/
via website
£849 - £999 - public sector
prices includes 1 or 2 night
https://investmentsummit.lgcplus.com/
accommodation:
registration via website
Complimentary passes
available: registration via
website

https://www.professionalpensionslive.com/2021/en/page/
home

Complimentary passes
available: registration via
website

https://www.pensionsage.com/autumnconference/index.p
hp

Free for PLSA Members:
registration via website

https://www.plsa.co.uk/Events/Webinars/Avoidinggreenwashing-in-environmentally-friendly-portfolios

Page 23

15:00 15:45

The People's
Pension/ DLA
Piper

16/09/2021

09:00 16:30

05/10/2021 All day
06/10/2021

Alternative Investment Strategies for Pension
Funds
Energy Transition Strategies Summit

The Dilly
Hotel,
SPS Conferences
Piccadilly,
London
Financial Times
Webinar
Live
The Dilly
Hotel,
SPS Conferences
Piccadilly,
London

06/10/2021

09:00 16:30

Property, Infrastructure & Real Asset
Investment Strategies for Pension Funds

12/10/2021

All day

Fundamentals (Training Course) - Day 1

LGA

TBC

PLSA Annual Conference

PLSA

Webinar

Trustee Training - Funding and Investment

LCP

Webinar

Fundamentals (Training Course) - Day 2

LGA

TBC

12/10/2021 All day
14/10/2021
09:30 20/10/2021
12:30
All day

09/11/2021

09:00 16:30

Current Investment Issues for Pension Funds

11/11/2021

10:00 17:00

ESG and Climate Change Seminar

18/11/2021

09:00 16:30

Local Authority Pension Fund's Sustainable
Investment Strategies

The Dilly
Hotel,
SPS Conferences
Piccadilly,
London
Pensions
Management
Webinar
Institute
The Dilly
Hotel,
SPS Conferences
Piccadilly,
London

£99 - registration via
website

https://energy.live.ft.com/home

Free to attend upon request https://www.spsconferences.com/conference-detailsvia website
october-6-2021
£270 - registration via
website
Free for PLSA Members:
registration via website
£495 - registration via
website
£270 - registration via
website

https://lgaevents.local.gov.uk/lga/frontend/reg/thome.csp
?pageID=417773&eventID=1222&traceRedir=2
https://www.plsa.co.uk/Annual-conference
https://www.lcp.uk.com/events/2021/10/trustee-trainingfunding-and-investment-autumn-2021/
https://lgaevents.local.gov.uk/lga/frontend/reg/thome.csp
?pageID=418799&eventID=1225

Free to attend upon request https://www.spsconferences.com/conference-detailsvia website
november-9-2021

TBC

https://my.pensionspmi.org.uk/Shared_Content/Events/Event_Display.aspx?
EventKey=ESG111121

Free to attend upon request https://www.spsconferences.com/conference-detailsvia website
november-18-2021

30/11/2021 All day
01/12/2021

PLSA Trustee Conference

PLSA

TBC

Free for PLSA Members:
registration via website

https://www.plsa.co.uk/Events-Trustee-Conference

02/12/2021

Fundamentals (Training Course) - Day 3

LGA

TBC

£270 - registration via
website

https://www.local.gov.uk/events?from=&to=&region=All&
sort_by=field_end_date_value&sort_order=ASC&page=3

All day

Page 24

09/11/2021

Free to attend upon request https://www.spsconferences.com/conference-details-septvia website
16-2021

Appendix One – LCIV Current Fund Offering at 31 March 2021

Page 25

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 27

London CIV
Climate
Change Policy

Page 28

London CIV Climate Change Policy

Working together towards positive outcomes:
Our commitment to responsible investment is
part of our fiduciary duty and our desire to build
a sustainable city and a future in which people
and planet will prosper.
Contents
1

About London CIV

2

Key Objectives

3	Why Climate Change is an

issue for us, our Clients and
their Members

6	1. Integration: embedding
responsible investment
into investment decision
and design

10	2. Engagement: collaboration
with managers, companies,
peers and participants

16 Governance and Strategy
18 Appendix

We would like to acknowledge the continued support of our clients in the
development and implementation of this policy. Our shared commitment
to limiting the impact of global climate change enables us to generate
sustainable returns and drive change together.
Mike O’Donnell, CEO, London CIV

London CIV Climate Change Policy

Page 29

About London CIV

London CIV was authorised in 2015 to provide pooling solutions to the 32 Local
Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) Funds (“the Client Funds”) in London valued at £44bn
collectively.1 As of 31 December 2020, the total pooled assets were £23bn, split between
£11bn active investments and £12bn in passive investments managed by Legal & General
Investment Management and Blackrock but invested following fee negotiations conducted
by London CIV on behalf of Client Funds.
Our clients are also our shareholders and we work
collaboratively to deliver our agreed purpose which is: “To
be the LGPS pool for London to enable the London Local
Authorities to achieve their pooling requirements”.

By developing a dedicated Climate Change Policy, London
CIV has created a three-step strategy to protect our
portfolios from the systemic risks posed by climate change
using the following actions:

Our clients retain responsibility for their asset allocation
and investment strategy, and thus exposure to climate
risk. We see our role as helping them to understand and
manage these risks, whilst also addressing the global
climate emergency.

1.	Integration: embedding responsible investment into
investment decision and design

Our Climate Change Policy is designed to
highlight our position and approach to mitigating
climate change risk and includes 15 strategic
objectives which will be reviewed and reported
on at least annually. We hope that this policy will
help to inform our investments, managers and
suppliers about our priorities and expectations
when it comes to climate change risk mitigation
and adaptation.

1

As of December 20

2.	Engagement: collaboration with companies, managers,
peers and participants
3.	Disclosure: transparent reporting in line with
best practice

1

Page 30

2

London CIV Climate Change Policy

Key Objectives:

•	We will ensure our portfolio’s
climate risk profiles are better
than the benchmark as soon
as practical and that products
are steadily improving.
•	We will set an ambitious net
zero carbon emissions target
alongside an interim emissions
reduction target before the
United Nations Climate
Change Conference (COP26)
in November 2021 following
consultation with our clients.
•	We will facilitate and support
cross-sectoral efforts focussed
on defining and delivering
substantial reductions in supply
chain and product-related
greenhouse gas emissions.

•	We will assess our managers’
analysis and assessment of climate
change-related risks, as well as their
investment practices and processes.
•	
Climate change considerations
will be integrated into all
the mandates that we
award for new funds.
•	We will report on the positive
and negative impact
of our investments.
•	We will seek continual
improvements of climate
disclosure across the industry,
working with fund managers
and engaging with securities to
reduce reliance on modelling.

London CIV Climate Change Policy

Page 31

Why Climate Change is an issue for
us, our Clients and their Members
Climate change presents an immediate systemic risk to the ecological, societal, and
financial stability of every economy, country, asset type and sector on the planet. It will
have significant physical and economic impact on most aspects of human activity and
consequently multiple implications for our Client Funds and their beneficiaries. Addressing
climate change is therefore part of our fiduciary duty and a strategic investment priority
for London CIV.

Over the next few decades, one billion lives2,3 and trillions of pounds will be at risk
due to a single issue: climate change.4 Recognising the dual materiality of this
global emergency and the associated financial opportunities associated with the
green transition, London CIV has a fiduciary duty to integrate climate risk analysis
into our investment process to protect our clients and their beneficiaries.
Jacqueline Amy Jackson, Head of Responsible Investment

The Earth’s temperature is now rising faster than at any
time in recent history, evidenced by more numerous and
volatile weather events, rising sea levels and warming
marine temperatures. It is impacting agriculture and food
supply, infrastructure and water availability which in turn,
leads to increased migration and conflict.

Human activities are contributing to approximately 1.0°C
of global temperatures above pre-industrial levels. Current
emission patterns indicate that this could reach 1.5°C by
2040 and on the current path of carbon dioxide emissions,
temperature is expected to increase by 3-5°C by the end of
the century.5

Taken as a whole, the range of published evidence indicates that the net damage
costs of climate change are likely to be significant and to increase over time
Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change

Governments are responding. The 2015 Paris Agreement
remains the best example of international action, binding
197 countries to undertake ambitious efforts to combat
climate change and adapt to its effects. It aims to stop
global temperatures rising by more than 2.0°C above
pre-industrial levels this century and to limit that increase
to 1.5°C. With COP26 taking place in 2021, it is likely that
commitments will only increase.
2
3
4
5

Whilst government action matters, all sectors of society
including individuals, companies and investors must
take responsibility for the delivery of their own climate
commitments to keep the global temperature rise to well
below 2°C.

https://arcticwwf.org/newsroom/news/one-billion-people-threatened-by-climate-change-risks-to-oceans-polar-and-mountain-regions-un-report-warns/
https://www.theguardian.com/environment/2020/may/05/one-billion-people-will-live-in-insufferable-heat-within-50-years-study
https://unfccc.int/news/major-companies-face-usd-1-trillion-in-climate-risks
See https://www.ipcc.ch/site/assets/uploads/sites/2/2019/06/SR15_Full_Report_High_Res.pdf and the IPCC’s Fifth Assessment Report, 2013

3

Page 32

4

London CIV Climate Change Policy

London’s Warming

London CIV’s Role in Driving Change

The United Kingdom has taken a lead on assessing climate
change impacts and continues to spearhead the way by
being the first major economy to pass a net zero emissions
law in 2019. London brought its own carbon neutral target
forward from 2050 to 2030.6

We must consider the financial implications of global
warming and encourage emissions reductions now, rather
than later if we are to deliver on our long-term investment
strategy and manage risk. Our expertise in managing
climate related risks, our industry influence and the
leadership of our clients provide us with a unique position
and exciting opportunity to drive change.

Out of every English region, London has the lowest carbon
emissions per person due to its high population density,
extensive public transport and a comparative lack of heavy
industry. However, 1.25 million people living in London and
£277bn worth of assets7 in the capital city may be severely
impacted by climate change by the year 2050.
As the most populous region, urban zone and metropolitan
area, home to the largest number of businesses in the
UK and responsible for nearly a quarter of the UK’s GDP,
London is ambitious in its climate change policy and
London CIV is committed to demonstrating positive action
and leadership.

Our approach begins by integrating climate change
risk analysis throughout the design, selection and
management of our investment decisions by enabling
our clients to understand and mitigate their own risk. We
engage with others including fund managers, corporates
and wider stakeholders, whilst remaining transparent in
our reporting to support our clients, track progress and
demonstrate leadership.

We believe that a strong Responsible Investment approach and related
Climate Change policy will both protect and add value over the long term
and crucially be mutually beneficial to our members and wider society.
Through the London CIV we hope that our impact on climate change can be
greater, by joining forces and benefiting from the amplified effectiveness of
engaging with fund managers and companies alongside likeminded funds.
Cllr Rishi Madlani, Chair of Pensions Committee, Camden Council and Head of Sustainable
Finance & Just Transition, NatWest Group

	https://www.london.gov.uk/press-releases/mayoral/mayor-renewsefforts-to-mobilise-green-investment
7
	C40 : The Future We Don&#39;t Want - Powering cities in the face of
climate change
6

Page 33

London CIV Climate Change Policy

5

Our approach
London CIV recognises that the environmental and socio-economic landscape is changing
rapidly from both a societal and regulatory perspective on an ongoing basis. Thus, our
approach to responsible investment and strategy evolves annually and remains under
constant review to help anticipate future risks.
Our three-step strategy can be described using the following process. It is held to account
by objectives and is supported by Principles of Governance:

1.

Integration:
Embedding responsible
investment into
investment decision
and design

2.		

Engagement:
Collaboration with
companies, managers,
peers and participants

3.

Disclosure:
transparent reporting in
line with best practice

All underpinned by Principles of Governance: Strategic monitoring and accountability throughout the organisation.

Page 34

6

London CIV Climate Change Policy

1. Integration:
embedding responsible investment
into investment decision and design

We will incorporate ESG issues into investment analysis
and decision-making processes.
Principle 1, UN PRI

Using our clients’ own policies, an understanding of best practice via our peers and the regulatory landscape, London CIV has
developed its own investment beliefs which it uses to develop all policies.

Investment Beliefs
London CIV aims to deliver stronger investment returns over the long term, protecting
our clients’ interests through contributing to a more sustainable and resilient financial
system, which supports sustainable economic growth and a thriving society. Our
Investment Beliefs clearly articulate our commitment to be responsible investors. Social,
environment and corporate governance (ESG) considerations, including climate change,
are integrated throughout all aspects of our investment process.
1. Long term investors get better risk adjusted returns
2.	Robust risk management and mitigation improves risk
adjusted returns
3.	We believe Responsible Investment improves risk
adjusted returns
a.	We believe good corporate governance improves risk
adjusted returns
b.	We believe in good stewardship and in proactive
engagement
c.	We view the management of climate change risk as a
key element of our investment strategy
d. We believe diversity improves risk adjusted returns
4.	We believe taking the right risk for the right return will
maximise opportunities
5.	We believe that costs are important and should be
managed:
a.	We believe managing fees and assessing
remuneration will support cost effectiveness
b.	We believe fund structuring and implementation costs
matter to ensure flexibility and to manage costs

6.	We believe diversification can improve returns and
reduce risk
7.	All of our investment decisions and beliefs are based
on clear objectives, expertise, knowledge and robust
research
8.	We believe transparency and accountability build
client trust
9. We will innovate, collaborate and lead
10.	We believe that a collaborative approach to investment
improves returns and reduces risk
Our policy details how we will integrate climate change
throughout the investment process and sets objectives to
ensure outcomes can be monitored and measured over
time. More information about how our investment beliefs
translate into climate action can be found in the Appendix.

Page 35

London CIV Climate Change Policy

Products
We want to increase the range of products available to our
clients that deliver substantial climate change benefits.
We continue to develop products in collaboration with our
clients, helping them to meet their own climate goals whilst
delivering on this strategy.
One of the key challenges we face is that there is a
limited supply of investment products which meet our
climate change objectives (low carbon, socially just) and

investment requirements (the right risk-return profile).
Thus, encouraging innovation is critical to our product
development and fund launch strategy.
Our existing climate conscious products and their approach
to ESG are highlighted below. More detailed information
about our climate impact and forward-looking risk analysis
can be found in our annual metrics report and a summary
shall be provided in the Annual Report:

Asset Class

Fund Name

Description

Equity

LCIV
Sustainable
Equity Fund

This Fund invests in a high conviction, research driven global equity portfolio. The strategy is based
on the beliefs that great businesses create contingent assets not reflected in typical financial
metrics, extensive evaluation of extra-financial factors reduces risk and uncovers alternative
sources of alpha, and an integrated ESG approach supports responsible allocation of capital. These
principles ensure that the strategy only considers companies with strong competitive dynamics,
strong management, and environmental, social and governance practices.

Equity

LCIV
Sustainable
Equity
Exclusion
Fund

This Fund mirrors the LCIV Sustainable Equity Fund (as described above) and excludes
issuers whose primary business is involved with any of the following restricted activities: adult
entertainment; alcohol; gambling; weapons; small arms and tobacco; and does not invest in
issuers whose primary business is directly involved in extracting, processing or transporting coal,
oil or natural gas (“fossil fuels”).

Equity

LCIV Global
Alpha Growth
Paris Aligned
Fund

This Fund aims to select stocks that offer the prospect of sustainable above-average growth
in earnings and cash flow. This is implemented by assessing a company’s prospects for
sustainable growth rather than by predicting short-term share price movements or macroeconomic trends. The investment manager recognises that companies grow at different
rates, some more cyclically than others, so it also invests in companies with ‘latent’ growth
opportunities. This Fund has an explicit carbon commitment to have a Weighted Average
Carbon Intensity (WACI) lower than that of the MSCI ACWI Paris-Aligned Index which puts it in
line with the Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change’s 1.5 degree warming scenario. It
also applies quantitative and qualitative screens to exclude high-emission companies that do
not or will not have an important role to play in the transition to a low-carbon economy.

Private
Markets

The London
Fund

The Local Pensions Partnership Investments and the London CIV have jointly set up “The
London Fund” to help access investment opportunities in Greater London across real estate,
infrastructure, and growth capital opportunities. The strategy focuses on investments across
Greater London, which includes the 32 London Boroughs, the City of London Corporation,
and the commuter belt surrounding London, and its investment objectives also include
investments in projects with sustainable outcomes that address social needs in Greater
London including job creation, area regeneration and a positive environmental impact.

7

Page 36

8

London CIV Climate Change Policy

Asset Class

Fund Name

Description

Private
Markets

The Fund invests in infrastructure assets in brownfield and greenfield investments. At least
LCIV
Infrastructure a quarter of the Fund will remain invested in renewable energy in line with the London CIV
Responsible Investment and Engagement Policy.
Fund

Private
Markets

LCIV
Renewable
Infrastructure
Fund

The Fund invests in renewable energy infrastructure assets in brownfield and greenfield
investments. This will include generation, transmissions and distribution assets, with a market
segment focus on renewable energy including, wind solar and other generations such as
biomass, biogas, hydroelectricity, and enablers.

Though climate aligned funds and investments have outperformed market cap
indices, in recent years we have seen a secular shift towards a lower carbon
economy and believe that managing carbon risk will also reduce the financial
risks of our clients’ investments.
Jason Fletcher, CIO

Portfolio Resistance
Whilst we recognise the varying impact of climate change
on different funds, our overall investment portfolio must be
resilient under a range of climate scenarios that support
both mitigation and adaptation. We want to adopt best
practice on climate risk management and to work with our
managers to further improve and develop our processes.
Historically, climate reporting and strategy focussed on
climate footprinting and subsequent impact reduction.
Impact reduction is an important aspect of our policy as it
enables us to support a sustainable future worth living in
for all our beneficiaries.

Whilst these are both positive steps to take, we believe
that our forward-looking approach built on best-practice
scenario analysis helps us in future proofing our portfolios
so that they are resilient to the consequences of climate
change and can benefit from the opportunities that arise.
Climate change will not only result in risk but will
provide new investment opportunities. For example, the
Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change (IPCC) forecast
that new public and private investment in energy will
need to grow to around £1.75 trillion annually to 2035 –
representing around 2.5% of global GDP.

London CIV Climate Change Policy

Page 37

9

Positive impact
We can maximise our own opportunities whilst supporting
the low carbon transition by investing in areas such as
renewable energy and energy efficiency. Our primary goal
is to support our fiduciary duty but this is underpinned
by a responsibility to our clients’ beneficiaries and wider
stakeholders who demand a just transition.

Our goal is to support
not just a transition –
but a just transition.
All investments contain a myriad of social nuances
which is why it is important that our Climate Change
Policy is closely interlinked and considered against our
wider commitment to positive impact and continued
support of the UN Sustainable Development Goals
(SDGs), designed as a blueprint to achieve a better and
more sustainable future for all.

Integration Objectives:
1.	We will collaborate with clients to avoid
launching products with excessively high
carbon footprints.
2.	We will work with our clients to establish
their climate change objectives and
outcomes and offer a range of products
to meet those goals.
3.	We will ensure our portfolio’s climate
risk profiles are better than the
benchmark as soon as practical and that
products are steadily improving.
4.	We will set an ambitious net zero carbon
emissions target alongside an interim
emissions reduction target no later than
September 2021 following consultation
with our clients.
5.	We will continue to make investments
in a diverse set of opportunities that
directly contribute to the energy
transition.

Page 38

10

London CIV Climate Change Policy

2. Engagement:
collaboration with managers,
companies, peers and participants

We will be active owners and incorporate ESG issues into our ownership
policies and practices. We will promote acceptance and implementation
of the Principles within the investment industry. We will work together to
enhance our effectiveness in implementing the Principles.
Principles 2, 4 and 5 of the UN PRI

We want the companies and other entities in which we
invest and contract with to demonstrate their resilience
against climate change whilst collaborating with the
broader market to build a financial system ready for a low
carbon future.
Due to our scale, we have the opportunity to encourage
companies and other entities to take action on climate
change by demonstrating strong mitigation and
adaptation. Our climate stewardship extends to all our
portfolios and is adapted depending upon the asset class.
As a member of Local Authority Pension Fund Forum
(LAPFF), London CIV works with our fund managers
to ensure that they exercise our rights in line with our
responsible investment and engagement policies and in
accordance with LAPFF guidelines.
To further strengthen and integrate our voting and
engagement process, London CIV has appointed a voting
and engagement partner. Hermes EOS will enable us
to uncover financially material ESG issues and adapt a
global approach backed by strong resources, so that we
can continue to use our shareholder rights to maximise
shareholder value.

Working with Fund Managers
Recognising the fiduciary duty to act in the longterm interests of its shareholders, London CIV
has implemented a rigorous screening process for
selecting and appointing investment managers
to ensure that climate change considerations are
incorporated within their financial decision-making.
Managing risks associated with climate change is a
fundamental part of our investment strategy. To reflect their
importance, they have been integrated into all stages of our
engagement with investment managers. This approach was
established in partnership with the Responsible Investment
Reference Group (RIRG) with the oversight of the London
CIV Compliance, Audit, and Risk Committee (CARCO), and the
Investment Oversight Committee (IOC) and is documented
in the Investment Governance Documentation (IGD).

Selection

All tendering investment managers must be able to clearly
demonstrate their approach to identifying and mitigating
exposure to climate risk and articulate how their investment
objectives support the transition to the low carbon
economy. This is assessed on the basis of the fund’s ESG
credentials, climate policy and their set of responses to
London CIV’s fund manager due diligence questionnaire.
Table 1 details some of the high-level questions that
underpin our review process.

London CIV Climate Change Policy

Page 39

Table 1 : Fund Manager Due Diligence Questionnaire (Extract)

1

Does your organisation support TCFD recommendations?

2	Has your organisation included the monitoring of climate-related impacts as part of the board’s and/or management
group’s oversight responsibilities?
3

Is there a firm-wide strategy o place to identify the risks and opportunities related to climate change?

4	Has the organisation considered the impact of climate-related scenarios on future outcomes in terms of expected risk
and return, as well as the identification of new opportunities?
5	Has a process been established to assess the integrate climate-related investment risks (transition and physical impacts
into investment decisions?
6	What climate related metrics, if any, does hour organisation use? Can you describe how these metrics have impacted
investment decisions?
7

Has the organisation introduced steps to transition investment portfolios to net-zero GHG emission by 2050?

While climate stewardship is an essential part of our
manager selection process, London CIV does not currently
stipulate specific investment strategies or minimum
levels of ESG or climate integration. This is left to the full
discretion of investment managers, which enables them
to tender with optimal strategies, contingent upon the
nature and requirements of the fund mandate as defined
by London CIV.

Appointment

Our Responsible Investment Policy states that for each
appropriate asset class, we will ensure that managers
selected for appointment have:
·	An ESG Policy covering climate issues, or a standalone
climate policy
·	Where relevant, managers should be demonstrating
active ownership policies or equivalent, articulating how
climate factors are integrated into their engagement
and stewardship activities
·	Case studies or examples of where climate issues have
influenced an investment decision.

·	Where appropriate, information on the process for
integrating any third party ESG data into their company
financial models, investment strategies and portfolio
construction.
·	Whether they are a signatory of the UN backed
Principles for Responsible Investment (PRI) and
Stewardship Code, and if applicable a copy of their PRI
public report and annual assessment scores.

Management and Monitoring

We meet with our fund managers on a quarterly basis to
assess their climate performance across key exposure
and impact metrics (see Appendix). Fund managers
are challenged to provide case studies or examples
of investment decisions that were influenced by the
integration of climate factors in decision-making.
London CIV will be looking for our managers to be aligned
with our climate performance targets. We seek to ensure
that our funds’ climate risks decline over time. Specific
emission reduction targets may be designed into a specific
fund where London CIV will ensure that the selected
manager meets targets as set out in the objectives.

11

Page 40

12

London CIV Climate Change Policy

Engagement by asset class

Public policy engagement

Listed Equities

The regulatory environment and policy setting of the
countries in which we invest, are a crucial factor for
companies to be able to support their sustainability
commitments. Policy makers play a crucial role in creating
a level playing field for companies operating in different
geographic markets and they have the power to both
re-balance and disrupt. Therefore, London CIV engages
collectively, through the investor associations of which
we are a member, on matters of public policy related
to the promotion of ESG and publicly disclose our
consultation responses.

The most developed area of engagement is with our
listed equities, where we use the formal rights granted
to us as investors, specifically the right to vote on our
shareholdings, file resolutions and the right to call
Extraordinary General Meetings. London CIV will work with
partners and like-minded investment managers to develop
our engagement strategy.

Fixed Income

Engagement with issuers on climate mitigation and
resilience is also central to our approach in corporate
bonds and we are currently exploring how this can be
applied in other fixed income investments that we hold.

Private Markets

The impact we can have in private markets can be even
stronger, working through our fund managers and with our
general partners to support private companies, real estate,
infrastructure projects and other entities in managing their
impact on climate change.
Engagement in other asset classes can be more
challenging. However, to address this, we have
appointed Hermes EOS to support London CIV in its
engagement. Further information about how we manage
our engagement by asset class can be found in our
Stewardship Policy.

Industry engagement
We recognise the collective power of investors and industry
stakeholders which enables us to send strong and clear
messages to company management and investment
managers. By aligning our requests and following bestpractice principles wherever possible, we find that we can
improve efficiency, relationships and therefore positive
response rates from companies and managers.

London CIV Climate Change Policy

Page 41

Case Study: ClimateAction100+
The ClimateAction100+ Working Group
is a global collaborative engagement
targeting a selection of the world’s biggest
greenhouse gas emitters driving action
to curb emissions, strengthen climaterelated financial disclosure, and improve
governance of climate change issues.
Through our participation with
the initiative, we have committed
to work with Ceres and PRI to
engage PepsiCo, Rolls Royce
and Martin Marietta Materials
on climate change.

Engagement Objectives:
1.	We will engage with our material holdings
to understand how aligned they are with the
Paris Agreement.
2.	We will facilitate and support cross-sectoral
efforts focussed on defining and delivering
substantial reductions in supply chain and
product-related greenhouse gas emissions.
3.	We will assess our managers on their own
analysis and assessment of climate changerelated risks in their investment practices and
processes as part of our ongoing monitoring
and management.
4.	We will encourage all our fund managers to
show support of industry initiatives including
TCFD, ClimateAction100+ and the Transition
Pathway Initiative (TPI) and will not appoint
new managers who are not signed up to PRI.
5.	Climate change considerations will be
integrated into all the mandates that we
award for new funds.

13

Page 42

14

London CIV Climate Change Policy

Disclosure and Transparency

We will seek appropriate disclosure on ESG issues by the entities in which
we invest. We will each report on our activities and progress towards
implementing the Principles.
Principles 3 and 6 of the UN PRI

Accurate and timely disclosure of climate-related financial
information is central to the effective implementation of the
commitments set out in this policy. To address this, London
CIV has developed robust monitoring and accountability
mechanisms to improve transparency and quality of
reporting to and from all its stakeholders. This includes
efforts to:
•

Engage more intensively with companies that do not
yet disclose climate-related data in alignment with the
recommendations of the TCFD and the Sustainability
Accounting Standards Board (SASB).

•

Monitor the climate performance of our fund
managers and ensure they have communicated clear
decarbonisation strategies and risk mitigation plans.

•

Report on a range of climate metrics (see Appendix)
in our mainstream financial filings to promote a
more informed understanding of climate-related
risks and opportunities, and foster engagement and
accountability towards our shareholders. London CIV
will also produce annual reports on its engagement and
stewardship activities.

Limitations
The accuracy of the climate analytics reported is
contingent upon the quality of the data available and
the rigour of the analytical approaches employed in
our measurement tools.
For instance, whilst financial data has been available for
many centuries, environmental data is relatively new. This
means that companies continue to report their greenhouse
gas emissions to varying degrees of quality and detail.
Some disclosures are made in accordance with global
reporting standards and verified by external parties, but
others are fragmented and prone to errors. Global levels of
corporate disclosure will usually tend to vary depending on
company size, geography, and industry.
Climate impact and exposure metrics calculated by London
CIV have all been developed in line with best practice,
and with reference to the recommendations provided
by established organisations such as the TCFD and the
Greenhouse Gas Protocol. However, their degree of
precision is not homogeneous. For all reported metrics,
London CIV pledges for complete transparency on the
limitations of the data used and the assumptions that
underpin the measurement tools.
London CIV is committed to consistently improving on
its disclosure in terms of accuracy and coverage yet in
the meantime, we cannot and will not let imperfection
be a route to inaction on understanding and mitigating
climate risk.

London CIV Climate Change Policy

Page 43

Reporting Objectives:
•	We will report on the positive and negative
impact of our investments, considering
climate mitigation and adaptation, financial
performance and wider environmental and
socioeconomic risks and benefits
•	We will seek to achieve year on year
improvements on our climate risk exposure and
will report accordingly
•	We will add additional metrics as required
to our current climate risk analysis and shall
consider broader ESG related metrics and
impacts, recognising that many ESG factors are
interlinked with climate risk and resilience
•	We will endeavour to understand and report
on climate risk for an increased number of
asset classes, investment types – improving or
maintaining AUM coverage over time
•	We will seek continual improvements of climate
disclosure across the industry. We will continue
to work with our fund managers and engage
with our securities to encourage better data
disclosure and reduce reliance on modelling

15

16

Page 44

London CIV Climate Change Policy

Governance and Strategy

The Board takes its responsibility for climate change risk seriously and is
determined that London CIV will make a demonstrable difference to the
management of these risks, working with Client Funds to create a future
worth living in for LGPS scheme beneficiaries in London.
Lord Kerslake, London CIV Board Chair

The London CIV Board approves and is collectively
accountable for London CIV’s Climate Change Policy.
The IOC oversees the implementation of London CIV’s
investment strategy on behalf of the Board including its
approach to climate change risk mitigation.
The Executive Team, led by the Chief Executive Officer
(CEO), is responsible for the day-to-day management of
London CIV, including delivery and development of London
CIV’s climate change strategy. The Chief Investment Officer
(CIO) is responsible for managing the integration of climate
change into the portfolio construction, implementation and
overall investment decision making.

Strategy development and operational accountability is led
by the Head of Responsible Investment (HRI) who reports
to the CIO and is supported by two Responsible Investment
Managers, one of whom oversees climate risk analytics. The
integration and mitigation of climate change risk is explicit
in the roles of all members of the Investment Team.
The development of this policy has been supported by key
stakeholders specifically through the support of the RIRG,
membership of which includes representatives from Client
Funds, London CIV, and the appointed ESG Champion from
the Board. The group meets monthly to discuss a number
of ESG issues with a specific focus on climate change risk.
This policy relates to and interacts with other documents,
in particular the Responsible Investment Policy and
Stewardship Policy.

Page 45

London CIV Climate Change Policy

17

London CIV committee structure
Formal Governance

Shareholder
General Meeting
and Shareholder
Agreement

Exercise Shareholder powers
AGM plus budget meeting
Hold Board to account

Two meetings annually

Fund launch
governance and
engagement
framework

Shareholder
Committee

Consultation on strategy and business plan (MTFS)

Quarterly Meetings

Matters reserved to shareholders

Financial and corporate performance
Responsible Investment, Reporting & Transparency
Emerging issues, shareholder priorities

London CIV Board
Remuneration &
Nomination Committee

Executive Committee

Informal
Client Fund
Engagement

Responsible
Investment
Reference
Group
(RIRG)

Cost Transparency
Working Group
(CTWG)

Investment Oversight
Committee (IOC)

Compliance Audit & Risk
Committee (CARCO)

Page 46

18

London CIV Climate Change Policy

Appendix

Definitions:
Climate Change
(Anthropogenic):

A change in climate that is attributed directly or indirectly to human activity that alters the composition of
the global atmosphere, and that is in addition to natural climate variability over comparable time periods.
Global warming is the increase in the near surface temperature of the Earth. Global Warming has
occurred in the distant past due to natural causes, but recently refers to the warming predicted to occur
due to the increased emissions of greenhouse gases.

Climate-related risks:

Potential negative impacts of climate change on an organisation. Physical risks emanating from climate
change can be event-driven (acute), such as increased severity of extreme weather events (e.g. cyclones,
droughts, floods and fires). They can also relate to longer-term (chronic) shifts in precipitation and
temperature and increased variability in weather patterns; or other long-term changes such as sea level
rise. Climate-related risks can also be associated with the transition to a lower-carbon global economy,
the most common of which relates to policy and legal actions, technology changes, market responses,
and reputational considerations. This is in line with the TCFD’s definition.

ESG Factors:

Environmental, social and governance issues that are identified or assessed in responsible investment
processes. (1) Environmental factors are issues relating to the quality and functioning of the natural
environment and natural systems. (2) Social factors are issues relating to the rights, well-being and
interests of people and communities. (3) Governance factors are issues relating to the governance of
companies and other invested entities.

Mitigation (of
climate change):

Refers to efforts to reduce or prevent emission of greenhouse gases. Mitigation can mean using new
technologies and renewable energies, making older equipment more energy efficient, or changing
management practices or consumer behaviour.

Adaptation:

Anticipating the adverse effects of climate change and taking appropriate action to prevent or minimise
the damage they can cause or taking advantage of opportunities that may arise.

Carbon Footprint:

Total carbon emissions for a portfolio normalised by the market value expressed in tonnes CO2e (carbon
dioxide equivalent) / $M invested. This is in line with the TCFD’s definition.

IPCC
(Intergovernmental
Panel on Climate
Change):

International body for assessing the science related to climate change. The IPCC was set up in 1988 by
the World Meteorological Organization (WMO) and United Nations Environment Programme (UNEP) to
provide policymakers with regular assessments of the scientific basis of climate change, its impacts and
future risks, and options for adaptation and mitigation.

UN SDGs:

UN Sustainable Goals. These include the SDG targets and indicators, thresholds set by the UNFCCC Paris
Agreement, expectations set out in the Universal Declaration of Human Rights, and other environmental,
social, governance, and development objectives established by political or socio-economic institutions.

UN Principles
for Responsible
Investment (UN PRI):

Set of six principles that provide a global standard for responsible investing as it relates to environmental,
social and corporate governance (ESG) factors. Organisations follow these principles to meet commitments
to beneficiaries while aligning investment activities with the broader interests of society.

The Local Authority
Pension Fund Forum
(LAPFF):

The UK’s leading collaborative shareholder engagement group. LAPFF promotes corporate governance
standards to protect the long-term value of local authority pension funds.

London CIV Climate Change Policy

Page 47

UK Stewardship
Code:

The UK Stewardship Code 2020 sets stewardship standards for asset owners and asset managers, and
for service providers that support them. The Code comprises a set of ‘apply and explain’ Principles for
asset managers and asset owners. The Code also recognises that environmental, particularly climate
change, and social factors, in addition to governance, have become material issues for investors to
consider when making investment decisions and undertaking stewardship.

Climate Action 100+:

Investor initiative created to ensure the world’s largest corporate greenhouse gas emitters take
necessary action on climate change. These include 100 ‘systemically important emitters’, alongside more
than 60 others with significant opportunity to drive the clean energy transition.

Taskforce on Climate
Related Financial
Disclosures (TCFD):

Organisation established with the goal of developing a set of voluntary climate-related financial risk
disclosures which can be adopted by companies so that those companies can inform investors and other
members of the public about the risks they face related to climate change.

GHG Protocol:

Establishes comprehensive global standardised frameworks to measure and manage greenhouse gas
(GHG) emissions from private and public sector operations, value chains and mitigation actions.

Transition Pathway
Initiative (TPI):

Global, asset-owner led initiative which assesses companies' preparedness for the transition to a low
carbon economy.

EU Taxonomy:

Framework designed to direct private capital toward long-term, environmentally sustainable activities and
prevent false claims about the environmental nature of an investment product.

Paris Agreement:

In 2015, Parties to the UNFCCC agreed in Paris to keep the global temperature rise this century well
below 2°C above pre-industrial levels and to pursue efforts to limit the temperature increase even further
to 1.5°C. The agreement requires all Parties to put forward “Nationally Determined Contributions” (NDCs).
There will also be a global stocktaking every five years to assess the collective progress towards achieving
the agreement and to inform about further individual actions by Parties.

19

Page 48

20

London CIV Climate Change Policy

Detailed Statement of Investment Beliefs and What This Means For
Climate Change
What this means in practice for our work in
Belief

Details

Principle

climate change

1.Long term
investors get
better risk
adjusted returns

We believe in a long-term approach to We invest for
the long term
investment to deliver better returns,
improved outcomes, and reduced
trading costs. Our long-term view
includes our responsibility to support
a sustainable and sufficient return.
Long term investing offers a greater
opportunity for outperformance.

2. Robust risk
management
and mitigation
improve risk
adjusted returns

We believe that robust risk
management and risk mitigation
can improve outcomes. Robust risk
management is critical for Client
Funds to have complete confidence
in us to deliver their investment
strategy needs and to maintain our
authorisation requirements.

We manage
risks
appropriately

We will be comprehensive in our
consideration of our funds’ risks
considering financial and non-financial
risk as appropriate. Climate change is a
source of downside investment risk and
upside opportunity. Thus, climate change
considerations are integrated throughout
the investment lifecycle (design, select,
manage, and sell).

3. We believe
Responsible
Investment
improves risk
adjusted returns

We believe that being a responsible
investor improves outcomes,
supports risk adjusted returns
and is part of our fiduciary duty.
Responsible investment is about the
consideration of all material financial,
environmental, social and governance
(ESG) risks to long term growth and
thus supports our first belief in being
long-term investors.

Responsible
Investment
is integrated
into everything
we do

Climate change is one of the most material
factors when considering responsible
investment, which we integrate into every
stage of the investment process. We
maintain high expectations of companies
and fund managers and request defined
policies on matters relating to climate
change to ensure that all associated risks
are adequately compensated to improve
risk adjusted returns.

We recognise that climate change may
affect our portfolios, the resilience of the
financial system and the health of our
economy, society and environment over
the short, medium and long term. Climate
change is relevant to all of our investments
in all asset classes and geographies.

London CIV Climate Change Policy

Page 49

21

What this means in practice for our work in
Belief

Details

Principle

climate change

3a. We believe
good corporate
governance
improves risk
adjusted returns

We believe that investee companies
and asset managers with robust
governance structures should be
better positioned to handle the
effects of shocks and stresses of
future events. We also believe that
companies and asset managers which
exhibit good governance are poised
for better returns and less likely to
pose a financial material risk to our
funds. If issues arise we adopt a
stewardship approach to generate a
greater positive impact.

We strive to
be exemplars
of corporate
governance

We allocate clear responsibilities and
accountabilities for the oversight and
implementation of this Climate Change
Policy. We integrate climate change into
our appraisal and remuneration processes,
and through effective monitoring and
review of the implementation of this
policy. Thus, we adopt best practice
collective governance with appropriate
oversight, prioritisation, delegation and
accountability and we expect the same of
our investee companies.

3b. We believe in
good stewardship
and in proactive
engagement

We believe that proactive
engagement with investment
managers and companies alike to
encourage responsible investment
will enable better outcomes and
deliver impact where it is needed. We
value the opportunity to influence
companies and have a positive impact
not only on the world around us but
on the value of our funds.

We are
exemplar
stewards of
capital

We require our asset managers to use
their rights and influence to encourage
securities to take a proactive approach
to managing the business risks and
opportunities presented by climate
change as a central part of how they
generate sustainable financial returns
over the long-term. In addition, we work
with the broader investment community
and demonstrate leadership in order to
drive action on climate change through
collaboration.

3c. We believe
management of
climate change
risk is a key
element of our
investment
strategy

We believe financial markets could
be materially impacted by climate
change through the response
of policymakers and increasing
physical risks. Responsible investors
should proactively manage this risk
factor through measurement and
management of climate related
financial disclosures which are
forward looking and robust.

Climate
change risk is
integrated into
the design,
selection and
management
of investments

We believe climate change is the most
financially material ESG risk at present and
will therefore quantify and disclose the risk
of climate change exposure associated
with our funds. We will also mitigate risk
through our stewardship activities, using
partnerships of like-minded investors. We
will support ongoing efforts to adhere
to the Paris Agreement and recognise
efforts of investees that seek continual
improvement setting ambitious targets in
a science-based and data driven way.

Page 50

22

London CIV Climate Change Policy

What this means in practice for our work in
Belief

Details

Principle

climate change

3d. We believe
diversity
improves risk
adjusted returns

There is clear evidence showing that
decision-making and performance
are improved when company boards
and investment teams are composed
of diverse individuals. We believe
companies and asset managers will
improve outcomes by championing
diversity in people and skill sets.

We expect to
see diversity

We believe there are strong cases for
organisational equality, diversity and
inclusivity and action on climate change.
Diverse and inclusive cultures bring about
ideas, effective problem solving and
ultimately greater chances of success.
We recognise that our opportunity in
diversity is strongest when we consider
our influence on fund management and
the materiality of our funds.

4. We believe
taking the right
risk for the
right return
will maximise
opportunities

We believe that markets can be
inefficient in creating opportunities
to deliver alpha (higher risk-adjusted
returns, net of fees). Good risk
management improves outcomes
and adds value. We will make our
collective investments work as hard
as possible to meet our funds'
objectives: Providing the right
structure of Portfolios, investments,
and managers within asset classes.
Whilst we take account of market
and economic levels in our decision
making, we will avoid making
decisions on purely a short-term
basis.

We should
manage risk
and return
together

When evaluating climate change-related
investment opportunities, we ensure
that these investments meet the risk and
return objectives of the fund, over the
short, medium and long-term.

5. We believe
that costs are
important
and should be
managed

We believe that in this fiduciary role,
we have a duty to manage costs in
order to serve our Client Funds and
their beneficiaries.

We should
manage full
Investment
cost

We will seek to gain leverage from our
collective status through reductions in
fees and avoid added costs through
increased resilience and collaboration of
strengths, knowledge, and expertise. We
recognise that scale is critical to reducing
the costs we pay, and also to ensuring
that investment that we make and the
innovations we catalyse have real impact.

London CIV Climate Change Policy

Page 51

23

What this means in practice for our work in
Belief

Details

Principle

climate change

5a. We believe
managing fees
and assessing
remuneration
will support cost
effectiveness

The management fees of investment
managers and the remuneration
policies of investee companies
are of significance for Client
Funds, particularly in a low return
environment. Fees and remuneration
should be aligned with the long-term
interests of our clients, and value for
money is critical.

We should
manage fees
and assess
remuneration

Meeting the needs of the Client Funds
efficiently is the core purpose of the pool
and we will seek the most cost-effective
solutions to achieve their objectives whilst
implementing these principles collectively.
We are prepared to pay for active
management and other services when we
believe that the costs incurred are likely to
be justified by the benefits.

5b. We
believe fund
structuring and
implementation
costs matter to
ensure flexibility
and to manage
costs

We believe that the measurement
and management of costs should be
used to improve both net returns and
outcomes.

We should
measure and
manage costs
to improve net
returns and
outcomes

We will utilise the Cost Transparency
Initiative (“CTI”) templates to ensure we
measure and manage full investment costs
to the benefit of all our Investors.

6. We believe
diversification
can improve
returns and
reduce risk

We recognise that diversification
can improve returns and reduce
risk. Yet we remain aware that over
diversification can result in greater
costs and eclipse the benefits of
diversification.

We should
diversify
investments
appropriately

We offer diversified pooled funds and a
variety of sub-funds to meet the risk return
appetite of our investors. Offering too
many funds that are too diversified will
damage risk adjusted returns after costs.

7. All of our
investment
decisions and
beliefs are
based on clear
objectives,
expertise,
knowledge and
robust research

Clear objectives, appropriate decision
making, and robust governance
are necessary enablers for superior
investment returns. Ensuring
appropriate skills and knowledge
is critical for Client Funds to have
complete confidence in us to deliver
their needs. We believe that evidencebased decision making and ensuring
our knowledge is up to date will
ensure their needs are met quickly
and efficiently.

We should
have clear
objectives
and decision
making

We make our decisions based on extensive
expertise and high quality, knowledgeable
advice. We take an evidence and researchbased approach to understanding the
investment implications of climate change:
Continually learning and reappraising
from academic research, investment
professionals, and our peers.

Page 52

24

London CIV Climate Change Policy

What this means in practice for our work in
Belief

Details

Principle

climate change

8. We believe
transparency and
accountability
build client trust

Being transparent, open and
accountable to the Client Funds we
serve is essential. We believe in the
importance of being transparent
and accountable, to ensure the
right actions are taken, manage risk
and facilitate better decisions. This
applies both in our own operations,
the investors we work with, and
our investments. We believe that
clearly articulated and consistent
reporting of our investment goals and
performance measures will support
accountability.

We are
transparent
and
accountable

We will report annually on the
commitments set out in this policy. We will
formally review the implementation of this
policy in 2023 and we will set a short- and
medium-term climate target in 2021.

9. We will
innovate,
collaborate and
lead

We are innovative and demonstrate
thought leadership. We recognise
the benefits in collaborating with
others whenever possible, to share
ideas, best practice and learn from
others who are leading. We believe
that collaboration across the industry
can help us to manage costs and
maximise efficiency.

We will
Innovate

We will work to innovate and collaborate
with other funds, pools and the market
to create cost effective, leading solutions
required by the pool and its Client Funds.
We will also encourage asset managers
to innovate and offer new investment
solutions, to effectively manage the climate
related risks and opportunities in their
portfolios, and to constructively engage
with the companies and other entities
in which they invest. In addition, we will
ensure that our own staff understand
and continue to learn about the impact of
climate change risk.

10. We
believe that a
collaborative
approach to
investment
improves returns
and reduces risk

We believe that a collaborative
approach to investment improves
returns and reduces risk. We value
the opportunities presented by
pooling in managing costs and
creating efficiencies.

We will
collaborate

We collaborate with other funds, pools and
the market to build the wider investment
industry’s capacity and expertise on climate
change. We also work with others to ensure
that public policy and the financial system
are explicitly focused on enabling and
financing both the low carbon transition
and effective adaptation to the unavoidable
impacts of climate change.

London CIV Climate Change Policy

Page 53

25

Page 54

Important information
Issued by London LGPS CIV Limited, which
is authorised and regulated by the Financial
Conduct Authority number 710618. London CIV is
the trading name of London LGPS CIV Limited.
This material is for limited distribution and is
issued by London CIV and no other person
should rely upon the information contained
within it. This document is not intended for
distribution to, or use by, any person or entity
in any jurisdiction or country where such
distribution would be unlawful under the
laws governing the offer of units in collective
investment undertakings. Any distribution, by
whatever means, of this document and related
material to persons who are not eligible under
the relevant laws governing the offer of units
in collective investment undertakings is strictly
prohibited. Any research or information in this
document has been undertaken and may have
been acted on by London CIV for its own purpose.
The results of such research and information are
being made available only incidentally. The data
used may be derived from various sources, and
assumed to be correct and reliable, but it has
not been independently verified; its accuracy or
completeness is not guaranteed and no liability
is assumed for any direct or consequential losses
arising from its use. The views expressed do not
constitute investment or any other advice and are
subject to change and no assurances are made as
to their accuracy.

Getting in
touch with
the team
If you have any questions or
comments about this report please
email Jacqueline Amy Jackson, Head
of Responsible Investment at
RI@LondonCIV.org.uk.
London CIV Fourth Floor,
22 Lavington Street SE1 0NZ

Past performance is not a guide to future
performance. The value of investments and
the income from them may go down as well as
up and you may not get back the amount you
invest. Changes in the rates of exchange between
currencies may cause the value of investments
to diminish or increase. Fluctuation may be
particularly marked in the case of a higher
volatility fund and the value of an investment may
fall suddenly and substantially. Levels and basis of
taxation may change from time to time.
Subject to the express requirements of any other
agreement, we will not provide notice of any
changes to our personnel, structure, policies,
process, objectives or, without limitation, any
other matter contained in this document.
No part of this material may be reproduced,
stored in retrieval system or transmitted in any
form or by any means, electronic, mechanical,
recording or otherwise, without the prior written
consent of London CIV.
London LGPS CIV Ltd. is a private limited
company, registered in England and Wales,
registered number 9136445.
2021162

Page 55

Agenda Item 5

PENSIONS BOARD 12 AUGUST 2021
Report title: Lambeth Pension Fund – Funding Issues Update
Wards: All
Portfolio: Cabinet Member for Finance and Performance: Councillor Andy Wilson
Report Authorised by: Strategic Director for Finance and Investment: Fiona
McDermott:
Contact for Enquiries: Robert Browning, Head of Treasury and Pensions, 07394
402801, rbrowning@lambeth.gov.uk

REPORT SUMMARY
This report is an information item prepared and presented by the Fund’s actuary,
Hymans Robertson, to update members on important funding issues that have arisen
since the last formal valuation was undertaken as at 31 March 2019.

FINANCE SUMMARY
There are no direct financial implications arising from this report outside of the issues
raised in the report concerning the ongoing impact on the funding position of the
Fund.

1.

RECOMMENDATIONS
That the report, together with the information in the accompanying presentation
prepared by the Fund’s actuary, be noted.

Page 56

1
CONTEXT
1.1 Regulation 62 of the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2016
states that an administering authority must obtain an actuarial valuation of the
assets and liabilities of its pension fund as at 31 March on a triennial basis. The
valuation will determine the rate at which employers should contribute to the
Fund to ensure that pension benefits can be paid as and when they arise.
1.2 The most recent valuation was undertaken by the Fund’s actuary as at 31
March 2019, with the next falling due as at 31 March 2022. Advanced planning
and preparation for the valuation will begin in this financial year, which will
include separate valuation training arranged for Committee and Board
members.
1.3 It is the Pensions Committee which has responsibility for setting the Fund’s
funding strategy, which in turn will impact the investment strategy of the Fund.
The purpose of this paper is to update members on issues that have arisen
since the last valuation and setting of the funding strategy, and which will need
to be considered as part of the upcoming valuation process.
2
PROPOSALS AND REASONS
2.1 The attached paper, to be presented by the Fund’s actuary, provides a brief
introduction to pension scheme funding in the Local Government Pension
Scheme (LGPS), sets out important updates on funding related issues, and
outlines key topics to be aware of going forward.
3
FINANCE
3.1 This report sets out factors that are likely to impact the funding position of the
Fund and its formal valuation as at 31 March 2022. There are no direct financial
implications in agreeing to the recommendation of this report.
4
LEGAL AND DEMOCRACY
4.1 The Lambeth Pension Fund is run in accordance with the Local Government
Pension Scheme Regulations 2013 enacted along with other Regulations under
the Superannuation Act 1972 and the Public Service Pension Act 2013, and is
for the benefit of Council employees and outside organisations which have
entered into an agreement with Lambeth to provide pensions for their staff.
4.2 The Pensions Committee must be mindful of their fiduciary duty to obtain the
best possible financial return on the investments it administers within the
investment strategy framework.
4.3 There are no additional comments from Democratic Services.
5
CONSULTATION AND CO-PRODUCTION
5.1 Not applicable.

Page 57

6
RISK MANAGEMENT
6.1 The contents of this report and accompanying presentation have been provided
to assist in the management of risk pertaining to the Fund’s liabilities.
7
EQUALITIES IMPACT ASSESSMENT
7.1 None for the purposes of this report.
8
COMMUNITY SAFETY
8.1 None for the purposes of this report.
9

ORGANISATIONAL IMPLICATIONS

Environmental
9.1 None for the purposes of this report.
Health
9.2 None for the purposes of this report.
Corporate Parenting
9.3 None for the purposes of this report.
Staffing and accommodation
9.4 None for the purposes of this report.
Responsible Procurement
9.5 None for the purposes of this report.
10 TIMETABLE FOR IMPLEMENTATION
10.1 Not Applicable.

Page 58

AUDIT TRAIL
Consultation
Name/Position
Councillor Andrew
Wilson, Cabinet
Member
Fiona McDermott,
Strategic Director
Christina Thompson,
Director of Finance
Hamant Bharadia,
Assistant Director of
Finance
Andrew Pavlou,
Legal Services
Marianna Ritchie,
Democratic Services

Lambeth
directorate/
division or
partner

Date Sent

Date
Received

Finance and
Performance

22.06.2021

22.06.2021

16.06.2021

24.06.2021

16.06.2021

23.06.2021

16.06.2021

22.06.2021

16.06.2021

23.06.2021

16.06.2021

23.06.2021

Finance and
Investment
Finance and
Investment
Finance and
Investment
Legal and
Democratic
Services
Legal and
Democratic
Services

REPORT HISTORY
Original discussion with Cabinet Member
Report deadline
Date final report sent
Part II Exempt from Disclosure/confidential
accompanying report?
Key decision report
Date first appeared on forward plan
Key decision reasons
Background information
Appendices

Comments
in para:

N/A
16 June 2021
No
No
N/A
N/A
N/A
 Appendix One – Funding
Issues Update July 2021

Page 59
London Borough of Lambeth Pension Fund

Funding issues update July 2021
Purpose and Scope
This paper has been commissioned by and is addressed to London Borough of Lambeth in its capacity as
Administering Authority to the London Borough of Lambeth Pension Fund (“the Fund”). Its purpose is to
summarise and update the London Borough of Lambeth Pension Fund Pension Committee on:
A. an introduction to funding and the history of how the funding plan has evolved in the Fund;
B. important funding issues which have arisen since the formal valuation, such as COVID-19, legislative
changes, and GAD Section 13 “like for like” analysis of the LGPS; and
C. key funding topics for the Committee to be aware of in the remainder of 2021/22, such as climate risk, the
national Cost Management process, and planning for the 2022 valuation.
There is a glossary at the end of this paper which defines technical terms used in this paper and throughout other
funding communications.
A. An introduction to pension scheme funding
The Fund is part of the national Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS). The LGPS was set up by the UK
Government to provide retirement and death benefits for employees of local government authorities, and similar
or related bodies, across the whole of the UK. London Borough of Lambeth as the Administering Authority runs
the London Borough of Lambeth Pension Fund, in effect the LGPS for the London Borough of Lambeth area.
The majority of the Fund relates to the London Borough of Lambeth, but there are a range of different employers
who can participate in the Fund, such as: charities, mutual, housing associations, contractors (for the term of their
contract) and academy schools.
There are over 20 employers in the Fund.
The Pension Committee is responsible for setting the administration, funding and investment strategies for the
Fund. For the purpose of this paper we will only consider the funding strategy which sets out how employer
contribution rates are determined.
Employer contribution rates
Employer contributions are set by the Fund Actuary (Steven Law of Hymans Robertson). The Fund has an
obligation to ensure each employer meets the cost of the benefits earned by their own employees, and that crosssubsidy is limited.
Each employer has its own asset share within the Fund which grows with contributions paid from the employer
and its employees, and the investment returns earned on those assets. Benefits are then paid out to exemployees (and their dependants) from that asset share.
Each employer will meet the cost of promised benefit payments that are not met by employee contributions
(which are set by the LGPS Regulations) and investment returns: this is known as the “balance of the cost”. The
Actuary calculates how much each employer’s contributions need to be to ensure that that employer’s asset
share is likely to be sufficient to meet the promised benefits. This means that contribution rates can vary greatly
between employers, because each is paying its own way, not the way of other employers.
Employer contribution rates are reassessed as part of the actuarial valuation, which is carried out every three
years (the last one being as at 31 March 2019, setting contributions for the three years beginning 1 April 2020).

Page 60
London Borough of Lambeth Pension Fund

Contribution rates can stay the same, or go up or down, depending how investment markets, the employer’s
membership and the employer’s circumstances have changed.
The Fund is required by LGPS Regulations to have a Funding Strategy Statement (“FSS”). The FSS sets out how
contributions are calculated for each of the Fund’s employers.
The Fund’s current FSS is available on its website here: funding-strategy-statement-march-2020.pdf
(lgpslambeth.org). The first two sections of the FSS in particular give an expanded description of the above
points.
How the Funding Strategy has evolved
The Fund Actuary carries out a formal valuation every three years where the Funding Strategy is reviewed.
Typically, the Funding Strategy will vary for different types of employers. Examples include:
London Borough of Lambeth
As a long-term secure employer, contributions for the Council are set with stability and affordability as key
objectives.
For the Council, the Fund has adopted a “stabilisation” mechanism for setting contributions, which means
contributions do not change by more than an agreed amount or percentage of pay each year. This approach is
tested by considering thousands of future economic scenarios and ensuring that in the majority of scenarios there
are sufficient assets to meet benefit payments.
Prior to using the stabilisation mechanism, contributions were set considering a single set of market derived
assumptions only. This meant that contributions could vary significantly from one valuation to the next.
General approach for non-Council employers
Contributions for this group are set such that:
•

there are projected to be sufficient assets (“the funding target”)

•

in a set proportion of future scenarios (“the likelihood of success”)

•

at the end of an appropriate time period (“the time horizon”)

The FSS sets out the funding target, likelihood of success and the time horizon for all types of employers. This
approach allows contributions to be set which reflect the risk of each employer and their own circumstances.
A brief summary of the approach for groups of employers is set out below:
Academies: these employers are open to new entrants and have a guarantee from Government and are therefore
generally considered low risk. Therefore, their funding target and time horizon (17 years) are the same as those
used for the Council. However, the Government has reserved a right to pull their guarantee, therefore,
academies may be viewed as higher risk than the Council. Therefore, a higher likelihood of success is required
for academies when compared to the Council (70% versus 66%).
Charities/mutuals/housing associations etc: these employers a usually closed to new joiners and will therefore
leave the Fund in the future. To protect the Fund these employers may have funding targets that are more
prudent to that of the Council and academies. In addition, their time horizon is set as the period the employer is
expected to still have active members in the Fund, subject to a maximum of 17 years. There is significantly more
covenant risk associated with this group as their funding sources may not be guaranteed. Therefore, a higher
likelihood of success (75%) is required for these bodies when compared to the Council and academies.

Page 61
London Borough of Lambeth Pension Fund

Contractors: Any employer in the Fund that lets a contractor is automatically the guarantor of last resort. If a
contractor fails, the employer who let the contract becomes responsible for any future deficits in relation to the
contractor’s members. Therefore, the funding target used is the same as that for the employer who let the
contract, however, the time horizon is limited to the term of the contract subject to a maximum of 17 years. In
order to protect the letting employer, a higher likelihood of success (70-75%) is used.
Recent employer funding issues
At the conclusion of the last actuarial valuation (effective 31 March 2019) the Actuary signed a valuation report in
March 2020 which included a legally required document called a “Rates & Adjustments Certificate”; this R&A lists
all the employers in Fund, and for each of them confirms the employer contribution payable in each of the three
years beginning 1 April 2020.
The actuarial valuation report including R&A is available on the Fund’s website here:
https://lgpslambeth.org/media/5411/valuation-report-2019.pdf.
Since then, some notable employer-specific developments have occurred:
•
•
•
•
•

Hyde Housing and Marcus Lipton have ceased to participate within the Fund;
Metra Housing and Ethelred TMO have requested Deferred Debt Agreement (details of Deferred Debt
Agreement are set out later in this paper);
one employer has requested a contribution rate review (details of contribution rate reviews are set out
later in this paper;
Harris Academy and a Waste Contract have joined the Fund as new employers; and
Oasis Academy (Johanna) and Oasis Academy (Southbank) are considering transferring to another
LGPS fund as part of an exercise to consolidate their LGPS liabilities into a single host fund.

B. Hot topics in LGPS funding
Impact of Covid-19
In general terms, the COVID-19 pandemic and lockdown has affected funding in three material ways:
•

Market fluctuations

•

Employer covenant risk

•

Potential life expectancy changes

Market fluctuations
Markets across the globe reacted very strongly to the pandemic and consequent lockdowns, reflecting the muchreduced prospect of economic and other activity. In particular, market falls in Spring 2020 were very severe, so
that the Fund’s own funding level fell from 82% at 31 March 2019 to an estimated 73% towards the end of March
2020.
However, throughout the remainder of 2020 the markets strongly bounced back, so that at 31 March 2021 the
funding level had recovered to approximately 95%. The progression of the Fund’s funding level is shown in the
chart below:

Page 62
London Borough of Lambeth Pension Fund

Therefore, whilst market uncertainty is still clearly present, and funding levels will understandably continue to be
as volatile as before 2020, it does appear that Spring 2020 did not represent a “re-setting” of markets at a
reduced level.
Employer covenant risk
The Fund relies on its employers to continue making contributions to their asset shares to provide the funding for
members’ future benefits. It is possible that an employer’s business is so severely harmed by the impact of the
pandemic and lockdown that it may struggle to afford its contributions or even that its continued operation is in
doubt.
The Fund’s experience of this to date is cautiously positive, namely we have not been notified of any employers in
distress as a direct consequence of the pandemic. However, Fund officers and the Actuary will continue to
monitor employers as the country emerges from lockdown measures, the furlough scheme is wound down, and
the spread of the virus is contained or mutates.
Potential life expectancy changes
As we are all too sadly aware, the COVID-19 pandemic has resulted in a significant rise in mortality during 2020.
At the next formal valuation, we will be able to assess the impact on the Fund of its pensioner (and other
beneficiaries) deaths being greater than expected. A presentation from Club VITA (covering a longevity update
for the Fund) was given in March 2021.
There is also a potential impact on future life expectancy and this won’t be known for some time. There are two
potential future directions:
(a) the impact of COVID-19 causes a long-term decrease in life expectancy as a result of the virus continuing
to circulate and other long-term health impacts (for example, long COVID or delayed hospital treatment).
(b) life expectancy will improve as a result of, for example, improved hygiene measures or the health benefits
from more flexible working patterns.
Realistically it is likely that both will apply to some extent, and it is a matter of whether one outweighs the other (or
they broadly balance out).
The Fund’s own longevity assumptions are derived by the Actuary on the basis of analysis carried out by Club
Vita. The Actuary will work with Club Vita in the approach to the next actuarial valuation and will agree
appropriate life expectancy assumptions which bear in mind the impact of COVID-19 nationally and for your Fund.

Page 63
London Borough of Lambeth Pension Fund

Recent legislation on employer flexibilities and exit credits
When an employer leaves the Fund, typically a “cessation valuation” is carried out to determine the employer’s
position in the Fund. The employer’s asset share is compared to the value of the benefits promised to employees
and ex-employees (“the liabilities”). Any shortfall is known as the “deficit” and any excess is known as the
“surplus.”
Exit credits
Prior to 2018, any employer leaving with a surplus had no entitlement to have this paid back to them. Legislation
changed in May 2018 so that the Fund had to pay employers any surplus when they leave the Fund. The surplus
payment is known as an “exit credit”.
In England & Wales, further legislation was added in 2020 to clarify that size of any exit credit payment was at the
Fund’s discretion, and it had to consider a number of factors in making its determination including the size of the
surplus, how much of the surplus was attributable to contributions paid by the exiting employer, any
representations made by the exiting employer and any other employer providing a guarantee. The Fund’s FSS
has been amended to address these circumstances.
Employer flexibilities
If an employer has a deficit on exit, the Fund will normally request payment in a single lump sum. For some
exiting employers, this lump sum payment is unaffordable.
Legislation was brought in on 23 September 2020, to allow Funds to treat employers flexibly where they
considered it appropriate. The following two options are now permitted:
1. The Fund can permit the employer to pay the deficit in instalments; or
2. The employer can exit the Fund without having to pay any deficit immediately, by entering into a Deferred
Debt Agreement (DDA). A DDA is where the employer remains in the Fund and pays contributions
towards their deficit, but no further benefits are earned by the employees. The important point to note is
that the employer retains the benefit (or otherwise) of investment returns on the assets.
These two changes clarify arrangements that were already widely used in the LGPS. The Fund has two
employers who are effectively on a Deferred Debt Agreement, namely Ethelred and Metra Housing.
The same update to the Regulations also allows for employers or the Fund to request an update to an employer’s
contribution rate between formal actuarial valuations in limited circumstances including:
•

If they have a large change in membership (i.e. a bulk transfer into the Fund or out);

•

Their circumstances change (i.e. if an employer decides to no longer allow new entrants into the scheme);

•

If they will exit the Fund in the near future (this was an existing provision prior to the change in
Regulations);

•

If their covenant changes materially; and

•

If the employer requests a review.
To date, the Fund has had one request for a contribution rate review.

Statutory guidance issued by MHCLG and other guidance issued by the Scheme Advisory Board have set out
that the Fund’s approach to Employer flexibilities must be set out in the Fund’s FSS or an accompanying policy.
The required amendments to the FSS are being considered at Committee.

Page 64
London Borough of Lambeth Pension Fund

Early retirement factors
If a member retires early with a full pension, this means there is a “strain” on the funding costs for his/her
employer, because the pension is being paid for more years than anticipated. The cost of the early provision of
this pension is calculated using early retirement factors calculated by the Actuary.
The £95,000 cap
In November 2020 the UK Government brought in legislation to limit the size of exit package for people leaving
the public sector by capping these at £95,000. The package was defined to include any early retirement strain
cost in the LGPS.
This situation gave rise to a clash of regulations, if a member’s strain cost brought their package value above
£95,000: the new legislation required the benefits to be restricted, but the existing LGPS Regulations required the
benefit to be paid in full.
In February 2021 the UK Government revoked this new legislation, so that in effect the £95,000 cap is treated as
if it had never been brought into place. However, a Judicial Review is underway, and we expect to hear later in
2021 whether and how the cap will apply in future.
GAD Section 13 “like for like” analysis of LGPS Funds
After each formal valuation, the Government Actuary’s Department (GAD) carries out an analysis of all English &
Welsh LGPS Funds, to help comparison of their actuarial valuation results. This is known as the “Section 13”
valuation.
This GAD analysis presents metrics on a “like-for-like” fashion, so that reasonable comparisons can be made
between LGPS funds. Their analysis for the 2019 actuarial valuations was recently shared with the Actuary, albeit
the final figures are not yet public and have not been fully verified. However, we understand that GAD have no
concerns on the Fund’s funding plans based on their most recent analysis.
C. Looking forward: Key funding issues to watch out for in 2021/22
Considering climate change risk as part of setting the funding strategy
Setting the contributions or investment strategy for the Fund involves looking to the future and considering risks.
The Fund, taking advice from its Actuary, needs to decide what to do today, based on what could happen to life
expectancy, inflation and investment returns in years to come.
No one would argue that funds should ignore a material risk, and it is broadly accepted that climate change falls
into that category. With climate risk disclosures expected to be mandatory in the LGPS by 2023 there will soon be
a regulatory requirement too.
Within the past couple of years Hymans Robertson has carried out basic climate risk analysis for several LGPS
funds, illustrating what the high-level funding impact could be under different future climate scenarios.
Building on that experience, climate risk is now becoming an integral part of the Actuary’s advice. This is clearly
important in the LGPS where open-ended time horizons mean that the potential impact of climate change is more
significant than for a closed private sector scheme. Starting later this year, the Actuary will be “stress testing”
modelling results under climate scenarios and (crucially) building the results into decision-making. Full details will
be presented throughout the formal valuation of the Fund in 2022.
The national Cost Management process
Benefits earned by members of the LGPS are set in LGPS Regulations. Other public sector pension schemes,
such as NHS and Teachers, have their benefits set in their own regulations. All public sector benefit structures

Page 65
London Borough of Lambeth Pension Fund

are subject to periodic review by the Government on the basis of analysis carried out by the Government
Actuary’s Department (GAD): this is known as the Cost Management process.
The intention of the process is that:
•

should member benefits increase in value due to certain factors (e.g. members living longer than
previously expected), then future benefits should reduce and/or member contributions increase;

•

should member benefits decrease in value due to certain factors (e.g. members not living as long as
previously expected), then future benefits should increase and/or member contributions reduce.

The principle is that the benefit structure should be managed so that the overall cost to the public purse remains
broadly consistent over time.
In brief, GAD have carried out their analysis in the latest Cost Management process, but details are not yet
available: when these are published, they will result in one of the following scenarios:
a) the cost is deemed to have materially risen, so member benefits will reduce and/or employee
contributions increase, which (all other things being equal) will cause a decrease in employer
contributions;
b) the cost is deemed to have remained broadly unchanged, so there will be no change to the benefit
structure or contributions by employees or employers;
c) the cost is deemed to have materially fallen, so member benefits will increase and/or employee
contributions reduce, which (all other things being equal) will cause an increase in employer
contributions.
We will advise when further details are available, and the results will be factored into the next actuarial valuation
and setting of employer contributions.
Planning for the 2022 actuarial valuation
The next formal valuation will take place as at 31 March 2022, with employer contributions being set for the period
1 April 2023 to 31 March 2026.
An actuarial valuation has many aspects, and therefore advance planning and work in this financial year will help
spread the burden on officers and the Committee. Areas of work leading up to the valuation date may include:
•

climate risk modelling as mentioned earlier, the Actuary will discuss this in further detail with Fund
officers including how this risk is integrated into the funding strategy of the Fund;

•

individual member data cleansing: accurate data is the bedrock of the Actuary’s calculations, so it is
crucial that the Fund is comfortable with this before the Actuary begins their work. In line with previous
valuations, a data cleansing exercise is generally carried out in advance of the actuarial valuations. This
would us membership data as at 31 March 2021;

•

cashflow data cleansing and early submission: knowing how the Fund’s cash receipts and payments
are divided among the various employers is essential to establishing each employer’s correct asset
share. In line with previous valuations, a data cleansing exercise is generally carried out in advance of
actuarial valuations. This would include data for 2019/20 and 2020/21. This also means two less years of
data will need to be provided as part of the actuarial valuation when Officer time and resource are
stretched.

Page 66
London Borough of Lambeth Pension Fund

•

employer database: one of the key outputs of the actuarial valuation is the setting of employer
contribution rates for the following three years. With c.20 employers in the Fund, and employers starting
and ceasing on a regular basis, it is important to have an accurate record of each employer’s status in the
Fund. The Actuary maintains a record of the Fund’s employers, however, it is beneficial for this to be
reviewed with Fund officers to ensure it is fully up to date and reflects any changes in employer
circumstances; and

•

training for Committee Members to ensure they are equipped with the knowledge and skills to
appreciate the papers being brought to them and decisions which they will need to make. We will liaise
with Fund officers to develop a training plan covering the various steps and decisions required as part of
the 2022 actuarial valuations.

Reliances and limitations
This paper has been prepared for the Fund for the purpose described at the start. It has not been prepared for
use for any other purpose and should not be so used. We accept no liability where the paper is used for any other
purpose.
The paper is not addressed to any third party. We accept no liability where the paper is used by a third party
unless we have expressly accepted such liability in writing.
This paper complies with Technical Actuarial Standard TAS 100 (Principles for Technical Actuarial Work) to a
proportionate and relevant degree.

Prepared by:Steven Law FFA
For and on behalf of Hymans Robertson LLP, Actuary to the London Borough of Lambeth Pension Fund

Page 67
London Borough of Lambeth Pension Fund

Glossary
Actuarial Valuation

A risk management exercise to review the Primary and Secondary contribution
rates, and other statutory information. This is carried out for the whole Fund, and for
each individual Employer too.

Administering
Authority

The council with statutory responsibility for running the Fund, in effect the Fund’s
“trustees”.

Admission Bodies

Employers where there is an Admission Agreement setting out the employer’s
obligations. These can be Community Admission Bodies (such as charities or
housing associations) or Transferee Admission Bodies (i.e. contractors where a
Letting Employer outsources some services).

Covenant

The assessed financial strength of the employer. A strong covenant indicates a
greater ability (and willingness) to pay for pension obligations in the long run. A
weaker covenant means that it appears that the employer may have difficulties
meeting its pension obligations in full over the longer term.

Designating
Employer

Employers that are able to participate in the LGPS via resolution. These employers
can designate which of their employees are eligible to join the Fund.

Employer

An individual participating body in the Fund, which employs (or used to employ)
members of the Fund. Normally the assets and funding target values for each
employer are individually tracked, together with its Primary rate at each valuation.

Funding basis

The combined set of assumptions made by the actuary, regarding the future, to
calculate the value of the funding target at the end of the employer’s time horizon.
The main assumptions will relate to the level of future investment returns, salary
growth, pension increases and longevity. More prudent assumptions will give a
higher funding target, whereas more optimistic assumptions will give a lower
funding target.

Guarantee /
guarantor

A formal promise by a third party (the guarantor) that it will meet any pension
obligations not met by a specified employer. The presence of a guarantor will mean,
for instance, that the Fund can consider the employer’s covenant to be as strong
as its guarantor’s.

Letting Employer

An employer which outsources or transfers a part of its services and workforce to
another employer (usually a contractor). The contractor will pay towards the LGPS
benefits accrued by the transferring members, but ultimately the obligation to pay
for these benefits will revert to the letting employer. A letting employer will usually
be a local authority but can sometimes be another type of employer such as an
Academy.

LGPS

The Local Government Pension Scheme, a public sector pension arrangement put
in place via Government Regulations, for workers in local government. These
Regulations also dictate eligibility (particularly for Scheduled Bodies), members’
contribution rates, benefit calculations and certain governance requirements. The
LGPS is divided into 100 Funds which map the UK. Each LGPS Fund is

Page 68
London Borough of Lambeth Pension Fund

autonomous to the extent not dictated by Regulations, e.g. regarding investment
strategy, employer contributions and choice of advisers.
Maturity

A general term to describe a Fund (or an employer’s position within a Fund) where
the members are closer to retirement (or more of them already retired) and the
investment time horizon is shorter. This has implications for investment strategy
and, consequently, funding strategy.

Members

The individuals who have built up (and may still be building up) entitlement in the
Fund. They are divided into actives (current employee members), deferreds (exemployees who have not yet retired) and pensioners (ex-employees who have now
retired, and dependants of deceased ex-employees).

Primary
contribution rate

The employer contribution rate required to pay for ongoing accrual of active
members’ benefits (including an allowance for administrative expenses).

Profile

The profile of an employer’s membership or liability reflects various measurements
of that employer’s members, ie current and former employees. This includes: the
proportions which are active, deferred or pensioner; the average ages of each
category; the varying salary or pension levels; the lengths of service of active
members vs their salary levels, etc. A membership (or liability) profile might be
measured for its maturity also.

Rates and
Adjustments
Certificate

A formal document required by the LGPS Regulations, which must be updated at
the conclusion of the formal valuation. This is completed by the actuary and
confirms the contributions to be paid by each employer (or pool of employers) in the
Fund for the period until the next valuation is completed.

Scheduled Bodies

Types of employer explicitly defined in the LGPS Regulations, whose employees
must be offered membership of their local LGPS Fund. These include Councils,
colleges, universities, academies, police and fire authorities etc, other than
employees who have entitlement to a different public sector pension scheme (e.g.
teachers, police and fire officers, university lecturers).

Secondary
contribution rate

The difference between the employer’s actual and Primary contribution rates.

Stabilisation

Any method used to smooth out changes in employer contributions from one year to
the next. This is very broadly required by the LGPS Regulations, but in practice is
particularly employed for large stable employers in the Fund.

Page 69

Agenda Item 6

PENSIONS BOARD 12 AUGUST 2021
Report title: Lambeth Pension Fund – Risk Register
Wards: All
Portfolio: Cabinet Member for Finance and Performance: Councillor Andy Wilson
Report Authorised by: Fiona McDermott: Strategic Director for Finance and
Investment
Contact for enquiries: Linda D’Souza, Head of Payroll and Pensions – 07854
752186, ldsouza@lambeth.gov.uk : Robert Browning, Head of Treasury and
Pensions – 07394 402801, rbrowning@lambeth.gov.uk.

REPORT SUMMARY
This report provides the Board with details of the arrangements in place to manage
the risks within the Lambeth Pension Fund as set out in the Risk Register (Appendix
One).

FINANCE SUMMARY
There are no direct financial implications in agreeing this report outside of the ongoing administration and governance of the pension fund.

RECOMMENDATIONS

1.

Pensions Committee
To note and review the Lambeth Pension Fund Risk Register and the additional
actions proposed to mitigate risk.

2.

To consider the recommendations submitted by the Board.

1.

Pensions Board
To note and review the Lambeth Pension Fund Risk Register and the additional
actions proposed to mitigate risk.

2.

To recommend any possible amendments to the Pensions Committee.

Page 70
1
CONTEXT
1.1 Effective risk management is an essential part of any governance framework as
it identifies risks and the actions required to mitigate their potential impact. For a
pension fund, those risks will come from a range of sources including:








the funding position
investment performance
membership changes
benefits administration
costs
communications; and,
financial systems.

1.2 The risks that have been identified are incorporated into the Fund’s Risk
Register.
1.3 The Pensions Board will monitor the Risk Register as part of its scrutiny role in
relation to risk and compliance and forward any specific recommendations or
concerns to the Pensions Committee. However, the Pensions Committee is the
ultimate risk owner for the Lambeth Pension Fund and therefore an updated
Risk Register is brought to the Committee at least once a year
2

PROPOSALS AND REASONS

2.1 The updated Risk Register, which is in line with Lambeth Council’s Corporate
Risk Register format, is attached in Appendix One.
2.2 Risks are assessed in terms of the potential impact of the risk event should it
occur, and in terms of the likelihood of it occurring. These are then multiplied to
produce an overall risk score which are then used to prioritise the risk rating at
high, medium or low.
THREAT

I M P A C T

L I K E L I H O O D

Minor (1)

Significant (2)

Serious (4)

Major (8)

Very Likely (4)

4

8

16

32

Likely (3)

3

6

12

24

Unlikely (2)

2

4

8

16

Very Unlikely (1)

1

2

4

8

OPPORTUNITY I M P A C T
Minor (1)

Significant (2)

Serious (4)

Major (8)

Very Likely (4)

4

8

16

32

Likely (3)

3

6

12

24

Unlikely (2)

2

4

8

16

Very Unlikely (1)

1

2

4

8

Page 71
2.3 There are no red rated risks and three amber rated risks. The three risks are
summarised below, and the mitigations are set out within Appendix One:


PA9 – Incorrect, failed, or late receipt of employee/employer contribution
payments. Current rating is 6 and the target rating is 4. The situation
regarding ML Community’s contribution arrears is nearing resolution;
however, the PLT arrears remain outstanding.



PA24 – Remedies relating to the McCloud judgement that need to be
made in relation to the LGPS – Court of Appeal ruling that the transitional
protections awarded to some scheme members were unlawful on the
grounds of age discrimination and could not be justified. The current rating
is 6 and the target rating is 2. It is the government’s intention for legislation
to be in place by April 2022 and therefore the risk status is unlikely to
change for some time.



PA26 – Guaranteed Minimum Pension (GMP) Reconciliation &
Rectification – Impact of the potential adjustments to be made to
members’ pensions as a result of the GMP reconciliation exercise. Current
rating is 6 and target rating is 2. A final report detailing the adjustments
was due to be issued in early 2021 so the rating could potentially change
at that point.

2.4 The Risk Register is reviewed regularly to ensure that any new and emerging
risks are identified and captured on the risk register, together with appropriate
mitigations and managements. Since the last Pension Board meeting on 14
April 2021, the following change to the Risk Register rating has been made.
Reference
Number
PA25 GMP
Equalisation

Previous
Rating
6

Current
Rating
2

Reason for change
Central government has dropped GMP
conversion for public sector organisations in
favour for full indexation, which is a current
business as usual process.

3
FINANCE
3.1 There are no financial implications arising from the recommendations of this
report.
4
LEGAL AND DEMOCRACY
4.1 The Lambeth Pension Fund is run in accordance with the Local Government
Pension Scheme Regulations 2013 enacted along with other Regulations under
the Superannuation Act 1972 and the Public Service Pension Act 2013 and is
for the benefit of Council employees and outside organisations which have
entered into an agreement with Lambeth to provide pensions for their staff.

Page 72
4.2 The Pension Committee must be mindful of their fiduciary duty to obtain the
best possible financial return on the investments it administers within the
investment strategy framework.
4.3 There are no additional comments from Democratic Services.
5
CONSULTATION AND CO-PRODUCTION
5.1 Consultation with appropriate officers of the Council to establish the current
risks has been undertaken. The risk register is also presented at the Pensions
Committee.
6
RISK MANAGEMENT
6.1 The recommendations contained within the risk register are intended to mitigate
financial and reputational risk where possible.
7
EQUALITIES IMPACT ASSESSMENT
7.1 None for the purposes of this report.
8
COMMUNITY SAFETY
8.1 None for the purposes of this report.
9

ORGANISATIONAL IMPLICATIONS

Environmental
9.1 None for the purposes of this report.
Health
9.2 None for the purposes of this report.
Corporate Parenting
9.3 None for the purposes of this report.
Staffing and accommodation
9.4 None for the purposes of this report.
Responsible Procurement
9.5 None for the purposes of this report.
10 TIMETABLE FOR IMPLEMENTATION
10.1 Not Applicable.

Page 73

AUDIT TRAIL
Consultation
Name/Position
Councillor Andrew
Wilson, Cabinet
Member
Fiona McDermott,
Strategic Director
Christina
Thompson, Director
of Finance
Hamant Bharadia,
Assistant Director of
Finance
Dawn Lelliott, Legal
Services
Marianna Ritchie,
Democratic
Services

Lambeth
directorate/
division or
partner

Date Sent

Date
Received

Finance and
Performance

07.07.2021

08.07.2021

07.07.2021

09.07.2021

07.07.2021

16.07.2021

07.07.2021

12.07.2021

07.07.2021

12.07.2021

07.07.2021

07.07.2021

Finance and
Investment
Finance and
Investment/
Finance and
Property
Finance and
Investment/
Finance and
Property
Legal and
Democratic
Services
Legal and
Democratic
Services

REPORT HISTORY
Original discussion with Cabinet Member
Report deadline
Date final report sent
Part II Exempt from Disclosure/confidential
accompanying report?
Key decision report
Date first appeared on forward plan
Key decision reasons
Background information
Appendices

Comments
in para:

N/A
16 July 2021
16 July 2021
No
No
N/A
N/A
N/A
 Appendix One – Lambeth
Pension Fund Risk Register

Page 74

Target Impact

Target Rating

4

1

2

2

TREND

Target
Likelihood

Impact of risk on outcomes and benefits

Current Rating

Cause of risk

Current
Likelihood
Current
Impact

Risk description

Version 2.2

TYPE

Risk
Category

30/06/2021

Owner

Ref

RISK REGISTER

Control measures / mitigations

PA4
(Operational)

Errors in producing pension
statements due to employer
producing poor data
Governance &
recording or due to inability
Compliance
to provide additional
information required as a
result of McCloud (PA24)

PA5
(Strategic)

Strategy &
Finance

Complaints leading to possible fines

Linda D'Souza
/ Linda
Osborne

Complaints leading to possible fines

Linda D'Souza
/ Linda
Osborne

Increased contribution rate

Linda D'Souza
/ Linda
Osborne

2

Utilisation of additional resource (partners / consultants).

Regular training is provided via a structured training programme to allow members to
review and challenge recommendations.
2

2

4

2

2

4

Actuarial, investment, independent and officer advice is available to assist members in
making their decisions.

The Altair system calculates the transitional protection appropriately
Regulations resulting in complex
calculations.

Threat

PA3
(Operational)

Increase in errors due to
more complex calculations
required for transitional
Governance &
protection and other
Compliance
regulations (e.g. GMP
rectification, £95k cap
pension strain).

Unable to effectively carry out Fund
management responsibilities

Linda D'Souza
/Robert
Browning

Officers assigned to Board and Committee.
2

2

2

4

1

2

2

Threat

PA2
(Operational)

Insufficient knowledge &
Governance & understanding of Pension
Compliance
Board / Committee in line
with legislative requirements.

Linda D'Souza
Committee and Board not operating effectively /Robert
Browning

2

2

4

1

2

2

Support may be obtained from the Local Government Association and Lambeth's Pension
Fund actuary, Hymans Robertson.

1) Recording of pay and pension contributions is checked thoroughly by officers and
through running Altair reports.
2) Statutory guidance on the calculation of benefits where historic information is
incomplete.

Threat

1) Possible measure of Insuring against the cost and impact
Rise in ill health retirements
impact employer
organisations

2

2

4

1

2

2

2) Actuarial Valuations (Latest valuation shows no significant increase than that
assumed).

PA6
(Operational)

People

Lack of resources/time

Concentration of knowledge in small
number of officers and risk of departure or
absence of key staff

Benefits applied incorrectly. Possible
complaints

Linda D'Souza
/ Linda
Osborne

Threat

1) Clear process notes in place.
2

2

4

1

2

2

2) Development of team members & succession planning regularly reviewed.
3) Further training and networking with other LGPS pension administration teams.

PA8
(Operational)

Customer
outcomes &
quality

Contract
Management

Inaccurate information in
public domain leads to
damage to reputation and
loss of confidence

Reputational damage. GDPR / data protection
breach.

Financial failure of third
party supplier results in
service impairment and
financial loss

Service impairment and financial loss

Linda D'Souza
/ Linda
Osborne

1

2

2

1

2

2

2) Maintain constructive relationships with employing bodies to ensure that news is well
managed.
3) Ensure Lambeth Pension Fund website is kept up to date.

Linda D'Souza
/ Linda
Osborne

Threat

PA7
(Operational)

Threat

1) Ensure that all requests for information (Freedom of Information, Member & Public
questions at Council, etc.) are managed appropriately and that Part 2 items remain so.

1

2

2

1

2

2

1) Reputable third party suppliers used and fall within pension administration framework
agreements.
2) Performance of third parties monitored via the Council's contract management system.

Page 75

People

Threat

Insufficient resource to
support requirements and
demands of Pension
Committee and Board.

PA1
(Operational)

Threat

Operational / Strategic risks

TREND

Target Rating

Target Impact

Target
Likelihood

Impact of risk on outcomes and benefits

Current Rating

Cause of risk

Current
Likelihood
Current
Impact

Risk description

Version 2.2

TYPE

Risk
Category

30/06/2021

Owner

Ref

RISK REGISTER

Control measures / mitigations

PA9
(Operational)

Incorrect, failed or late
Governance & employee/employer
Compliance
contributions payments
received

PLT and ML Community issues not yet
resolved.

Incorrect, failed or late employee/employer
contributions payments received

Linda D'Souza
/ Linda
Osborne

Threat

1) Monthly monitoring of pensions contributions against expectation.
2) Reminders sent to employers when they fail to meet payment deadline.
3

2

6

2

2

4
3) Scope to report persistent late payment to TPR
4) Quarterly internal Audit.

Bond yields fall

Governance review identifies opportunities
to improve service efficiency

Improved service

Linda D'Souza
/ Linda
Osborne

Leading to an increase in value of liabilities: a
0.1% reduction in the discount rate will
increase the liability valuation by 2%

Robert
Browning

PA15
(Strategic)

Strategy &
Finance

Pay & price inflation is
significantly more or less
than anticipated

An increase in CPI inflation by 0.1% will
increase the liability valuation by 1.4%

Robert
Browning

PA16
(Strategic)

Strategy &
Finance

Pensioners living longer

Adding one year to life expectancy will increase Robert
the future service rate by 0.8%
Browning

PA17
(Strategic)

PA18
(Strategic)

Strategy &
Finance

Strategy &
Finance

Actuarial Valuation

The London CIV and all
Investment Managers fail to
achieve performance targets
over the longer term

Impact of increases to employer contributions

Robert
Browning

A shortfall of 0.1% on the investment target will Robert
result in an annual impact of £2.6m
Browning

Threat

Strategy &
Finance

Linda D'Souza
/ Linda
Osborne

1

2

2

Threat

PA14
(Strategic)

Governance review Opportunities

Governance review identifies fundamental
issues that significantly impact the pension Adverse impact on the Pension Fund
fund

2

2

2

4

1

2

2

1) Pension Fund Disaster Recovery Plan in place.
Cloud based pensions system along with system backup.

Threat

Growth &
Opportunities

Linda D'Souza
/ Linda
Osborne

2

2

2

4

1

2

2

Prompt action to respond to/rectify identified issue and continual assessments carried out.

Opportunity

PA13
(Operational)

Pensioners do not receive their pension
The risk of loss, disruption or damage to the
payment. Payments to members and third
Fund or its members as a result of the
parties not made (refunds, retirement lump
failure of its IT systems and processes.
sum, death grant, Tax Office etc.).

1

4

2

-8

4

4

-16

Business improvements identified (pensions workflow and document management).

4

1) The actuarial funding navigator report is received quarterly and provides an early
warning of any potential problems.
2) Early consultation with the actuary will take place with regard to the next actuarial
valuation in 2022.
3) Current investment strategy review has addressed liability protection.

Threat

Governance &
Governance review - Risks
Compliance

Linda D'Souza
/ Linda
Osborne

2

2

4

2

2

2)

1) Fund employers should monitor own experience.
2) Assumptions made on pay and price inflation (for the purposes of IAS19/FRS102 and
actuarial valuations) should be long term assumptions.
3) The fund holds investment in corporate bonds to mitigate some of the risk.
4) Current investment strategy review has addressed liability protection.

Threat

PA12
(Operational)

Data breaches. Fraudulent activity resulting in
loss of benefits to Fund members or next of
kin. Possible fines.

1

2

2

1

2

2

Threat

Governance &
Systems failures
Compliance

Increased risk of fraud and loss of data
from laptops due to increased home
working.

1

4

4

1

4

4

1) The actuary Hymans Robertson use long term longevity projections in the actuarial
valuation process.
2) Lambeth has joined Club Vita, which looks at mortality rates that are employer specific.

2

1) Officers consult and engage with employer organisations in conjunction with the actuary
during the valuation process. The latest FSS will be issued to employers for comment and
an Employer Forum will be arranged during the consultation period.
2) Actuary will assist where appropriate with stabilisation and phasing in processes.
3) Allowance for possible increases to be made within budgets.
4) Committee sign-off would be sought.

4

1) The Investment Management Agreements clearly state Lambeth Pension Fund's
expectations in terms of performance targets.
2) The LCIV and Investment manager performance is reviewed on a quarterly basis.
3) Pensions Committee should be positioned to move quickly if it is felt that targets will not
be met.
4) The Fund's investment management structure is highly diversified, which lessens the
impact of manager risk compared with less diversified structures.
5) Update on the LCIV is a standing item on the Committee’s agenda, with a presentation
from the LCIV once a year at the Committee meeting.

Threat

PA11
(Operational)

Cyber Risk

Threat

Information
Governance

2

1

2

4

4

4

1

1

2

4

Page 76

PA10
(Operational)

1) Adherence to the Council's home working policy.
2) Ensure officers and Committee/Board members have an understanding of relevant
cyber security processes.
3) Paper copies with sensitive data not taken home (e.g. original birth certificates).
4) Movement towards provision of electronic documents instead of hard copy (from March
2020)
5) encrypted documentation and secure passwords.

Target
Likelihood

Target Impact

Target Rating

4

4

1

4

4

1) Use of investment consultants to monitor investment strategy.
2) Setting of Fund specific benchmark relevant to the current position of fund liabilities.
3) Overall asset allocation regularly monitored by the Pensions committee.
4) Fund manager targets set based on market benchmarks or absolute return measures.

1

2

2

1

2

2

1) Committee takes a long term view of strategic asset allocation.
2) Committee acts on advice from external parties.

Robert
Browning

PA20
(Strategic)

Strategy &
Finance

Asset reallocations in
volatile markets

May lock in past losses

Robert
Browning

Robert
Browning

Failure to comply with
Governance & legislative requirements e.g.
Compliance
ISS/FSS/Governance
Policy/FOI

Resulting in the matter being escalated to the
scheme advisory board and/or the pensions
regulator

Robert
Browning

PA23
(Operational)

Governance & Failure to sign-off accounts
Compliance
and annual report on time

Qualified audit opinion

Robert
Browning

PA24
Strategy &
(Operational &
Finance
Strategic)

PA25
Strategy &
(Operational &
Finance
Strategic)

PA26
(Operational)

Customer
outcomes &
quality

Remedies relating to the
McCloud judgement that
need to be made in relation
to the LGPS

Court of Appeal ruling that the transitional
protections awarded to some scheme
members were unlawful on the grounds of
age discrimination and could not be
justified.

Impact of increases to employer contributions

Linda
D'Souza/
Robert
Browning

Guaranteed Minimum
Pension (GMP) equalisation

High court ruling determination that UK
defined pension schemes must
compensate members for differences
Impact of increases to employer contributions
attributable to GMP. Government dropped
GMP conversion in favour for full
indexation.

Linda
D'Souza/
Robert
Browning

GMP values recorded on HMRC database
Guaranteed Minimum
differs to that recorded by Lambeth
Pension (GMP) reconciliation
Pensions resulting in under and
& Rectification
overpayment of pensions.

Rectification of under/overpayment of pensions
resulting in LGPS member complaints and
Linda D'Souza
reputational damage.

2

2

4

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1) Ensure cooperative dialogue between committee and board.
Pensions Governance manager appointed.

1

1

1

1

1

1

1) Ensure internal audit work plan is fulfilled on a quarterly basis.
2) Early dialogue and close working with the external auditor

2

1) Allowance has been made in the MTFS (1% of pay)
2)
Allowance made with actuarial tri-ennial valuation 2019
3)
Taken into account within IAS18/FRS102 calculations
4) Increase resources within the pensions team to effectively manage the equalisation
process.
5) Utilise system automated processes where possible

2

1) Allowance has been made in the MTFS (1% of pay)
2)
Allowance made with actuarial tri-ennial valuation 2019
3)
Taken into account within IAS18/FRS102 calculations
4) Increased resources within the pensions team to effectively manage the GMP
equalisation process will no longer be required since this is a 'BAU' process.

2

1) Allowance has been made in the MTFS (also enveloped in the 1% of pay)
2) Issue 'plain English' communications to affected members
3) Create simple rectification processes including a GMP reconciliation
overpayment/underpayment policy
4) Increase resources within the pensions team to effectively manage the reconciliation
process.
5) Utilise system automated processes where possible

Threat

Leads to reputational damage and/or financial
loss

Threat

PA22
(Operational)

Insufficient attention to
social, ethical &
environmental risks

Threat

Strategy &
Finance

1) Ensure no conflict of interests between Council and Pension Fund
2) Review ISS in relation to published best practice (e.g. UN Principles for responsible
investment)
3) Ensure fund managers are encouraged to engage and to follow the requirements of the
published ISS.
4) The Fund is now a member of the Local Authority Pension Fund Forum, which raises
officer awareness of ESG issues and facilitates engagement with fund managers. 5) The
Fund has now signed-up to an exclusion mandate 6) Direct exposure nil and indirect
exposure <1%.

3

1

3

2

2

2

6

2

6

1

1

1

2

2

2

Staffing – All the teams (Lambeth Pensions Service and the Pensions & Treasury Team)
are working from home and following the Council’s policy with regards to COVID19. There
is currently >80% staffing capacity.

Implications as a result of the coronavirus
pandemic.

Linda
Cashflow – Concerns on whether ee/er
D'Souza/
contributions will be received from employers
Robert
and whether there is sufficient cashflow to pay
Browning
for benefits.
Governance – Inability to hold Member/Officer
meetings.

Threat

Staffing – Significant number of council staff
and providers are infected with COVID-19 and
unable to perform their duties.
Strategy &
PA27
Finance/
(Operational & People /
Covid-19
Strategic)
Governance &
Compliance

2)

2

2

4

2

2

4

Cashflow – Over 99% of the fund is Lambeth Council. The Council has made suitable
arrangements to continue paying their primary and secondary rates. Movement towards
cash-flow driven investing undertaken as part of the investment Strategy from 2019,
recognising the need for income as a result of contributions received being lower than
benefits paid.
Governance – Government advice on holding future Committee and Pension Board
meetings has been adopted. Officer meetings held remotely through Skype.

Page 77

PA21
(Strategic)

Threat

Impact of increases to employer contributions

Threat

Inappropriate long-term
investment strategy

Control measures / mitigations

Threat

Strategy &
Finance

Ref
PA19
(Strategic)

TREND

Current Rating

1

Risk description

Current
Likelihood
Current
Impact

Impact of risk on outcomes and benefits

Risk
Category

TYPE

Cause of risk

Threat

Version 2.2

Threat

30/06/2021

Owner

RISK REGISTER

Service transformed to fully utilise digital and
electronic platforms (e.g. virtual L&D, increase Linda D'Souza
uptake of Member Self Service etc.).

PA29
(Operational)

Strategy &
Finance/
Pensions system
People /
procurement
Governance &
Compliance

Implications of contract not being in place
from 1 April 2021.

Unable to fulfil statutory obligations; e.g.
Unable to pay pensioners. Unable to calculate
scheme member benefits.

Linda D'Souza

4

2

-8

4

4

-16

1

4

4

1

4

4

TREND

Improvements identified

Target Rating

Maximising on new way of
working since pandemic
(New Beginnings)

Target Impact

Growth &
Opportunities

Target
Likelihood

PA28
(Operational)

Current Rating

Impact of risk on outcomes and benefits

Current
Likelihood
Current
Impact

Cause of risk

TYPE

Risk description

Ref

Risk
Category

Opportunity

Version 2.2

Threat

30/06/2021

Owner

RISK REGISTER

Control measures / mitigations

Increase use of digital platforms to enhance customer experience.

New contract in place by April 2020 via a direct award or the National LGPS Framework.
New contract in place.

Page 78

Page 79

Agenda Item 7

PENSIONS BOARD 12 AUGUST 2021
Report title: Lambeth Pension Fund – Business Plan 2021/22
Wards: All
Portfolio: Cabinet Member for Finance and Performance: Councillor Andy Wilson
Report Authorised by: Strategic Director for Finance and Investment: Fiona
McDermott:
Contact for Enquiries: Robert Browning, Head of Treasury and Pensions, 07394
402801, rbrowning@lambeth.gov.uk

REPORT SUMMARY
This report presents the Lambeth Pension Fund Busines Plan for the financial year
2020/21.
Although there is no statutory requirement for the preparation of a Business Plan, it is
recommended as best practice for the Fund to create an annual plan that
summarises the objectives and milestones for the forthcoming year, and helps to
identify how service delivery can be maximised within any potential constraints on
resources.

FINANCE SUMMARY
There are no direct financial implications in agreeing the recommendation of this
report.

1.

RECOMMENDATIONS
That the Business Plan for 2021/22 be noted, as appended at Appendix One.

Page 80
1
CONTEXT
1.1 The revised Myners Principles as issued in 2008 set out suggested best
practice for the governance of pension schemes via six high level principles.
The principles are voluntary, and there is no statutory requirement to publish
compliance against them.
1.2 One recommendation of the principles, to evidence effective decision-making, is
the creation of an annual Business Plan that summarises the objectives and
milestones for the forthcoming year. Effective business planning is regarded as
an important tool and helps to identify how service delivery can be maximised
within any potential constraints on resources.
2

PROPOSALS AND REASONS

2.1 The Business Plan for 2021/22 is appended at Appendix One, and has been
broken down into six categories to highlight the high-level objectives of the Fund
and the actions required to fulfil them in the year:
 Administration and Governance;
 Communication;
 Actuarial/Funding;
 Pensions Committee and Board;
 Financial and Risk Management; and
 Investment and Strategy
2.2 The Administration and Governance actions are to ensure the Fund continues
to be run in accordance with the relevant regulations and agreed service
standards, and to identify and rectify any instances of non-compliance at the
earliest opportunity.
2.3 The Communication objectives of the Fund are to continue to provide current
and relevant information on the scheme to existing and prospective members,
and to proactively engage with stakeholders as relevant to the scheme.
2.4 Actuarial/Funding objectives involve preparation for the forthcoming triennial
valuation as at 31 March 2022, but also the monitoring of current funding issues
and contributions receivable.
2.5 Objectives relating to the Pensions Committee and Board focus on delivering an
effective training programme and the continued efficiency of meetings and
decision-making.
2.6 The Financial and Risk Management objectives of the Fund are to ensure the
timely and accurate recording of financial information for capture in the
Statement of Accounts and Annual Report, as well as the continued
identification and management of risks to the Fund.

Page 81
2.7 Investment and Strategy objectives focus on monitoring the recently revised
investment strategy and performance against it, with actions also including the
development of a climate strategy (as agreed by the Committee in March 2020)
as part of the Fund’s overall approach to Environmental, Social and Corporate
Governance (ESG).
3
FINANCE
3.1 There are no direct financial implications in agreeing to the recommendations of
this report.
4
LEGAL AND DEMOCRACY
4.1 The Lambeth Pension Fund is run in accordance with the Local Government
Pension Scheme Regulations 2013 enacted along with other Regulations under
the Superannuation Act 1972 and the Public Service Pension Act 2013, and is
for the benefit of Council employees and outside organisations which have
entered into an agreement with Lambeth to provide pensions for their staff.
4.2 The Pension Committee must be mindful of their fiduciary duty to obtain the
best possible financial return on the investments it administers within the
investment strategy framework.
4.3 There are no additional comments from Democratic Services.
5
CONSULTATION AND CO-PRODUCTION
5.1 Not Applicable.
6
RISK MANAGEMENT
6.1 Investment decisions involve taking risks that Members of the Committee
should always bear in mind. Generally, risk is taken to mean the variability of
returns. Investments with greater risk must usually promise higher returns than
more ‘stable’ investments before investors will buy them. Members must
consider the risk/reward trade-off; generally, the higher the potential return
expected the higher the associated risk. Members in their capacity as Trustees
bear that risk.
7
EQUALITIES IMPACT ASSESSMENT
7.1 None for the purposes of this report.
8
COMMUNITY SAFETY
8.1 None for the purposes of this report.
9

ORGANISATIONAL IMPLICATIONS

Environmental
9.1 None for the purposes of this report.
Health

Page 82
9.2 None for the purposes of this report.
Corporate Parenting
9.3 None for the purposes of this report.
Staffing and accommodation
9.4 None for the purposes of this report.
Responsible Procurement
9.5 None for the purposes of this report.
10 TIMETABLE FOR IMPLEMENTATION
10.1 Not Applicable.
AUDIT TRAIL
Consultation
Name/Position
Councillor Andrew
Wilson, Cabinet
Member
Fiona McDermott,
Strategic Director
Christina Thompson,
Director of Finance
Hamant Bharadia,
Assistant Director of
Finance
Andrew Pavlou,
Legal Services
Marianna Ritchie,
Democratic Services

Lambeth
directorate/
division or
partner

Date Sent

Date
Received

Finance and
Performance

22.06.2021

22.06.2021

16.06.2021

24.06.2021

16.06.2021

23.06.2021

16.06.2021

22.06.2021

16.06.2021

23.06.2021

16.06.2021

23.06.2021

Finance and
Investment
Finance and
Investment
Finance and
Investment
Legal and
Democratic
Services
Legal and
Democratic
Services

REPORT HISTORY
Original discussion with Cabinet Member
Report deadline
Date final report sent
Part II Exempt from Disclosure/confidential
accompanying report?
Key decision report
Date first appeared on forward plan
Key decision reasons
Background information

N/A
16 June 2021
No
No
N/A
N/A
N/A

Comments
in para:

Page 83
Appendices



Appendix One – Business
Plan 2021/22

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix One
Lambeth Pension Fund
Business Plan and Actions 2021/22

Page 85

Business Plan 2021/22

1 of 8

Introduction
This is the Business Plan for the London Borough of Lambeth Pension Fund, part of the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS).
Lambeth Council is responsible for administering the scheme on behalf of employers and members of the Fund, and the Pensions
Committee has delegated authority to discharge the council’s functions in relation to the scheme.
The Business Plan is an important document which sets out the Fund’s overarching objectives for 2021/22 and how those objectives will
be achieved, in accordance with the recommendations set out in the CIPFA guidance “Principles for Investment Decision Making and
Disclosure in the Local Government Pension Scheme in the United Kingdom 2012”.
Further information on how the scheme is run, including its funding and investment strategies, can be found on the Fund’s website at
www.lgpslambeth.org.
Objectives








Administration and Governance
Communication
Actuarial/Funding
Pensions Committee and Board
Financial and Risk Management
Investment and Strategy

Actions to achieve these objectives, as well as suggested timescales and responsible officers, are set out in the following pages.

Business Plan 2021/22

2 of 8

Page 86

The Fund’s objectives have been broken down into the following categories:

Administration and Governance
Objectives:
- To ensure the scheme is run in accordance with regulations and agreed service standards.
- To deal with and rectify any errors and complaints in a timely way.
Action

Timescale

Lead Officer

1

Pensions Board to receive key performance indicators report
at each Board meeting.

Ongoing with reports due at
each meeting

Linda D’Souza

2

Pensions Committee and Pensions Board to receive the
Pension Fund 2020/21 Annual Report.

July 2021 meetings

Robert Browning

3

Ensure member complaints are dealt with in a timely fashion.

Ongoing

Linda D’Souza

4

Completion of the GMP rectification process.

December 2021

Linda D’Souza

5

Plan and prepare for implementation of remedies relating to
the McCloud judgement.

Ongoing; regulations to come
into force on 1 April 2023

Linda D’Souza

6

Continue to implement actions resulting from the 2018
governance review, according to the agreed action plan, and
undertake an independent follow-on review.

By 31 March 2022.

Linda D’Souza/Robert Browning

7

Prepare for the implementation of revised exit cap regulations.

By 31 March 2022

Linda D’Souza

8

Plan and prepare for new statutory guidance relating to the
Good Governance Project recommendations.

Ongoing; regulations to come
into force on 1 April 2022.

Linda D’Souza/Robert Browning

9

Plan and prepare for the implementation of the UK Pension
Dashboards Programme (expected implementation from
2023).

Ongoing

Linda D’Souza/Robert Browning

10

Plan and prepare for the requirements of the revised TPR
Single Code of Practice.

Ongoing

Linda D’Souza/Robert Browning

Business Plan 2021/22

3 of 8

Page 87

Description

Communication
Objectives:
- To promote the scheme to prospective members and employers.
- To provide regular and relevant information about the scheme to existing members and scheme employers.
- To communicate and engage with all other stakeholders as relevant in relation to the scheme.
Action

Timescale

Lead Officer

1

Production of a newsletter to pensioners, deferred members,
and active members.

April 2021 – July 2021

Linda D’Souza

2

Timely production of benefit statements.

Deferred members by 30 June,
Active members by 31 July

Linda D’Souza

3

Ensure communication material complies with current
legislation and effectively communicates the benefits and
security of the scheme.

Ongoing via newsletters,
scheme guides and via the
Lambeth Pension Fund website
and Member Self Service.

Linda D’Souza

4

Timely production of Annual Allowance Pensions Savings
Statements.

August 2021

Linda D’Souza

5

Timely publication of the scheme’s Annual Report on the
Fund’s website.

Statutory deadline of 1st
December 2021

Robert Browning

6

Prepare and publish the Fund’s Stewardship Report per the
requirements of the UK Stewardship Code 2020.

By 31st October 2021

Robert Browning/Linda D’Souza

7

Collaborate with external stakeholders and engage with
consultations relevant to the operation of the Fund.

Ongoing

Linda D’Souza/Robert Browning

8

Maintain the Lambeth Pension Fund and Member Self Service
websites and review content to ensure it is relevant and up to
date.

Ongoing

Linda D’Souza

Business Plan 2021/22

4 of 8

Page 88

Description

Actuarial/Funding
Objectives:
- To monitor the funding level of the scheme, including the formal valuation every 3 years.
- To monitor and reconcile contribution payments made to the scheme by the employers and scheme members.
- To understand and implement legislative changes as relevant which will impact scheme funding.
Action
1

Description

Timescale

Lead Officer

Provide employers with International Accounting Standards
statements when requested.

Scheduled bodies: May each
year

Linda D’Souza/Robert Browning

Academies: September each
year
Monitor and reconcile contribution schedules for the council
and scheme employers.

Ongoing

Linda D’Souza

3

Training for the Pensions Committee, Pensions Board, and
officers on relevant funding issues on a regular basis.

Ongoing

Linda D’Souza/Robert Browning

4

Review and update the Funding Strategy Statement.

Review and update by
September 2021

Robert Browning/Linda D’Souza

5

Preparation of scheme data in readiness for the 2022 actuarial
valuation.

By 31 March 2022

Linda D’Souza/Robert Browning

Business Plan 2021/22

5 of 8

Page 89

2

Lambeth Pension Committee and Board Members
Objectives:
- To train and develop all members to enable them to perform duties effectively and meet regulatory requirements.
- To meet quarterly and consider advice from investment advisors/actuary and/or independent advisors as relevant.
- To run meetings efficiently and to ensure decisions are made clearly and effectively.
Action

Timescale

Lead Officer

1

Agree annual plan for Pension Fund member training and
implement the plan accordingly.

Ongoing

Robert Browning/Linda D’Souza

2

To recommend relevant training opportunities to members as
and when they arise.

Ongoing

Robert Browning/Linda D’Souza

3

Ensure that meeting papers are issued in accordance with
agreed agenda management timetables.

Ongoing

Robert Browning/Linda D’Souza

4

Review the decision-making process to ensure decisions are
made effectively.

Ongoing

Robert Browning/Linda D’Souza

Business Plan 2021/22

6 of 8

Page 90

Description

Financial & Risk Management
Objectives:
- To properly record financial transactions to and from the scheme and produce an annual report and statement of accounts within six months
of the financial year end.
- To manage adviser and fund manager fees against budgets.
- To assess and monitor the risks associated with the management of the scheme.
Action

Timescale

Lead Officer

1

Undertake regular reconciliations of pension payments and
receipts to ensure accuracy of data.

Ongoing

Robert Browning

2

Monitor Fund management expenses throughout the financial
year.

Ongoing

Robert Browning

3

Produce annual Statement of Accounts for external audit.

July 2021

Robert Browning

4

Produce Pension Fund Annual Report and ensure consistency
to the Statement of Accounts.

July 2021

Robert Browning

5

Ensure the ongoing assessment and monitoring of all risks to
the Fund.

Ongoing; reported to Committee
on a semi-annual basis and to
the Board on a quarterly basis.

Linda D’Souza/Robert Browning

6

Maintain disaster recovery/business continuity plans.

Ongoing

Robert Browning/Linda D’Souza

7

Prepare for TCFD alignment in anticipation of MHCLG
regulatory requirement, with consultation expected in late
2021.

By 31 March 2022.

Robert Browning/Linda D’Souza

Business Plan 2021/22

7 of 8

Page 91

Description

Investment and Strategy
Objectives:
- To periodically review the Fund’s investment strategy and benchmarks.
- To monitor Fund and manager performance against benchmarks.
Action

Description

Timescale

Lead Officer

1

Monitor outcomes of the implementation of the March 2020 Investment Strategy.

Ongoing

Robert Browning

2

Review and update the Investment Strategy Statement.

By 31 March 2022

Robert Browning

3

Review and rebalance asset allocations on an ongoing basis to ensure
adherence to benchmarks. In 2021/22:

Ongoing

Robert Browning

By September 2021

Reduce over-exposure to equities
Top-up allocations to:
LDI
Private Equity
Property

By September 2021
By December 2021
By December 2021

4

Regularly engage with all investment managers and update Pensions
Committee as relevant.

Ongoing

Robert Browning

5

Pensions Committee and Pensions Board to receive quarterly performance
monitoring reports.

Quarterly

Robert Browning

6

Respond to national initiatives on pension fund pooling/mergers/collaboration
and report to the Pensions Committee and Pensions Board as necessary.

Ongoing

Robert Browning

7

Engage with, and update the Pensions Committee and Pensions Board on, the
London Collective Investment Vehicle.

Ongoing

Robert Browning

8

Develop a formal Climate Strategy for the Fund.

By 31 December 2021

Robert Browning

9

Undertake a retender for the Fund’s investment management consultancy
services.

By 31 March 2022

Robert Browning

Business Plan 2021/22

8 of 8

Page 92



-

Page 93

Agenda Item 8

PENSIONS BOARD 12 AUGUST 2021
Report title: Lambeth Pension Fund – Draft Annual Report 2020/21
Wards: All
Portfolio: Cabinet Member for Finance and Performance: Councillor Andy Wilson
Report Authorised by: Strategic Director for Finance and Investment: Fiona
McDermott:
Contact for Enquiries: Robert Browning, Head of Treasury and Pensions, 07394
402801, rbrowning@lambeth.gov.uk

REPORT SUMMARY
This report presents the draft 2020/21 Annual Report for the Lambeth Pension Fund,
incorporating the draft 2020/21 Statement of Accounts. The accounts have been
prepared in accordance with the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and
Accountancy (CIPFA) Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United
Kingdom 2020/21, and related guidance.
The external auditors Mazars have yet to begin their audit of the accounts, which is
expected to start in July 2021. The statutory deadline for the auditors to signoff the
accounts is 30 September 2021, whilst the audited Annual Report must be published
on or before 01 December 2021.

FINANCE SUMMARY
There are no direct financial implications arising from this report.

RECOMMENDATIONS

1.

1.

Pensions Committee
To note the draft Annual Report as appended and delegate approval of the final
audited report and financial statements to the Chair.
Pensions Board
To note the decision made by the Committee.

Page 94
1
CONTEXT
1.1 This report presents the draft 2020/21 Annual Report for the Lambeth Pension
Fund, incorporating the draft 2020/21 Statement of Accounts. The accounts
have been prepared in accordance with the Chartered Institute of Public
Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) Code of Practice on Local Authority
Accounting in the United Kingdom 2020/21, and related guidance.
1.2 The council, as administering authority for the Fund, is required to produce a
separate set of accounts for the pension fund. The contents and format of the
accounts are determined by statutory requirements and are subject to a
separate audit by the council’s external auditors, Mazars.
1.3 The Fund must also publish an Annual Report, incorporating the Statement of
Accounts and summarising Fund performance for the year, on or before the
statutory deadline of 01 December.
2
PROPOSALS AND REASONS
2.1 The external auditors Mazars have yet to begin their audit of the accounts which
is expected to start in July 2021, although a verbal update from officers on the
audit plan should be available in time for this meeting. The statutory deadline for
the auditors to signoff the accounts is 30 September 2021, whilst the audited
Annual Report must be published on or before 01 December 2021.
2.2 The accounts comprise two main statements with supporting notes. The main
statements are:




Fund Account – details the cost of dealing with members, employers and
others directly involved in the scheme, as well as returns on investments,
management expenses, and changes in market valuation of the Fund’s
assets; it essentially represents the Fund’s revenue account.
Net Assets Statement – details the Fund’s assets and liabilities, and
essentially represents the Fund’s balance sheet.

2.3 Within the year the total value of the Fund increased by approximately £361m,
or 25%, from £1,427m at 31 March 2020 to £1,788m at 31 March 2021.
2.4 Income received from contributions and transfers into the scheme totalled
£57.7m, whilst £69.2m was paid out in benefits and transfers out of the scheme,
resulting in a net cash outflow of £11.5m from dealings with members.
2.5 Investment income received for the year ending 31 March 2021 was £28.1m,
whilst the Fund incurred £9.3m of management expenses (which includes
administration costs, oversight and governance costs, and investment manager
fees). Overall income for the year was £85.8m, and expenditure £78.5m,
resulting in a net surplus for the year of £7.3m (£7.0m in 2019/20).

Page 95
2.6 Overall Fund membership decreased marginally as at 31 March 2021 by 144
members, although there was a year-on-year shift between the number of
deferred and pensioner members (8,460 deferred members at 31 March 2021
compared to 7,686 at 30 March 2020, and 7,455 pensioner members at 31
March 2021 compared to 8,410 at 31 March 2020).
2.7 It should be noted that the Annual Report and Statement of Accounts as
appended are draft documents and subject to change following the conclusion
of the audit and ahead of formal signoff; any material changes will be presented
to Committee at the next meeting or earliest opportunity thereafter.
3
FINANCE
3.1 There are no direct financial implications arising from this report.
4
LEGAL AND DEMOCRACY
4.1 The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 specify the process by which the
authority’s accounts are initially approved and then examined by an external
auditor. This process, and the dates by which the various stages must be
achieved, are set out in the Regulations and are legally binding on the authority.
4.2 The Accounts and Audit (Amendment) Regulations 2021, in response to the
ongoing disruption caused by the COVID-19 pandemic, amend the 2015
Regulations such that the deadline for publishing the audited Statement of
Accounts is extended from 31 July to 30 September 2021.
4.3 The Regulations require the Statement of Accounts to be approved by a
resolution of the council or a committee of the council, and for the responsible
financial officer to re-confirm on behalf of the council that they are satisfied that
the accounts present a true and fair view of the financial position, and the
income and expenditure, of the authority at the end of the financial year. For the
Lambeth Pension Fund, the Pensions Committee and Chief Financial
Officer/Director of Finance and Property fulfil these roles.
4.4 There are no additional comments from Democratic Services.
5
CONSULTATION AND CO-PRODUCTION
5.1 Not Applicable.
6
RISK MANAGEMENT
6.1 There are no direct risk related issues contained within the report.

Page 96

7
EQUALITIES IMPACT ASSESSMENT
7.1 None for the purposes of this report.
8
COMMUNITY SAFETY
8.1 None for the purposes of this report.
9

ORGANISATIONAL IMPLICATIONS

Environmental
9.1 None for the purposes of this report.
Health
9.2 None for the purposes of this report.
Corporate Parenting
9.3 None for the purposes of this report.
Staffing and accommodation
9.4 None for the purposes of this report.
Responsible Procurement
9.5 None for the purposes of this report.
10 TIMETABLE FOR IMPLEMENTATION
10.1 Not Applicable.

Page 97
AUDIT TRAIL
Consultation
Name/Position
Councillor Andrew
Wilson, Cabinet
Member
Fiona McDermott,
Strategic Director
Christina Thompson,
Director of Finance
Hamant Bharadia,
Assistant Director of
Finance
Andrew Pavlou,
Legal Services
Marianna Ritchie,
Democratic Services

Lambeth
directorate/
division or
partner

Date Sent

Date
Received

Finance and
Performance

22.06.2021

22.06.2021

16.06.2021

24.06.2021

16.06.2021

23.06.2021

16.06.2021

22.06.2021

16.06.2021

23.06.2021

16.06.2021

23.06.2021

Finance and
Investment
Finance and
Investment
Finance and
Investment
Legal and
Democratic
Services
Legal and
Democratic
Services

REPORT HISTORY
Original discussion with Cabinet
Member
Report deadline
Date final report sent
Part II Exempt from
Disclosure/confidential accompanying
report?
Key decision report
Date first appeared on forward plan
Key decision reasons
Background information
Appendices

Comments
in para:

N/A
16 June 2021

No
No
N/A
N/A
N/A
 Appendix One – Lambeth Pension
Fund Draft Annual Report
2020/21

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 99

2020/2021

London Borough of Lambeth
Pension Fund
Draft Annual Report

A post-COVID-19 resurgence of the global economy saw the Fund’s investment
strategy perform exceptionally well in 2020/21; net assets of the Fund increased by
25% to £1,787.7m as at 31 March 2021. The Fund was 82% funded at the most
recent triennial valuation as at 31 March 2019.

Page 100

Table of Contents

Contents
Scheme Management and Advisors _______________________________________ 2
Report from the Pensions Committee Chair _________________________________ 3
Report from the Pensions Board Chair _____________________________________ 7
Risk Management _____________________________________________________ 9
Investment Strategy __________________________________________________ 12
Financial Performance ________________________________________________ 15
Administrative Performance ____________________________________________ 19
Actuarial Report on the Fund ___________________________________________ 21
Governance Compliance Statement ______________________________________ 24
Statement of Accounts 2020/21 _________________________________________ 33
Funding Strategy Statement ____________________________________________ 64
Investment Strategy Statement _________________________________________ 65
Communications Policy Statement _______________________________________ 66
Additional Compliance Statement ________________________________________ 67
Statement of Responsibilities ___________________________________________ 68
Independent Auditor's Statement ________________________________________ 69

Appendices
1. Funding Strategy Statement
2. Investment Strategy Statement
3. Communications Policy

Page 101
Scheme Management and Advisors

Pg. 02

Scheme Management and Advisors
Administering Authority:

London Borough of Lambeth

Administrator:

Christina Thompson
Director of Finance and Property

Council Officers:
Hamant Bharadia
Robert Browning
Saul Omuco
Senimetu Yakubu
Sarah Hargraves
Linda D’Souza
Linda Osborne

Assistant Director of Finance
Head of Treasury and Pensions
Deputy Head of Treasury and Pensions
Deputy Head of Treasury and Pensions
Governance and Compliance Manager
Chief of
Financial
Officer
Head
Payroll and
Pensions
Pensions Manager

Bank:

National Westminster Bank Plc

Legal Advisors:

Council Lawyers

Fund Managers:
Adam Street Partnership
Insight Investment Management
Churchill Asset Management
RREEF
Permira Credit
London CIV

Aviva Investors
Invesco Perpetual
M and G Group
PAAMCO
Northern Trust

AVC Providers:
Clerical Medical
Prudential
Utmost Life & Pensions (Closed to new applicants)
Advisor:

Mercer Ltd.

Custodian:

Northern Trust

Governance:

Northern Trust
Aon

Actuary:

Hymans Robertson LLP

Auditor:

MAZARS LLP, UK

Page 102
Pg. 03

Report from the Pensions Committee Chair

Report from the Pensions Committee Chair
As Chair of the Lambeth Pensions Committee, I am pleased to
introduce the Pension Fund’s Annual Report and Accounts for
2020/21. The last twelve months have presented unique
challenges following the outbreak of COVD-19, giving rise to
global lockdowns, unprecedented financial support packages,
and ongoing uncertainty around the nature and pace of
economic recovery. Despite a turbulent end to 2019/20 which
saw in-year Fund growth disappear in a matter of days and an overall reduction in the
Fund’s value, 2020/21 has seen a strong recovery in the financial markets and a
significant increase in the value of the Fund.
Investment Strategy Review
Following the triennial valuation in 2019 where the funding level improved to 83% from
80% in 2016 the Lambeth Pension Fund adopted best practice (similar to that of the
private sector) by being one of only a handful of Local Government Pension Scheme
(LGPS) Funds to review its investment strategy alongside the Triennial Valuation. A
revised investment strategy was adopted by the Committee in March 2020, and officers
of the Fund have worked with the Fund’s actuary and investment advisor throughout
2020/21 to implement the changes approved in that strategy, which build on the Fund’s
previous success. The key changes that have been implemented to date are as follows:
1. Terminate the London CIV Diversified Growth mandate with Ruffer
2. Terminate the London CIV Diversified Growth mandate with Pyrford
3. Invest the proceeds from 1. and 2. into a London CIV Multi Asset Credit mandate
with CQS
4. Terminate the Diversified Growth mandate with Aviva
5. Invest the proceeds from 4. into a Multi Asset Credit mandate outside of the
London CIV
6. Invest £40m of Money Market Funds with a new Multi Asset Credit manager
7. Commit 7% of the Fund to additional Private Debt investment.
Fund Performance
The value of the Lambeth Pension Fund increased during the year by £361m to a net
asset value of £1,788m as at 31 March 2021, driven in large part by above-benchmark
increases in the value of the Fund’s global and emerging market equities and multi asset
credit mandate. The Fund’s assets earned a return of approximately 27% over the year
ending 31 March 2021 against a benchmark of approximately 19%, an extremely strong
performance on the back of last year’s return of -0.7%. The investment management
costs of the Fund as a percentage of assets under management over the past year is
0.43%, a reasonable cost considering the fund is 100% actively managed.

Page 103
Report from the Pensions Committee Chair

Pg. 04

London Collective Investment Vehicle (CIV)
In line with government guidance on asset pooling within the Local Government Pension
Scheme, the Lambeth Pension Fund committed to, and is a shareholder of, the London
CIV. As well as the cost savings that come from pooling assets at scale, the creation and
ongoing operation of the CIV has also helped to foster and improve collaboration
between London boroughs in developing mandates that meet the respective Funds’
objectives. Currently the Fund has around £1,141m, or 64% of Fund assets, managed
via the CIV. It is the Fund’s intention to continue to follow government guidance and to
consider investing through the CIV in the first instance for all new investments, and to
work with the CIV in developing new mandates that meet the objectives of the Fund’s
investment strategy.
Governance
A Pensions Committee was created with full decision-making powers in April 2015. The
Committee is all-encompassing and has responsibility for all Fund matters including
governance, investments, funding, accounting, employer and scheme member
engagement, communications, and administration. Best practice within the LGPS is to
have a diverse Committee; the Lambeth Fund has already moved to meet these
requirements and draws its membership from “interested parties” as follows:


Five elected councillor members (plus two substitutes)



One employee representative (who is a member of the Fund)



One trade union representative



One pensioner representative (who is a member of the Fund)

All training needs are regularly assessed and delivered in accordance with the Chartered
Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) Knowledge and Skills Framework.
As part of the governance and oversight of the Pension Fund, a regular review and
update to the Fund’s policies and procedures and governance framework is essential to
ensure compliance with latest legislation, guidance, and best practice. The Fund last
commissioned an independent review of its governance arrangements in 2018 and,
having completed an action plan to make improvements, will seek to commission a
follow-up review by the end of 2021/22 financial year.
The Pensions Act 2013 also requires a mandatory Pension Board to be in place. The
role of the Board is to review the diligence of decision-making but not the decisions
themselves, and to assist the administering authority in securing compliance with
regulations relating to the governance and administration of the scheme. Cllr Bray, the
Chair of the Pensions Board, has reported on the activities of the Board separately within
the report.

Page 104
Pg. 05

Report from the Pensions Committee Chair
Responsible Investing
The Fund continues to focus on and embed responsible investment principles into all
activities of scheme management, and as a responsible asset owner monitors and
maintains oversight of its investment managers in relation to Environmental, Social and
Corporate Governance (ESG) issues and the exercising of voting rights and overall
stewardship obligations. This includes the regular monitoring and scoring of managers’
ESG credentials and the steps taken to improve those scores, using research information
from our investment consultants.
The Fund will continue to develop its ESG policies and approach to responsible
investment into 2021/22. At its March 2021 meeting, the Committee considered the
results of the Fund’s first carbon footprint exercise which will serve as a reference point
in setting formal climate change and decarbonisation targets; it also agreed to adopt best
practice climate disclosure reporting as recommended by the Task Force on Climaterelated Financial Disclosures (TCFD). In addition, the Committee agreed to formally
adopt the principles of the UK Stewardship Code by becoming one of the first signatories
to the new 2020 code, and officers are engaged in preparing the Fund’s statement of
compliance in line with prescribed submission deadlines.
Training is regularly provided for Members and officers centred on responsible
investment, with further training expected in 2021/22 as work continues towards meeting
the Fund’s responsible investment objectives.
As of 31 March 2021, the Fund has no direct exposure to fossil fuels and has reduced its
exposure to indirect fossil fuels to around 1% (one of the lowest in the LGPS). Members
and officers continue to engage with investment managers, the London CIV, and through
other member bodies and national forums on the issues of responsible investment.
Employers to the Fund
The Fund continues to proactively engage with its employers. Meetings with employers
have focussed on maintaining steady contribution rates, and in the forthcoming year will
turn towards the upcoming triennial valuation.
Publicity
Over the year Members and officers have represented the Fund at various events, and
actively engaged with representative bodies and regulators in relation to legislative
developments within the LGPS as and when they arise.
Outlook
For local authority pension schemes the outlook over the short term is uncertain,
particularly in relation to any ongoing impact from COVID-19 over both the short and
longer-term. The Fund remains cash negative and so over the longer term there remains
a need for prudence, given not only continuing growth in liabilities and an unpredictable

Page 105
Pg. 06

Report from the Pensions Committee Chair
investment environment but ongoing government reviews of the pension and investment
regulatory framework. However, Lambeth is well placed to meet these challenges.
The Fund’s primary objective remains the payment of pension benefits as and when they
fall due, but with a renewed focus on income generation and managing cash flows. With
the implementation of the revised investment strategy now complete, the Fund will
proactively monitor the performance of those changes and undertake any rebalancing
within the Fund as required.
I look forward to continuing the good work with all our stakeholders; they have put in a
huge effort in 2020/21 especially with the challenges of COVID-19, the investment
strategy review and most importantly a renewed focus on responsible investing. So,
thanks are due to members of the Pensions Committee and Board, both councillors and
lay members, officers of the council, and our advisors. All have had to adapt significantly
to keep the Fund running smoothly and have approached their responsibilities with a
sense of purpose; I am the confident the Fund is well placed to meet the challenges it
will face in the coming years.

Cllr. Anna Birley
Chair – Lambeth Pensions Committee

Page 106
Report from the Pensions Board Chair

Pg. 07

Report from the Pensions Board Chair
As the Chair of the Lambeth Pensions Board I am very pleased to
talk about the Board and its sixth year in operation.
Structure and Attendance
The Board was established in accordance with Section 5 of the Public
Service Pensions Act 2013 and under regulation 106 of the Local
Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013, holding its first
meeting on the 08 July 2015. The Board consists of three representatives of the scheme
employers, and three representing scheme members. The employer representatives are
serving Lambeth councillors and the scheme member representatives consist of a) one
person nominated by the Unions as an employee representative b) one pensioner
representative currently in receipt of a pension from Lambeth’s Pension Fund and c) one
staff member representative who is also a member of the Lambeth Pension Fund.
Details on the Pension Board’s current representatives are held on the council’s
website at the following link:
https://moderngov.lambeth.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=733
The Board met on three occasions during the year ending 31 March 2021; all meetings
were quorate.
Functions and Operation of the Board
The two primary functions of a Local Pension Board are to assist the Administering
Authority to:


Ensure effective and efficient governance and administration of the Local
Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013 (LGPS); and,



Ensure compliance with relevant laws and regulation.

It therefore has a monitoring remit, rather than being a decision-making body; it could be
seen as being a critical friend. As such, the general approach of the Board is to seek
assurances with evidence from the Fund that it is meeting its objectives.
The Board is effectively helping to manage the reputational risk of the Fund and
Administering Authority, which are under considerable scrutiny from several stakeholders
as well as the two main oversight bodies: The Pensions Regulator (TPR) and the Ministry
of Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG).
The Board operates under its own Terms of Reference which were approved at its
inception and included in the council’s Constitution. The Board recognises the need to
prioritise and identify items for detailed discussion as opposed to those for awareness or
noting, and prioritises its time accordingly.

Page 107
Report from the Pensions Board Chair

Pg. 08

Scheme Documents
During the last year the Board reviewed scheme policies and a range of key documents
covering the items captured in the work plan below.
Training
Each Board member must be conversant with the details of the scheme, which translates
as having a good working knowledge. The Fund offers several training opportunities for
Board members on an ongoing basis.
Assessment of training needs and how they are met is a standing item on the Board’s
agenda; both formal and informal training is considered.
Work Plan
In considering the work of the Board to ensure the continued good governance of the
scheme, the following key areas have been highlighted and members will prioritise
reviews based on information received from quarterly compliance updates.


Meeting legislative requirements on pooling



Improving data quality



Ensuring strength in employer covenants



Admission and cessation of employers to the scheme



Statement of Accounts



Administration



Audit and Risk Management



Governance



Training

All Pension Board papers and minutes are held on the council’s website at the following
link: http://moderngov.lambeth.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeId=733
As the Chair of the Lambeth Pension Board I would like to thank my Board member
colleagues who are committed to volunteering their time and energies towards the role.
I would also like to express my thanks to the Pensions Committee and the council’s
officers for their commitment and hard work in maintaining all administrative aspects of
the Fund.

Cllr. Linda Bray
Chair – Lambeth Pensions Board

Page 108
Risk Management

Pg. 09

Risk Management
The Fund recognises that the primary long-term risk it faces is that its assets fall short of
its liabilities such that there are insufficient resources to pay promised pension benefits
to members. The investment objectives have been set with the aim of maximising
investment returns over the long term within specified risk tolerances; the aim is to
optimise the likelihood that pensions and other benefits can be paid as and when they
fall due.
The Fund recognises that there are a number of risks that must be considered and
managed to ensure it can meet its primary objective of providing benefits to its members.
These risks have been grouped under investment, financial, demographic, and
regulatory risks, and have been identified and addressed in the Fund’s Investment
Strategy Statement and Funding Strategy Statement.
The Investment Strategy Statement addresses the financial risks to the Fund, in
particular the risk that the Fund’s assets do not perform in line with the actuary’s expected
rate of return. In considering its investment strategy the Fund must bear in mind the
balance between risk and return which in practice will mean targeting the highest possible
return whilst minimising downside risk, within agreed parameters.
Investment, by its very nature, is a risk-based activity where the returns achieved will
reflect differing levels of investment risk. There are a number of such risks to consider
within the Fund as set out below:
Solvency Risk and Mismatching Risk
These risks are measured through a qualitative and quantitative assessment of the
expected growth of the assets relative to the liabilities and are managed by setting a
Fund-specific strategic asset allocation with an appropriate level of risk.
Manager Risk Including the London CIV
This is assessed as the expected deviation of the prospective risk and return, as set out
in the managers’ investment objectives, relative to the investment policy. It is measured
by monitoring the deviation of actual returns relative to the target, as well as other factors
supporting the managers’ investment processes, and by monitoring and replacing any
managers where concerns exist over their ability to deliver the investment mandate.
The aim of the investment strategy and management structure is to manage the level of
risk necessary to achieve the benchmark return reflected in the funding strategy. The
Fund’s external investment managers are required to invest in line with the investment
guidelines set by the Fund. Independent custodians safekeep the Fund’s assets on
behalf of the Fund.

Page 109
Risk Management

Pg. 10
Liquidity Risk

This is monitored according to the level of cash required by the Fund over a specified
period and is managed by holding an appropriate amount of readily realisable
investments. The majority of the Fund’s assets are invested in liquid assets which are
readily realisable, whilst investments in illiquid assets include those in property, private
equity, and private debt.
Corporate Governance Risk
This is assessed by reviewing the Fund’s investment managers’ policies regarding
corporate governance. It is managed by delegating the exercise of voting rights to the
managers, who exercise this right in accordance with their published corporate
governance policies. Summaries of these policies are provided to the Committee from
time to time and take into account the financial interests of the shareholders or partners,
which should ultimately be to the Fund’s advantage.
Legislative Risk
This is the risk that legislative changes will require action from the Committee in order to
comply with any such changes. The Committee acknowledge that this risk is unavoidable
but will seek to promptly address any legislative changes to ensure the Fund remains
compliant.
Market Risk
This is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices. The Fund seeks to manage this risk through its
strategic asset allocation which ensures diversification of investments across a range of
asset classes and markets that have a low correlation with each other, as well as
diversification of managers. Market risk comprises of interest rate, inflation, and currency
risk.
Financial Risks
Action is taken to review performance against the investment strategy on a regular basis
in accordance with LGPS regulations. The Fund’s financial management framework is
the same as that of Lambeth Council. Council officers monitor the budget, which is set
annually as part of the three-year forward-looking service plan. The financial accounting
system is integrated with the council’s, and the segregation of duties and control structure
is agreed with, and annually reviewed by, Internal Audit. A key financial risk is the nonpayment of contributions by employers. The regulations provide for sanctions to be
issued for late payments, and processes are in place to ensure that contributions are
reconciled regularly.

Page 110
Risk Management

Pg. 11
Administration Risks

The administration risks relate mainly to the obligation to administer the Fund and pay
benefits accurately and on time as agreed with employers or under statute. The main
areas of risk are non-payment or late payment of members’ benefits, incorrect calculation
of benefits, breach of Data Protection Regulations, and failure to comply with Freedom
of Information requests. Such risks can lead to adverse publicity, loss of reputation and
ultimately statutory fines. These are addressed in the Fund’s Business Continuity Plan.

Page 111
Investment Strategy

Pg. 12

Investment Strategy
The introduction of LGPS asset pooling has changed the way Funds make investment
decisions; Lambeth’s investment strategy is now geared towards pooling its assets with
the London Collective Investment Vehicle (CIV) and as at 31 March 2021 approximately
64% of the Fund’s assets had been pooled.
Following the 2019 triennial valuation the Fund introduced a new approach to setting its
investment strategy, aligning it with the funding strategy and contribution plan and basing
all three on a sophisticated model but crucially applying a practical, qualitative (human)
overlay.
Contribution rates and the investment strategy were considered in tandem, balancing
risk with the need for stability in terms of certainty with regard to contribution rates; as a
result the council, being the largest employer in the Fund (99% of the total Fund),
achieved more certainty going forward. The cash flow position was also considered at
the same time via an in-house assessment of future cash flows.
As a mature Fund, and to provide sufficient protection against inflation and interest rate
risk, the Fund implemented a Liability Driven Investment strategy (LDI) in late 2016. The
strategy was approved by the Pensions Committee back in 2010 as part of a strategy
review at the time, but its implementation was delayed due to unfavourable market
conditions; this strategy is managed by Insight Investment.
Further changes to the investment strategy were approved in March 2020 and have been
implemented throughout the year. These include the termination of the Fund’s diversified
growth strategies, further investment into multi-asset credit (including the appointment of
a new manager, M&G), and additional commitment to private debt. As at 31 March 2021
the Fund invests its assets through ten external managers (four via the London CIV)
across seven different asset classes.
The Fund holds asset managers accountable for decisions on asset allocation within the
mandates under which they operate, and managers are challenged robustly and formally
by the Pensions Committee on any proposed changes to asset allocations. Managers’
performance is reviewed at each Committee meeting in discussion with the investment
advisor and officers, and they are also called to Committee meetings where necessary.
Officers meet managers regularly and advice is taken from the investment advisor on
matters relating to manager arrangements and performance.
During 2020/21, the Fund’s net asset value increased by approximately £361m, driven
by a £353m unrealised gain from an increase in the market value of assets. The table
below provides a breakdown of the Fund’s investments by asset manager as at 31 March
2021 against the current benchmark asset allocations per the investment strategy and
the actual year-end allocations (with prior year comparator); further information on the

Page 112
Investment Strategy

Pg. 13

investment strategy can be found in the Investment Strategy Statement (see Appendix
2)
Market Value
31 March
2021

Benchmark
Allocation

(%)
5.0

Actual
Allocation
31 March
2021
(%)
4.1

Actual
Allocation
31 March
2020
(%)
4.7

(£m)
72.5

Invesco

159.1

15.0

8.9

12.1

Insight - LDI

222.4

15.0

12.4

15.4

London CIV - Baillie Gifford

406.3

22.7

18.2

London CIV - RBC

313.7

17.5

14.7

London CIV - JP Morgan

191.4

10.7

8.7

London CIV - CQS

229.3

12.8

12.8

M and G Group

122.8

6.9

0.0

1.3

1.2

1.3

0.5

Manager

Adams Street

30.0
10.0
12.0

Churchill Asset Management

23.8

PERMIRA

22.4

Cash and Net Current Assets

18.5

1.0

1.0

1.7

Insight MMF

5.0

-

0.3

4.2

PAAMCO

0.4

-

0.0

0.0

London CIV

0.2

-

0.0

0.0

12.0

Aviva

0.0

-

0.0

5.6

Total

1,769.3

100.0

100.0

100.0

Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG)
Best management practice includes assessing, reporting, and addressing material risks
associated with corporate governance and environmental and social issues. Companies
should have regard to the environmental and social impacts of their activities in all their
decisions, as approaches that aim for positive environmental and societal outcomes are
usually also good for businesses in the long run. Where the Fund considers that
disclosure on these risks is inadequate, the Fund will generally support requests for
improved disclosure from its investment managers.
Paragraph 7(2)(e) of The Local Government Pension Scheme (Management and
Investment of Funds) Regulations 2016 requires administering authorities to set out how
social, environmental, and corporate governance considerations are taken into account
in the selection, non-selection, retention and realisation of assets


The London Borough of Lambeth Pension Fund is a long-term active investor that
takes a serious approach to fostering stewardship; the Fund believes that sound
corporate governance contributes to long-term value for its members. The Fund’s
Investment Strategy Statement sets out in greater detail the Funds’ philosophy on
corporate governance and its approach to voting on behalf of members.

Page 113
Investment Strategy

Pg. 14


Voting rights give shareholders both the opportunity and responsibility to
participate in the stewardship of companies, and the Fund’s policy on exercising
voting rights is explained in section six of the Fund’s Investment Strategy
Statement.



The Fund requires its investment managers to integrate all material financial
factors, including environmental, social, corporate governance and ethical
considerations into the decision-making process for all Fund investments. It
expects its managers to follow best practice and use their influence as major
institutional investors and long-term stewards of capital to promote good practice
in the investee companies and markets to which the Fund is exposed.



The Fund expects its external investment managers (and specifically the London
CIV through which the Fund will increasingly invest) to integrate material ESG
factors into its investment analyses and undertake appropriate monitoring of
current investments for any ESG issues which could present a material financial
risk to the long-term performance of the Fund.



The Fund is a member of the Local Authority Pension Fund Forum, a membership
group of LGPS funds that promotes and campaigns on high standards of
corporate governance and sustainable investment, through which the Fund can
engage and collaborate on such issues.

Page 114
Financial Performance

Pg. 15

Financial Performance
In 2020/21 the value of the Fund increased by approximately £361m (25%) to stand at
£1,788m at 31 March 2021 (£1,427m at 31 March 2020). The Fund’s investments in
global equities, including emerging market equities, as well as multi-asset credit
performed well over benchmark, whilst the property and private debt mandates both
failed to meet expected performance levels.
Net of fees, the Fund performance in 2020/21 was approximately 8.3% over benchmark
and was also over benchmark in the three- and five-year periods, at 1.8% and 1.4%
respectively as shown in the below table.
1 Year Performance 3 Year Performance 5 Year Performance
Asset Class

Fund
(%)

B'mark
(%)

Fund
(% p.a.)

B'mark
(% p.a.)

Fund
(% p.a.)

B'mark
(% p.a.)

Global Equity

53.6

39.0

20.9

13.4

20.1

14.5

Emerging Markets
Equity

53.5

42.3

6.6

7.1

-

-

Property

(7.3)

8.0

(0.4)

8.0

3.9

8.0

UK Private Rented
Sector Property

1.4

0.7

-

-

-

-

Multi-Asset Credit

24.8

4.3

-

-

-

-

Private Debt

(0.6)

4.3

-

-

-

-

LDI

0.9

0.9

(6.0)

(6.0)

-

-

Total (excluding Private Equity)

27.0

18.7

9.6

7.8

9.7

8.3

As at 31 March 2021 the Fund had approximately £1,141m pooled through the London
CIV, achieving an estimated annual fee saving £1,048k.
Cash Flows
The Fund’s cash flows from dealing with members showed a net outflow in the year of
£11.5m; the Fund received £57.7m in contributions and transfers in but paid out £69.2m
in benefits and transfers out. Total income received by the Fund, including investment
income, was £85.8m whilst total expenditure incurred, including management expenses,
was £78.5m.

Page 115
Financial Performance

Pg. 16

Income
Expenditure
Surplus for the year

2020-21
£000

2019-20
£000

85,774
(78,508)
7,266

79,102
(72,127)
6,975

The Fund’s contribution income is largely used to pay retirement benefits. In 2020/21
following the triennial valuation undertaken as at 31 March 2019 there was a small
increase in the deficit contribution paid by the council to the Fund of £0.5m pa. Within the
year there has been an increase in benefits paid, and it is projected that in the long run
this trend will contribute to an increase in the gross pension liability; this is due to the
enhanced redundancy offer made by the council in 2016/17.
During the year the Fund used cash distributions from its property investments
(approximately £4.3m) and part of its private equity distributions to meet its cash flow
needs; the remainder of the investment income received was reinvested back into the
relevant Fund assets.
The table below provides a further breakdown of the Fund’s cash flows in 2020/21.
Cash Movement

£000

Contribution’s receivable:
from employers
from employees
from employees transferring from other pension funds

43,476
10,227
3,982

Income earned on investments
Total inflow

28,089
85,774

Benefits payable:
Pension payments
Lump Sum payments due when people retire
Lump Sum death benefits
Payments to and on account of leavers:
Refunds to employees who leave the scheme
Payments where employees transfer to other funds
Tax paid on Investment Income
Management expenses
Total outflow
Net cash flow

(50,107)
(8,078)
(1,065)
(283)
(9,676)
0
(9,298)
(78,508)
7,266

Page 116
Financial Performance

Pg. 17
Triennial Valuation

The funding level as at 31 March 2019, the most recent triennial valuation, was 82% as
detailed in the table below, a slight improvement from 80% as at 31 March 2016 and a
result of beneficial market movement. There was also a small increase in the funding
deficit from £287m to £307m over the same period; Fund liabilities increased due to a
reduction in future expected investment returns and a decrease in the real yield from
gilts, although this was partially offset by lower-than-expected pay and benefit growth.

Past Service Liabilities
Employees
Deferred Pensioners
Pensioners
Total Liabilities
Assets
Surplus/(Deficit)
Funding Level

Valuation Date
31 March 2016
31 March 2019
(£)
(£)
341
397
423
543
664
807
1,429
1,746
1,142
1,439
(287)
(307)
80%
82%

Assets
As part of the 2019 triennial valuation the Fund carried out a review of its investment
strategy to understand how assets are positioned to meet the Fund’s objective to be fully
funded within twenty years, and a revised investment strategy was derived to help reduce
pressure on employer contribution rates, especially for the council as the administering
authority and largest employer in the Fund (responsible for 99% of the Fund’s liabilities).
In 2020/21 the Fund continued to implement changes to the asset classes held within
the portfolio, and will monitor the Fund’s resultant performance and estimated funding
position in the build-up to the next formal valuation as at 31 March 2022.
Liabilities
In order to place a current value on future benefit payments made from the Fund, an
assumption about future investment returns is required in order to discount future benefit
payments back to the valuation date.
In setting the discount rate the Fund is determining the extent to which it relies on future
investment returns required to meet benefit payments in excess of the assets already
held at the valuation date. It must incorporate a degree of prudence and is set with
reference to the Fund’s current and expected future investment strategy and, in
particular, how this strategy is expected to outperform the returns from government
bonds over the long term.
The Fund’s actuary estimates that as at 31 March 2021 the funding deficit stands at
£101m and the overall funding level at 94.5%.

Page 117
Financial Performance

Pg. 18
Member Contributions

In 2020/21 all non-Lambeth Council employers paid their pension contributions by the
due date, with no interest therefore chargeable for late payment. For several years the
council has participated in the National Fraud Initiative (NFI); where overpayments have
been identified, for example where a pensioner has died, action has been taken to
arrange recovery in line with Fund policies.

Page 118
Administrative Performance

Pg. 19

Administrative Performance
The Lambeth Pension Fund has an in-house team to manage its administration function.
The team of eight staff provides pensions services and manages the records of almost
21,000 scheme members across 24 active employers as at 31 March 2021. Key
achievements of the team in 2020/21 included the continued processing of member
benefits during the COVID-19 pandemic, ensuring that employer membership and
cashflow data was provided to the Fund in a timely manner, and retendering the pensions
ICT contract in time for a start date of April 2021.
Performance Against LGPC Targets 2020/21
The table below details the key administration performance indicators used for the year.
Performance indicator (from point at which all

LGPC Target

Achieved %

10 days
10 days
5 days
10 days
5 days
10 days

81.0
83.0
96.0
82.0
77.0
84.0

required information has been received)
Letter detailing transfer in quote
Letter detailing transfer out quote
Process and pay refund
Letter notifying estimate of retirement benefits
Process and pay lump sum retirement grant
Calculate and notify deferred benefits
Five-Year Analysis of Membership Data
The table below shows the movement in Fund membership over a five-year period. The
increase in pensioner members is largely due to retirements from active membership and
deferred pensions becoming due for payment.
Description
Active
Deferred pensioner
Pensioner
Total

Mar-21
5,013
8,460
7,455
20,928

Mar-20
4,946
8,410
7,686
21,042

Mar-19
5,660
8,337
7,444
21,441

Mar-18
5,386
8,257
7,235
20,878

Mar-17
5,586
8,285
7,071
20,942

Key documents for the Fund, including the discretionary policy statement, can be found
on the Fund website https://www.lgpslambeth.org.
The Fund’s Internal Dispute Resolution Procedure (IDRP) is based on standard guidance
for all Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) funds. Stage 1 cases are reviewed
by the Director of Human Resources & Organisational Development, and Stage 2 cases
by the Director of Legal Services & Human Resources. In the financial year 2020/21 there
were two cases reviewed.
The table below provides a membership breakdown of the Fund’s employers as at 31
March 2021.

Page 119
Administrative Performance

Pg. 20
Employer
Lambeth Council
Angell Town RMO
Blenhein Gardens
City Height E-ACT
Elfrida Rathbone Society
Evelyn Grace
ExcelCare
Great North Wood - Rosendale
Great North Wood - Elmgreen
Harris Academy
Hyde Housing
Kings College London
Lambeth Academy
Mears Ltd
Metra Housing
ML Community Enterprise
Oasis Academy – Johanna
Oasis Academy – South Bank
Parallel Learning Trust
Research Machines
SDBE -Christchurch
SDBE – St Leonards
SDBE – St Luke’s
Southbank Engineering
Stockwell Academy
Trinity Academy
Veolia

Active
Deferred Pensioner
4,551
8,160
7,374
10
0
0
3
4
4
31
14
0
2
0
0
41
51
3
1
5
7
60
27
7
69
18
4
6
0
0
0
8
21
4
0
0
29
69
9
4
0
6
0
5
1
0
3
1
17
13
0
31
16
0
37
29
10
1
0
0
10
8
0
26
1
1
13
0
1
9
2
0
35
24
6
20
3
0
3
0
0
5,013
8,460
7,455

Page 120
Actuarial Report on the Fund

Pg. 21

Actuarial Report on the Fund
Introduction
CIPFA's Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting 2020/21 requires Administering
Authorities of LGPS funds that prepare pension fund accounts to disclose what IAS26
refers to as the actuarial present value of promised retirement benefits. I have been
instructed by the Administering Authority to provide the necessary information for the
London Borough of Lambeth Pension Fund (“the Fund”).
The actuarial present value of promised retirement benefits is to be calculated similarly
to the Defined Benefit Obligation under IAS19. There are three options for its disclosure
in the pension fund accounts:


showing the figure in the Net Assets Statement, in which case it requires the
statement to disclose the resulting surplus or deficit;



as a note to the accounts; or



by reference to this information in an accompanying actuarial report.

If an actuarial valuation has not been prepared at the date of the financial statements,
IAS26 requires the most recent valuation to be used as a base and the date of the
valuation disclosed. The valuation should be carried out using assumptions in line with
IAS19 and not the Fund’s funding assumptions.
Present Value of Promised Retirement Benefits
Year ended
Active members (£m)
Deferred members (£m)
Pensioners (£m)
Total (£m)

31 March 2021
782
795
927
2,504

31 March 2020
500
585
800
1,885

The promised retirement benefits at 31 March 2021 have been projected using a roll
forward approximation from the latest formal funding valuation as at 31 March 2020. The
approximation involved in the roll forward model means that the split of benefits between
the three classes of member may not be reliable. However, I am satisfied that the total
figure is a reasonable estimate of the actuarial present value of benefit promises.
Note that the above figures at 31 March 2021 include an allowance for the “McCloud
ruling”, i.e. an estimate of the potential increase in past service benefits arising from this
case affecting public service pension schemes.
The figures include both vested and non-vested benefits, although the latter is assumed
to have a negligible value. Further, I have not made any allowance for unfunded benefits.

Page 121
Actuarial Report on the Fund

Pg. 22

It should be noted the above figures are appropriate for the Administering Authority only
for preparation of the pension fund accounts. They should not be used for any other
purpose (i.e. comparing against liability measures on a funding basis or a cessation
basis).
Assumptions
The assumptions used are those adopted for the Administering Authority’s IAS19 report
and are different as at 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020. I estimate that the impact of
the change in financial assumptions to 31 March 2021 is to increase the actuarial present
value by £469m. I estimate that the impact of the change in demographic and longevity
assumptions is to increase the actuarial present value by £35m.
Financial Assumptions
Year ended (% p.a.)
Pension Increase Rate
Salary Increase Rate
Discount Rate

31 March 2021
2.85%
3.35%
2.00%

31 March 2020
1.90%
2.40%
2.30%

Longevity Assumptions
Life expectancy is based on the Fund's VitaCurves with improvements in line with the
CMI 2020 model, with a 0% weighting of 2020 data, standard smoothing (Sk7), initial
adjustment of 0.5% and a long-term rate of improvement of 1.5% p.a. Based on these
assumptions, the average future life expectancies at age 65 are summarised below:
Males

Females

Current pensioners
21.5 years
23.9 years
Future pensioners (assumed to be aged 45 at
23.1 years
25.7 years
the latest formal valuation)
Please note that the longevity assumptions have changed since the previous IAS26
disclosure for the Fund.
Commutation Assumptions
An allowance is included for future retirements to elect to take 50% of the maximum
additional tax-free cash up to HMRC limits for pre-April 2008 service and 75% of the
maximum tax-free cash for post-April 2008 service.
Sensitivity Analysis
CIPFA guidance requires the disclosure of the sensitivity of the results to the methods
and assumptions used. The sensitivities regarding the principal assumptions used to
measure the liabilities are set out below:

Page 122
Actuarial Report on the Fund

Pg. 23
Sensitivity to the assumptions for the year
ended 31 March 2021
0.5% p.a. increase in the Pension Increase Rate
0.5% p.a. increase in the Salary Increase Rate
0.5% p.a. decrease in the Real Discount Rate

Approximate
% increase to
liabilities
9%
1%
10%

Approximate
monetary
amount (£m)
219
15
239

The principal demographic assumption is the longevity assumption. For sensitivity
purposes, I estimate that a 1-year increase in life expectancy would approximately
increase the liabilities by around 3-5%.
Professional Notes
This paper accompanies my covering report titled ‘Actuarial Valuation as at 31 March
2021 for accounting purposes’. The covering report identifies the appropriate reliances
and limitations for the use of the figures in this paper, together with further details
regarding the professional requirements and assumptions.
Prepared by: -

30 April 2021
Steven Law FFA
For and on behalf of Hymans Robertson LLP

Page 123
Governance Compliance Statement

Pg. 24

Governance Compliance Statement
Introduction
The requirement for a governance compliance statement is provided for by Regulation
55 of the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013, which states that the
administering authority of a Fund must prepare a written statement setting out where the
authority delegates its function, or part of its functions under the Regulations to a
committee, a sub-committee, or an officer of the authority.
At the London Borough of Lambeth Pension Fund the Pensions Committee, ‘the
Committee’, is the designated body for discharging the council’s functions in relation to
the scheme. It is the main decision-making body of the Fund, with responsibility for all
Fund matters including governance, investments, funding, accounting, employer and
scheme member engagement, communications, and administration.
The Public Service Pensions Act 2013 also required mandatory local pension boards to
be in place. The role of the Pensions Board, ‘the Board’, is to review the diligence of
decision-making but not the decision itself.
Both the Committee and Board came into effect on 1 April 2015 and, in line with other
council committees, member appointments are reviewed annually but appointed in line
with the guidelines set out in their terms of reference.
Both the Committee and the Board have a responsibility to work within, and ensure
compliance to, a range of pensions legislation and guidance (referred to henceforth as
’the Regulations’) which includes, but is not limited to:


The Public Service Pensions Act 2013;



The Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013;



The Local Government Pension Scheme (Transitional Provisions, Savings and
Amendment) Regulations 2014;



The Local Government Pension Scheme (Management and Investment of Funds)
Regulations 2016; and



The Pension Regulator’s Code of Practice No 14: Governance and Administration
of Public Service Pension Schemes.

Delegation of Functions
Subject to the council’s scheme of delegation to officers, responsibility for the proper
operation of the Fund in accordance with all relevant regulations and best practice lies
with the Pensions Committee. In addition, and in accordance with the Regulations, the
Fund has established a local Pensions Board for the purposes of assisting the
administering authority (Lambeth Council) in the governance and administration of the
scheme; the Board operates independently of the Pensions Committee.

Page 124
Governance Compliance Statement

Pg. 25

The Committee is advised by the Strategic Director of Finance and Investment and her
officers as delegated, together with the Fund’s investment consultants.
The Strategic Director of Finance and Investment is responsible for ensuring that the inhouse team provides adequate support to both the Committee and the Board. In between
Committee meetings the Fund’s managers report to officers on investment performance
and the implementation of the investment strategy.
The Fund’s procedures are subject to audit and scrutiny by both the council’s internal
audit team and its external auditor.
This delegation of functions complies with the current guidance issued by the Secretary
of State.
Pensions Committee
Terms of Reference
The full terms of reference for the Pensions Committee are set out in the council’s
Constitution; what follows is a summary of those terms. The Committee is responsible
for ensuring that the Fund is properly operated in accordance with all relevant legislation
and best practice as advised by the Pensions Regulator, the Local Government Pension
Scheme (LGPS), Scheme Advisory Board (SAB), the Ministry of Housing, Communities
and Local Government (MHCLG) and the Chartered Institute of Finance and
Accountancy (CIPFA), including both financial and administration matters. This will
include, but is not limited to:
a.
b.
c.
d.
e.
f.
g.
h.
i.

j.

benefits administration;
managing the discretions policies;
resolving internal dispute;
communications with members;
communication and engagement with employers;
monitoring risks;
record keeping;
publishing of scheme information as required;
approving the Fund's Pension Fund Annual Report and Financial Statements and
to consider any reports produced by the Strategic Director of Finance and
Investment in accordance with the duty to make arrangements for the proper
administration of the financial affairs of the Fund;
participating in the London Collective Investment Vehicle (CIV) in accordance with
the requirements placed on administering authorities in relation to the pooling of
LGPS assets;

Page 125
Governance Compliance Statement

Pg. 26

k. carrying out the duties set out in the Regulations in relation to the actuarial
valuations of the Fund and in relation to any other decisions about the amount
employers need to pay; and
l. assessing the covenant of Fund employers and ensuring that employer
contributions are set accordingly.
The Committee will determine the Fund’s overall investment strategy in accordance with
the Regulations, ensuring that the Fund is invested in suitable types of investments and
is sufficiently diversified having regard to its investment objectives. These include:
a. determining the Investment Strategy Statement;
b. ensuring adequate monitoring and compliance with the overall investment
strategy and the Investment Strategy Statement.
c. appointing investment managers and any external service providers and advisors
felt to be necessary;
d. maintaining effective arrangements for reviewing on a regular basis investment
manager performance against established benchmarks and being satisfied as to
manager expertise and the quality of their internal systems; and
e. ensuring compliance to pooling requirements through the London CIV, reviewing
CIV performance against established benchmarks on a regular basis, and being
satisfied as to the CIV’s expertise and the quality of their internal systems.
The Committee will work closely with the Board to ensure the scheme is administered
efficiently and effectively and will share with the Board reports and documents to enable
the Board to achieve and meet its remit. The Committee will receive updates from each
Board meeting and as the Board deems necessary. In support of this working relationship
any member of the Committee may attend Board meetings and Board members may
also attend Committee meetings.
As part of good scheme governance, the Committee will work with, receive, and consider
reports and requests for information from the Board. The Board is not a decision-making
body and it will be for the Committee to ensure that the appropriate actions are
undertaken as required.
The Committee will also ensure that the Fund works with the relevant admitted bodies
as required and that a discretions policy is properly maintained and administered.
Frequency of Meetings
The Committee meets at least quarterly, with additional convened as and when required.
The details of forthcoming meetings, as well as minutes and papers from previous
meetings, are available on the council’s website at the following link:
https://moderngov.lambeth.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeId=734.

Page 126
Governance Compliance Statement

Pg. 27

Committee meetings are held in the Town Hall, Brixton, or remotely by electronic, digital
or virtual means via the internet or conference call and are open to members of the public.
Representatives
The Committee draws its membership from “interested parties” as follows:


Five elected councillor members (plus two substitutes);



One employee representative (who is a member of the Fund);



One trade union representative; and



One pensioner representative (who is a member of the Fund).

All members of the Committee have voting rights and there is no requirement for it to be
politically balanced. Provision is made for all members to undergo regular and relevant
training to meet the requirement for them to be familiar with the rules of the Fund and all
relevant legislation.
Pensions Board
Terms of Reference
The full terms of reference for the Pensions Board are set out in the council’s
Constitution; what follows is a summary of those terms. The core function of the Board
is to assist the administering authority in securing compliance with the Regulations and
any other legislation relating to the governance and administration of the Fund, which it
can achieve through several means including, but not limited to:
a. the regular review of compliance monitoring reports, including reports and
decisions made under Regulations by the Committee;
b. the review of management, administrative and governance policies and
procedures to ensure they remain compliant with Regulations;
c. the review of risk management policies and the Fund’s ongoing approach to
identifying and monitoring risk; and
d. requesting information from, and making recommendations to, the Committee with
regards matters that impact the administration and governance of the Fund.
The Board is not a negotiating body and will recognise its shared interests and objectives
with the Committee; it is not responsible for making operational or investment decisions
concerning the Fund.
Frequency of Meetings
The Board will meet at least twice per year but may choose to meet more often as
required. The details of forthcoming meetings, as well as minutes and papers from
previous meetings, are available on the council’s website at the following link:
https://moderngov.lambeth.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeId=733.

Page 127
Governance Compliance Statement

Pg. 28

Board meetings are held in the Town Hall, Brixton, or remotely by electronic, digital or
virtual means via the internet or conference call and are open to members of the public.
Representatives
The Board draws its membership from “interested parties” as follows:


Three elected councillor members serving as employer representatives;



One employee representative (who is a member of the Fund);



One trade union representative; and



One pensioner representative (who is a member of the Fund).

All members of the Board have voting rights and no member serving on the Board can
also serve on the Committee (and vice versa). Provision is made for all members to
undergo regular and relevant training to meet the requirement for them to be conversant
with, or have a working knowledge of, the scheme regulations and policies, as well as
relevant pensions legislation and guidance, in order to effectively carry out their duties.
Statement of Compliance to Guidance
Regulation 55(1)(c) of the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013
requires the administering authority to report on the extent to which those bodies with
delegated authority to carry out the functions of the scheme comply with statutory
guidance. Where compliance does not meet the required standard, there is a requirement
to set out the reasons for non-compliance.
Principle A – Structure
a) The management of the administration of benefits and strategic management of
Fund assets clearly rests with the main committee established by the appointing
council.
b) That representatives of participating LGPS employers, admitted bodies and
Scheme members (including pensioner and deferred members) are members of
either the main or secondary committee established to underpin the work of the
main committee.
c) That where a secondary committee or panel has been established, the structure
ensures effective communication across both levels.
d) That where a secondary committee or panel has been established, at least one
seat on the main committee is allocated for a member from the secondary
committee or panel.

Page 128
Governance Compliance Statement

Pg. 29
Not Compliant

Fully Compliant
√

a)
√

b)

√

c)
√

d)

The Pension Fund Committee comprises representatives of the main employer,
Lambeth Council (over 95% of the scheme membership); there is no
representation of other employers or their members, although there is a
representative of active scheme members, pensioner members and a trade union
representative who all have voting rights. The Pension Board includes a
representative of active scheme members and pensioner members and the views
of the Board are reported to the Committee. Board members can attend Committee
meetings, though have no formal seat on the Committee.
Principle B – Representation
a) That all key stakeholders are afforded the opportunity to be represented within the
main or secondary committee structure. These include:


employing authorities (including non-scheme employers, e.g., admitted
bodies);



scheme members (including deferred and pensioner scheme members),



where appropriate, independent professional observers, and

 expert advisors (on an ad-hoc basis).
b) That where lay members sit on a main or secondary committee, they are treated
equally in terms of access to papers and meetings, training and are given full
opportunity to contribute to the decision-making process, with or without voting
rights.
Not Compliant

Fully Compliant

a)

√

b)

√

The Pensions Committee and Board comprises representatives of the main
employer, Lambeth Council, representation for scheme members and trade union
representation. There are no independent advisors on the Committee or Board. All
are treated equally in terms of access requirements

Page 129
Governance Compliance Statement

Pg. 30

Principle C – Selection and Role of Lay Members
a) That committee or panel members are made fully aware of the status, role and
function they are required to perform on either a main or secondary committee.
b) That at the start of any meeting, committee members are invited to declare any
financial or pecuniary interest related to specific matters on the agenda.
Not Compliant

Fully Compliant

a)

√

b)

√

Principle D – Voting
a) The policy of individual administering authorities on voting rights is clear and
transparent, including the justification for not extending voting rights to each body
or group represented on main LGPS committees.
Not Compliant

Fully Compliant
√

a)
Principle E – Training/Facility Time/Expenses

a) That in relation to the way in which statutory and related decisions are taken by
the administering authority, there is a clear policy on training, facility time and
reimbursement of expenses in respect of members involved in the decisionmaking process.
b) That where such a policy exists, it applies equally to all members of committees,
sub-committees, advisory panels or any other form of secondary forum.
c) That the administering authority considers the adoption of annual training plans
for committee members and maintains a log of all such training undertaken
Not Compliant

Fully Compliant

a)

√

b)

√

c)

√

Page 130
Governance Compliance Statement

Pg. 31

The Policy requires that the Pensions Committee and Board are aware of the six
areas of knowledge and skills relating to the LGPS which CIPFA has identified as
the core technical requirements for those involved in decision making. They are
frequently advised of training opportunities and are advised of facility time and the
reimbursement of expenses. An annual training programme is provided to
members and a formal training log is maintained for recording development.

Principle F – Meetings (Frequency/Quorum)
a) That an administering authority’s main committee or committees meet at least
quarterly.
b) That an administering authority’s secondary committee or panel meet at least
twice a year and is synchronised with the dates when the main committee sits.
c) That an administering authority who does not include lay members in their formal
governance arrangements, provide a forum outside of those arrangements by
which the interests of key stakeholders can be represented.
Not Compliant

Fully Compliant

a)

√

b)

√

c)

√

Principle G – Access
a) That subject to any rules in the council’s Constitution, all members of main and
secondary committees or panels have equal access to committee papers,
documents and advice that falls to be considered at meetings of the main
committee.
Not Compliant

Fully Compliant
√

a)

Principle H – Scope
a) That administering authorities have taken steps to bring wider Scheme issues
within the scope of their governance arrangements.
Not Compliant
a)

Fully Compliant
√

Page 131
Governance Compliance Statement

Pg. 32

Principle I – Publicity
a) That administering authorities have published details of their governance
arrangements in such a way that stakeholders with an interest in the way in which
the Scheme is governed, can express an interest in wanting to be part of those
arrangements.
Not Compliant
a)

Fully Compliant
√

Page 132
Statement of Accounts 2020/21

Pg. 33

Statement of Accounts 2020/21
Fund Account and Net Assets Statement
FUND ACCOUNT
Dealing with members, employers and others
directly involved in the fund:
Contributions
Transfers in from other pension funds
Sub-Total
Benefits
Payments to and on account of leavers
Sub-Total

Notes

RESTATED
2020/21
2019/20
£000
£000

7
8

(53,703)
(3,982)
(57,685)

(49,271)
(3,025)
(52,296)

9
10

59,251
9,959
69,210

57,125
5,748
62,873

11,526

10,577

Net (additions)/withdrawals from dealing with
members.
Management expenses
Net additions/withdrawals including fund
management
expenses
Returns
on investments:

11

9,298
20,823

9,254
19,832

Investment Income
Tax on Income
Profit and loss on disposal of investments and
changes in the market value of investments
Net return on investments
Net decrease /(increase)in the net assets
available for benefits during the year
Opening net assets of the scheme
Closing net assets of the scheme

12
13a

(28,089)
0

(26,806)
16

14a

(353,247)

19,169

(381,336)
(360,513)

(7,621)

(1,427,234)
(1,787,746)

(1,439,444)
(1,427,234)

2020-21
£000

2019-20
£000

NET ASSETS STATEMENT

Notes

12,211

Investment Assets

14

1,769,263

1,403,086

Cash Deposits
Total Investment Assets

14

0
1,769,263

0
1,403,086

Current Assets
Current Liabilities
Net assets of the fund available to fund benefits
at the period end.

20
21

18,314
170

24,161
(13)

1,787,746

1,427,234

The 2019/20 Fund Account has been restated to increase the value of management
expenses from £2,423m to £9,254m, and reduce the loss on disposal of assets/change
in market value of investments from £26,000m to £19,169m. Further detail is provided in
the Notes to the Accounts.

Page 133
Statement of Accounts 2020/21

Pg. 34
Notes to the Accounts

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
Note 1: Description of the Fund
The Lambeth Pension Fund (‘the Fund’) is part of the Local Government Pension
Scheme and is administered by London Borough of Lambeth Council. The council is the
reporting entity for this pension fund.
The following description of the Fund is a summary only. For more detail, reference
should be made to the Lambeth Pension Fund Annual Report 2020/21 and the underlying
statutory powers underpinning the scheme, namely the Public Service Pensions Act
2013 and The Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) Regulations 2013 (as
amended).
1) General
The scheme is governed by the Public Service Pensions Act 2013. The Fund is
administered in accordance with the following secondary legislation (referred to
henceforth as “the Regulations”):


The Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) Regulations 2013 (as amended)



The Local Government Pension Scheme (Transitional Provisions, Savings and
Amendment) Regulations 2014 (as amended); and



The Local Government Pension Scheme (Management and Investment of Funds)
Regulations 2016.

It is a contributory defined benefit pension scheme administered by Lambeth Council to
provide pensions and other benefits for pensionable employees of the council and a
range of other scheduled and admitted bodies within the borough.
The Fund is overseen by the Lambeth Pensions Committee, a statutory committee of
Lambeth Council with authority to discharge the council’s functions in relation to the
pension fund.
2) Membership
Membership of the LGPS is voluntary and employees are free to choose whether to join
and remain in the scheme or make their own personal arrangements outside the scheme.
Organisations participating in the Lambeth Pension Fund include:


Scheduled bodies, which are local authorities and similar bodies whose staff are
automatically entitled to be members of the Fund.



Admitted bodies, which are other organisations that participate in the Fund via an
admission agreement. Admitted bodies include voluntary and charitable bodies or
private contractors undertaking an outsourced local authority function.

Page 134
Statement of Accounts 2020/21

Pg. 35

There are 24 employer organisations within the Fund including Lambeth council itself, as
detailed below.
Lambeth Pension Fund
Number of employers with active members
Number of employees in scheme:
Lambeth council
Other employers
Total
Number of deferred pensioners:
Lambeth council
Other employers
Total
Number of pensioners:
Lambeth council
Other employers
Total
Total number of members in pension scheme

31-Mar-21

31-Mar-20

24

25

4,551
462
5,013

4,488
458
4,946

8,160
300
8,460

7,606
80
7,686

7,374
81
7,455
20,928

8,164
246
8,410
21,042

3) Funding
Benefits are funded by contributions and investment earnings. Contributions are made
by active members of the Fund in accordance with the Regulations and range from 5.5%
to 12.5% of pensionable pay for the financial year ending 31 March 2021. Employee
contributions are matched by employers’ contributions that are set based on triennial
actuarial funding valuations. The last such valuation was as at 31 March 2019. Currently,
employer contribution rates range from 0% to 51.4% of pensionable pay.
4) Benefits
For each year of LGPS membership built up between 1 April 2008 and 31 March 2014
Fund members receive a pension based on 1/60th of their final pay summarised below.
Service pre 1 April 2008
Pension

Service post 31 March 2008

Each year worked is worth 1/80 x Each year worked is worth 1/60 x
final pensionable salary.

final pensionable salary.

Lump sum Automatic lump sum of 3x salary. No automatic lump sums. Part of the
In addition, part of the annual annual pension can be exchanged
pension can be exchanged for a for a one-off tax-free cash payment.
one-off tax-free cash payment. A A lump sum of £12 is paid for each
lump sum of £12 is paid for each £1 of pension given up.
£1 of pension given up.
Prior to 1 April 2014, pension benefits under the LGPS were based on final pensionable
pay and length of pensionable service. From 1 April 2014, the scheme became a career
average scheme, whereby members accrue benefits based on their pensionable pay

Page 135
Statement of Accounts 2020/21

Pg. 36

each year at an accrual rate of 1/49th. Accrued pension benefits are updated annually in
line with the Consumer Price Index.
There are a range of other benefits provided under the scheme including early retirement,
disability pensions and death benefits. For more details, please refer to the Lambeth
Pension Fund scheme handbook available from Lambeth Town Hall or on the LGPS
website at the following link: https://www.lgpslambeth.org/media/4851/full-schemeguide-2019.pdf.
Note 2: Basis of Preparation
The statement of accounts summarises the Fund’s transactions for the 2020/21 financial
year and its position as at 31 March 2021. The accounts have been prepared in
accordance with the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United
Kingdom 2020/21 (“the Code”), which is based upon International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS), as amended for the UK public sector.
The accounts summarise the transactions of the Fund and report on the net assets
available to pay pension benefits. The accounts do not take account of obligations to pay
pensions and benefits that fall due after the end of the financial year.
The Code requires the disclosure of any accounting standards issued but not yet
adopted; no such accounting standards have been identified for 2020/21.
The Pension Fund Accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis.
Note 3: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Fund Account – revenue recognition
a) Contribution income
Normal contributions, both from members and employers, are accounted for on an
accruals basis in the payroll period to which they relate.
Employer contributions are based on the percentage rate recommended by the scheme
actuary. Employee contributions are based on the Regulations and range from 5.5% to
12.5% of pensionable pay.
Employer deficit funding contributions are accounted for on the due dates on which they
are payable under the schedule of contributions set by the scheme actuary, or on receipt
if earlier than the due date.
Employers’ augmentation contributions and pensions strain contributions are accounted
for in the period in which the liability arises. Any amount due in year but unpaid will be
classed as a current asset.

Page 136
Statement of Accounts 2020/21

Pg. 37

b) Transfers to and from other schemes
Individual transfers in/out are accounted for on a cash basis when received/paid, which
is normally when the member liability is accepted or discharged (see notes 8 and 10).
Transfers in from members wishing to use the proceeds of their additional voluntary
contributions to purchase scheme benefits are accounted for on a receipts basis and are
included in Transfers In (see note 8).
Bulk (group) transfers are accounted for on an accruals basis in accordance with the
terms of the transfer agreement.
c) Investment income
i) Interest income
Interest income is recognised in the Fund Account as it accrues, using normal accruals
accounting. Income includes the amortisation of any discount or premium, transaction
costs (where material) or other differences between the initial carrying amount of the
instrument and its amount at maturity calculated on an effective interest rate basis.
ii) Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised on the date the shares are quoted ex-dividend. Any
amount not received by the end of the reporting period is disclosed in the net assets
statement as a current asset.
iii) Distributions from pooled funds
Distributions from pooled funds are recognised at the date of issue. Any amount not
received by the end of the reporting period is disclosed in the net assets statement as a
current asset.
iv) Movement in the net market value of investments
Changes in the net market value of investments (including property funds) are recognised
as income and comprise of realised and unrealised profits/losses during the year.
Fund Account – expense items
d) Benefits payable
Pensions and lump sum benefits payable include all amounts known to be due as at the
end of the financial year. Any amounts due but unpaid are disclosed in the net assets
statement as current liabilities.
e) Taxation
The fund is a registered public service scheme under section 1(1) of Schedule 36 of the
Finance Act 2004 and as such is exempt from UK income tax on interest received and
from capital gains tax on the proceeds of investments sold. Income from overseas
investments suffers withholding tax in the country of origin unless exemption is permitted.
Irrecoverable tax is accounted for as a Fund expense as it arises.

Page 137
Statement of Accounts 2020/21

Pg. 38

f) Management expenses
The Code does not require any breakdown of costs relating to administration, oversight
and governance, and managing investments. However, in the interests of greater
transparency, the Fund discloses its total pension fund management expenses in note
11 in accordance with the CIPFA guidance on Accounting for Local Government Pension
Scheme Management Expenses (2016).
Administrative expenses
Administration expenses include those related to activities performed to administer
benefits to members, interactions with scheme employers, and staffing and IT costs. All
administration expenses are accounted for on an accruals basis. All staff costs of the
pension administration team are charged directly to the Fund as is a proportion of staff
costs relating to the investment management team. Associated management,
accommodation and other overheads are apportioned to this activity and charged as
expenses to the Fund.
Oversight and governance costs
Oversight and governance expenses include costs relating to the selection, appointment
and monitoring of external fund managers, investment advisory services, any costs of
compliance to salutatory reporting, legal and audit costs. All oversight and governance
expenses are accounted for on an accruals basis and charged directly to the Fund.
Investment management expenses
All investment management expenses are accounted for on an accruals basis. Fees of
the external fund managers and custodian are agreed in the respective mandates
governing their appointments. Broadly, these are based on the market value of the
investments under their management and therefore increase or reduce as the value of
those investments change.
Investment management expenses deducted at source (which would have been netted
off investment income or asset sales) are accounted for by grossing up investment sales;
this has the effect of increasing the change in value of investments reported in the Fund
Account and the investment reconciliation table in Note 14a, though the closing value of
investments as reported in the Net Assets Statement is unaffected. This treatment is in
line with CIPFA Guidance ‘Accounting for Local Government Pension Scheme
Management Expenses 2016’.
Where an investment manager’s fee note has not been received by the year-end date,
an estimate based upon the market value of the mandate as at the end of the year is
used for inclusion in the Fund Account. In 2020/21 there are no fees included in the
accounts based on such estimates (2019/20: £0.1m).

Page 138
Statement of Accounts 2020/21

Pg. 39
Net Assets Statement

g) Financial assets
Investments are shown at fair value, debtors and cash are at amortised cost. A financial
asset is recognised in the net assets statement on the date the Fund becomes party to
the contractual acquisition of the asset. From this date, any gains or losses arising from
changes in the fair value of the asset are recognised in the Fund Account.
The value of investments as shown in the net assets statement have been determined
as follows:
i) Market-quoted investments
The value of an investment for which there is a readily available market price is
determined by the bid market price on the final day of the accounting period.
ii) Fixed interest securities
Fixed interest securities are recorded at net market value based on their current yields.
iii) Unquoted investments
The fair value of investments for which market quotations are not readily available is
determined as follows:
Valuations of delisted securities are based on the last sale price prior to delisting or,
where subject to liquidation, the amount the Fund expects to receive on wind-up, less
estimated realisation costs.
Securities subject to takeover offer – the value of the consideration offered under the
offer, less estimated realisation costs.
Unquoted securities typically include private equity. The valuation of these pools or
directly held securities is undertaken by the investment manager or responsible entity
and advised as a unit or security price. The valuation standards followed in these
valuations adhere to industry guidelines or to standards set by the constituent documents
of the pool or the management agreement.
Investments in private equity funds and unquoted listed partnerships are valued based
on comparable valuations of similar companies in accordance with International Private
Equity and Venture Capital Valuation Guidelines.
iv) Pooled investment vehicles
Pooled investment vehicles are valued at closing bid price if both bid and offer prices are
published or, if single priced, at the closing single price. In the case of pooled investment
vehicles that are accumulation funds, change in market value also includes income that
is reinvested in the fund, net of applicable withholding tax.

Page 139
Statement of Accounts 2020/21

Pg. 40

h) Foreign currency transactions
Dividends, interest, and purchases and sales of investments in foreign currencies have
been accounted for at the spot market rates at the date of transaction. End-of-year spot
market exchange rates are used to value cash balances held in foreign currencies, the
market value of overseas investments, and purchases and sales outstanding at the end
of the reporting period.
j) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash comprises cash in hand and demand deposits and includes amounts held by the
Fund’s external managers. Cash equivalents are short-term, liquid investments that are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and that are subject to minimal risk of
changes in value.
k) Financial liabilities
A financial liability is recognised in the net assets statement on the date the Fund
becomes party to the liability. From this date, any gains or losses arising from changes
in the amount of the liability are also recognised in the net assets statement.
l) Actuarial present value of promised retirement benefits
The actuarial present value of promised retirement benefits is assessed on a triennial
basis by the scheme actuary in accordance with the requirements of IAS 19 and relevant
actuarial standards.
As permitted under the Code, the Fund has opted to disclose the actuarial present value
of promised retirement benefits by way of a note to the net assets statement (note 19).
m) Additional voluntary contributions
Lambeth Pension Fund provides an additional voluntary contribution (AVC) scheme for
its members, the assets of which are invested separately from those of the Fund. The
Fund has appointed Prudential, Equitable Life, and Clerical Medical as its AVC providers.
AVCs are paid to the AVC provider by employers and are specifically for providing
additional benefits for individual contributors. AVC contributors receive an annual
statement detailing the value of their contributions and any movements in the year.
AVCs are not included in the statement of accounts in accordance with the Regulations
but are disclosed separately in the notes to the accounts (note 22).
n) Contingent assets and contingent liabilities
A contingent asset arises where an event has taken place giving rise to a possible asset
whose existence will only be confirmed or otherwise by the occurrence of future events.
A contingent liability arises where an event has taken place prior to the year-end giving
rise to a possible financial obligation whose existence will only be confirmed or otherwise
by the occurrence of future events. Contingent liabilities can also arise in circumstances

Page 140
Pg. 41

Statement of Accounts 2020/21
where a provision would be made, except that it is not possible at the balance sheet date
to measure the value of the financial obligation reliably.
Contingent assets and liabilities are not recognised in the Net Assets Statement but are
disclosed by way of narrative in notes 24 and 25.
Note 4: Critical Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies
Unquoted private equity investments
It is important to recognise the highly subjective nature of determining the fair value of
private equity investments. They are inherently based on forward-looking estimates and
judgements involving many variables. Common judgements used include comparing
revenue or earnings multiples to public comparable entities and prices of recent
transactions. Valuations are also adjusted to account for company-specific issues, the
lack of liquidity inherent in a non-public investment, and the fact that comparable public
companies are not identical to the companies being valued.
Unquoted private equities are valued by the investment managers using guidelines set
out by the British Private Equity and Venture Capital Association. The value of unquoted
private equities at 31 March 2021 was £72.5m (31 March 2020: £67.4m).
Pension fund liability
The net pension fund liability is recalculated every three years by the appointed actuary,
with annual updates in the intervening years. The methodology used is in line with
accepted guidelines and in accordance with IAS 19. Assumptions underpinning the
valuations are agreed with the actuary and are summarised in note 19. This estimate is
subject to significant variances based on changes to the underlying assumptions.
These actuarial revaluations are used to set future contribution rates and underpin the
Fund’s most significant investment management policies, for example in terms of the
balance struck between longer term investment growth and short-term yield/return.
Note 5: Assumptions Made About the Future and Other Major Sources of
Estimation Uncertainty
The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates, and assumptions that affect the value of assets and liabilities reported at the
balance sheet date as well as the amounts reported for revenue and expenses incurred
during the year. Estimates and assumptions consider historical experience, current
trends, and other relevant factors; however, the nature of estimation means that the
actual outcomes could differ from the assumptions and estimates. The items in the
financial statements at 31 March 2021 for which there is a significant risk of material
adjustment in the forthcoming financial year are as follows.

Page 141
Statement of Accounts 2020/21

Pg. 42
Item

Uncertainties

Effect if actual results differ
from assumptions

Actuarial present
value of promised
retirement benefits
(Note 19)

Estimation of the net liability to
pay pensions depends on
several complex judgments
relating to the discount rate
used, the rate at which
salaries are projected to
increase,
changes
in
retirement ages, mortality
rates and expected returns on
pension fund assets. A firm of
consulting
actuaries
is
engaged to provide the Fund
with expert advice about the
assumptions to be applied.

Private equity
(Note 14)

Private equity investments are
valued at fair value in
accordance
with
British
Private Equity and Venture
Capital
Association
guidelines.
These
investments are not publicly
listed and as such, there is a
degree of estimation involved
in the valuation. The valuation
shown as at 31 March 2021 is
£72.5m.
The pension fund contains
investments in unitised pooled
property funds that are
classified within the financial
statements
as
level
3
investments (as detailed in
note 15).

The effects on the net pension
liability of changes in individual
assumptions can be measured.
For instance, a 0.5% decrease
in the discount rate assumption
would result in an increase in
the pension liability of £228m. A
0.5% increase in assumed
earnings
inflation
would
increase the value of liabilities
by approximately £210m, and a
one-year increase in assumed
life expectancy would increase
the liability by approximately
between £75.1m to £125.2m.
The total (called) private equity
investment in the financial
statements is £72.5m. There is
a risk that this investment may
be under- or overstated in the
accounts by up to £17m.
Private Equity is illiquid for
holding until its maturity of 12
years.

Pooled property
funds
(Note 15)

Changes in the valuation
assumptions used, together
with significant changes in
rental growth, vacancy levels or
the discount rate could affect
the fair value of property-based
investments by up to 14.1% i.e.
an increase or decrease of
£22.4m, on carrying values of
£159m.

Page 142
Statement of Accounts 2020/21

Pg. 43
Hedge fund of
funds
(Note 14)

Fund of funds are valued at
the sum of the fair values
provided by the administrators
of the underlying funds plus
adjustments that the fund of
funds'
directors
or
independent administrators
judge
necessary.
These
investments are not publicly
listed and as such, there is a
degree of estimation involved
in the valuation.

The total hedge fund of funds
value
in
the
financial
statements is £0.4m. There is a
risk that the investment may be
under or overstated in the
accounts. The Investment
Advisor reports a tolerance of
+/- 6.8% in respect of the net
asset values on which the
hedge funds of funds valuation
is based. This equates to a
tolerance of +/- £0.03m.

Note 6: Events after the Reporting Date
There have been no events since 31 March 2021, up to the date when these accounts
were authorised that require any adjustments to these accounts.
Note 7: Contributions Receivable
Category
Employees
Employers:
Normal contributions
Deficit recovery contributions
Augmentation contributions
Total employer contributions
Total contributions receivable
Type of employer
Administering authority
Scheduled bodies
Admitted bodies
Community admission bodies
Transferee admission bodies
Total

2020/21
£000

2019/20
£000

10,227

9,544

30,976
12,500
0
43,476
53,703

27,727
12,000
0
39,727
49,271

2020/21
£000
49,849
3,341
341
106
66
53,703

2019/20
£000
45,677
2,823
645
77
48
49,271

2020/21
£000
3,982
3,982

2019/20
£000
3,025
3,025

Note 8: Transfers In from Other Pension Funds
Category
Individual transfer
Total

Page 143
Statement of Accounts 2020/21

Pg. 44
Note 9: Benefits Payable
Category

Pensions
Commutation & lump sum retirement benefits
Lump sum death benefits
Total
Authority
Administering authority
Scheduled bodies
Admitted bodies
Community admission bodies
Total

2020/21
£000
50,107
8,078
1,065
59,251

2019/20
£000
48,254
7,946
925
57,125

2020/21
£000
59,199
6
46
0
59,251

2019/20
£000
56,588
309
176
52
57,125

2020/21
£000
283
9,676
9,959

2019/20
£000
347
5,401
5,748

2020/21
£000
1,122
7,699
477
9,298

RESTATED
2019/20
£000
1,275
7,463
517
9,254

Note 10: Payments to and on Account of Leavers

Refunds to members leaving service
Individual transfers
Total
Note 11: Management Expenses

Administration costs
Investment management expenses
Oversight and governance costs
Total

The expenses for 2019/20 have been adjusted between categories due to incorrect
categorisation. In addition, investment management expenses deducted at source have
now been included in the disclosed total for investment management expenses, having
previously been excluded. In 2020/21 the Fund paid £1.1m in staffing costs. This
disclosure is as per CIPFA guidance, and further details concerning key management
personnel are included within the Annual Report.

Page 144
Statement of Accounts 2020/21

Pg. 45
Note 11a: Investment Management Expenses
2020/21

Total Management Transaction
fees
costs

Bonds
Equities
Pooled investments
Pooled property investments
Private equity
Multi Asset Credit
Private Debt
Subtotal
Custody Costs
Total

£000
200
0
4,202
1,239
544
1,257
226
7,668
31
7,699

RESTATED
2019/20
Bonds
Equities
Pooled investments
Pooled property investments
Private equity
Multi Asset Credit
Private Debt
Subtotal
Custody Costs
Total

£000
200
0
4,202
1,239
544
1,257
226
7,668

£000
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

Total Management Transaction
fees
costs
£000
£000
£000
629
629
0
0
0
0
4,353
4,353
0
1,301
1,301
0
633
633
0
404
404
0
141
141
0
7,460
7,460
0
3
7,463

This analysis of the costs of managing the Lambeth Pension Fund during the period has
been prepared in accordance with CIPFA guidance.
The total management expenses incurred (deducted in the daily pricing of the individual
portfolios) for the year were £7.3m (2019-20 £7.3m) of which only £0.094m was invoiced
and the remainder deducted at source by fund managers.
In addition to these costs, indirect costs are incurred through the bid-offer spread on
investments sales and purchases. This is reflected in the cost of investment acquisitions
and in the proceeds from the sales of investments (note 14a).

Page 145
Statement of Accounts 2020/21

Pg. 46
Note 12: Investment Income
Category

Fixed interest securities
Private equity income
Pooled property investments
Pooled investments - unit trust and other managed funds
MAC Fund
Private Debt
Interest on cash deposits
Other
Total

2020/21
£000
3
9,536
4,271
4,589
7,738
1,940
0
11
28,089

2019/20
£000
7,057
6,399
5,318
7,137
175
684
1
35
26,806

Note 13a: Taxes on Income

Tax – equities
Total

2020/21
£000
0
0

2019/20
£000
16
16

2020/21
£000
19
19

2019/20
£000
19
19

Note 13b: External Audit Costs

Payable in respect of external audit
Total
Note 14: Investment Assets

Bonds
Fixed interest securities
Equities
Pooled investments
Other investments
Pooled property investments
Private equity
Multi Asset Credit
Private Debt
Subtotal
London CIV
Cash instruments
Subtotal
Total investment assets

2020/21
£000

2019/20
£000

222,409

220,332

916,792

735,168

159,115
72,508
352,080
46,175
629,878

172,433
67,464
183,060
24,446
447,404

150
34
184

150
33
182

1,769,263

1,403,086

Page 146
Statement of Accounts 2020/21

Pg. 47

Note 14a: Reconciliation of Movements in Investments
Market
value
1 April
2020

Purchases
during the
year

Transfers
- IN

Sales
during the
year

Change
in cash

Change in
market
value

Market
value
31 March
2021

Transfers
- OUT

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

Fixed
interest
securities

£000

£000

£000

220,331

13,126

0

(13,125)

0

0

2,164

222,409

Pooled
investments

735,168

4,454

0

(139,577)

0

0

316,748

916,792

Pooled
property
investments

172,433

0

0

(1,475)

0

0

(11,843)

159,115

67,464

492

0

(544)

0

0

5,095

72,508

183,060

127,538

0

(1,257)

0

0

42,738

352,080

Private Debt

24,446

24,491

0

(226)

0

0

(2,536)

46,175

London CIV

150

0

0

0

0

0

0

150

Cash
Instruments

33

0

56

0

0

(55)

0

34

1,403,086

170,101

56

(156,293)

0

(55)

352,366

1,769,263

Private
equity
Multi Asset
Credit

Subtotal
Unrealised
gain/(loss)
in currency
Total

880

1,403,086

170,101

56

(156,293)

0

(55)

353,247

1,769,263

Page 147
Statement of Accounts 2020/21

Pg. 48
Market
value
1 April
2019

Purchases
during the
year

Transfers
- IN

Sales
during the
year

Transfers
- OUT

Change
in
market
value

Market
value
31 March
2020

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

Fixed
interest
securities

294,476

190,259

0

(258,203)

0

0

(6,202)

220,332

Pooled
investments

809,251

411,843

0

(472,987)

0

0

(12,940)

735,168

Pooled
property
investments

145,273

26,532

0

(1,301)

0

0

1,928

172,433

Private
equity

61,023

34

0

(633)

0

0

7,040

67,464

Multi Asset
Credit

76,119

117,656

0

(404)

0

0

(10,312)

183,060

Private Debt

3,802

19,470

0

(141)

0

0

1,316

24,446

London CIV

150

0

0

0

0

0

0

150

0

0

50

0

0

(17)

0

33

34

0

0

0

(34)

0

0

0

1,390,129

765,794

50

(733,667)

(34)

(17)

(19,169)

1,403,086

RESTATED

Cash
Deposits
Investment
Manager
Cash
balance
Total

Change in
cash

The 2019/20 figures have been restated to create additional sales during the year and
therefore increase the change in market value against those assets where management
fees were deducted at source; the effect of this grossing up is to strip out the impact of
investment management fees deducted at source. The closing value of investments, and
the Net Assets Statement, remain unchanged.
Note 14b: Analysis of Investments

Bonds
UK
Corporate quoted
Pooled funds - additional analysis
Overseas
Unit trusts quoted
Hedge fund of funds unquoted
Pooled property investments UK unquoted
Pooled property investments Overseas unquoted
Private equity unquoted
Multi Asset Credit Overseas quoted
Private Debt Overseas quoted
London CIV
Cash Instrument
Total investment assets

31-Mar-21
£000

31-Mar-20
£000

222,409

220,332

916,405
387
42,719
116,396
72,508
352,080
46,175
150
34
1,769,263

734,513
655
42,100
130,333
67,464
183,060
24,446
150
33
1,403,086

Page 148
Statement of Accounts 2020/21

Pg. 49

Note 14c: Investments Analysed by Fund Manager

Adam Street
Aviva
Invesco
Insight
London CIV
London CIV - BG Global Equity
London CIV - JP Morgan
London CIV - MAC
Insight MMF
M and G Group
London CIV - RBC
PAAMCO
RREEF
Churchill Asset Management
Permira
Total

Market Value
% of
31 March 2021
Fund
£000
72,508
4.1
0
0.0
159,074
9.0
222,441 12.6
150
0.0
406,304 23.0
191,447 10.8
229,293 13.0
5,000
0.3
122,787
6.9
313,654 17.7
387
0.0
43
0.0
23,807
1.3
22,368
1.3
1,769,263
100

Market Value
31 March 2020
£000
67,464
79,520
172,153
220,363
150
259,990
124,802
183,060
60,000
0
210,200
655
283
17,139
7,307
1,403,086

% of
Fund
4.8
5.7
12.3
15.7
0.0
18.5
8.9
13.1
4.3
0.0
15.0
0.0
0.0
1.2
0.5
100

The following investments represent over 5% of the net assets of the fund.

Aviva
Invesco
Insight
London CIV - BG Global Equity
London CIV - JP Morgan
London CIV - MAC
London CIV - RBC
M and G Group

Market Value
31 March 2021
£000
0
159,074
222,441
406,304
191,447
229,293
313,654
122,787

% of
Fund
0.0
9.0
12.6
23.0
10.8
13.0
17.7
6.9

Market Value
31 March 2020
£000
79,520
172,153
220,363
259,990
124,802
183,060
210,200
0

% of
Fund
5.7
12.3
15.7
18.5
8.9
13.1
15.0
0.0

Note 15: Fair Value – Basis of Valuation
The basis of valuation for each class of investment asset is set out below. There has
been no change in the valuation techniques used during the year. All assets have been
valued using fair value techniques which represent the highest and best price available
at the reporting date.

Page 149
Statement of Accounts 2020/21

Pg. 50
Description
of asset

Valuation
hierarchy

Basis of
valuation

Market
quoted
investments

Level 1

Quoted
bonds

Level 1

Pooled
investments
– overseas
unit trusts
and property
funds

Level 2

Pooled
investments
– hedge
funds

Level 3

Published bid
market price on
the final day of
the accounting
period
Fixed interest
securities are
valued at a
market value
based on
current yields
Closing bid
price where bid
and offer prices
are published;
closing single
price where
single price
published
Closing bid
price where bid
and offer prices
are published;
closing single
price where
single price
published

Unquoted
equities

Level 3

Comparable
valuation of
similar
companies in
accordance
with
International
Private Equity
and Venture
Capital
Valuation
Guidelines

Observable
and
unobservable
inputs
Not required

Key sensitivities
affecting the
valuations
provided
Not required

Not required

Not required

NAV-based
pricing set on a
forward pricing
basis

Not required

NAV-based
pricing set on a
forward pricing
basis

Material events
occurring between
the date of the
statements
provided and the
Fund’s own
reporting date,
changes to
expected cash
flows, or by
variances
between audited
and unaudited
accounts.
Material events
occurring between
the date of the
statements
provided and the
Fund’s own
reporting date,
changes to
expected cash
flows, or by
variances
between audited
and unaudited
accounts

EBITDA
multiple,
revenue
multiple,
discount for lack
of marketability,
control premium

Page 150
Statement of Accounts 2020/21

Pg. 51
Sensitivity of assets valued at level 3

Having analysed historical data and current market trends, and consulted with
independent investment advisors, the fund has determined that the valuation methods
described above are likely to be accurate to within the following ranges, and has set out
below the potential impact on the closing value of investments held at 31 March 2021.

6.8%

Value at
31 Mar-21
£000
387

Value on
increase
£000
413

Value on
decrease
£000
361

24.0%

72,508

89,910

55,106

72,895

90,323

55,467

Valuation
range (+/-)
Pooled investments –
Hedge funds
Private equity
Total
Note 15a: Fair Value Hierarchy

Asset and liability valuations have been classified into three levels, according to the
quality and reliability of information used to determine fair values. Transfers between
levels are recognised in the year in which they occur.
Level 1
Assets and liabilities at level 1 are those where the fair values are derived from
unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. Products
classified as level 1 comprise quoted equities, quoted fixed securities, quoted index
linked securities and quoted unit trusts.
Level 2
Assets and liabilities at level 2 are those where quoted market prices are not available;
for example, where an instrument is traded in a market that is not considered to be active,
or where valuation techniques are used to determine fair value based on observable
data.
Level 3
Assets and liabilities at level 3 are those where at least one input that could have a
significant effect on the instrument’s valuation is not based on observable market data.
The following table provides an analysis of the financial assets and liabilities of the Fund
grouped into levels 1 to 3, based on the level at which the fair value is observable.

Page 151
Statement of Accounts 2020/21

Pg. 52

Values at 31 March 2021

Quoted
Market
price

Using
observable
inputs

With
significant
unobservable
inputs

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

£000

£000

£000

£000

222,409
1,314,810
0
0
34
1,537,253

0
0
0
0
0
0

0
387
159,115
72,508
0
232,010

222,409
1,315,197
159,115
72,508
34
1,769,263

Quoted
Market
price

Using
observable
inputs

With
significant
unobservable
inputs

Total

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

£000

£000

£000

£000

220,331
942,169
0
0
32
1,162,533

0
0
0
0
0
0

0
655
172,433
67,464
0
240,553

220,331
942,824
172,433
67,464
32
1,403,086

Total

Financial assets at fair value
through profit and loss
Bonds
Pooled investments
Pooled property investments
Private equity
Cash deposits
Total

Values at 31 March 2020

Financial assets at fair value
through profit and loss
Bonds
Pooled investments
Pooled property investments
Private equity
Cash deposits
Total

Note 15b: Reconciliation of Fair Value Measurements within Level 3

Hedge Fund
of Funds
Private
equity
Pooled
property
investments

Market
value
1 Apr
2020
£000

Transfer
into
level 3
£000

Transfer
out of
level 3
£000

Unrealised
gain (loss)
£000

Realised
gain
(loss)
£000

Market
Value 31
March
2021
£000

Purchases
£000

Sales
£000

655

0

0

0

0

(268)

0

387

67,464

0

0

492

(544)

5,095

0

72,508

172,435

0

0

0

(1,475)

(13,318)

0

159,117

240,555

0

0

492

(2,019)

(8,491)

0

232,012

Page 152
Statement of Accounts 2020/21

Pg. 53

Note 16a: Classification of Financial Instruments
2020/21

2019/20

Fair
value
through
profit &
loss

Assets at
amortised
cost

Liabilities
at
amortised
cost

Fair value
through
profit &
loss

Assets at
amortised
cost

Liabilities
at
amortised
cost

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

222,409

0

0

220,332

0

0

916,792

0

0

735,168

0

0

159,115

0

0

172,433

0

0

72,508

0

0

67,464

0

0

352,080

0

0

183,060

0

0

Private Debt

46,175

0

0

24,446

0

0

London CIV

150

0

0

150

0

0

34

0

0

33

0

0

0

600

0

0

571

0

0

17,714

0

0

23,590

0

0

0

170

0

0

(13)

1,769,263

18,314

170

1,403,086

24,161

(13)

Financial Assets:
Fixed interest
securities
Pooled
investments
Pooled property
investments
Private equity
Multi Asset Credit

Cash instruments
Debtors
Cash and cash
equivalents
Financial
Liabilities:
Creditors
Total

Note 16b: Net Gains and Losses on Financial Instruments

Financial Assets:
Fair Value through profit and loss
Measured at amortised cost
Financial Liabilities:
Measured at amortised cost
Total

31-Mar-21
£000

31-Mar-20
£000

352,367
0

(19,169)
0

880
353,247

0
(19,169)

The fair value through profit and loss recorded in 19/20 has been restated from
(£26,000m) to (£19,169m) to reflect the grossing up of investment sales and correctly
account for investment management fees deducted at source, as explained in Note 3f).

Page 153
Statement of Accounts 2020/21

Pg. 54

Note 17: Nature and Extent of Risks Arising from Financial Instruments
Risk and Risk Management
The Fund’s primary long-term risk is that the Fund’s assets will fall short of its liabilities
(i.e. promised benefits payable to members). Therefore, the aim of investment risk
management is to minimise the risk of an overall reduction in the value of the Fund and
to maximise the opportunity for gains across the whole portfolio. The Fund achieves this
through asset diversification to reduce exposure to market risk (price risk, currency risk,
and interest risk) to ensure there is sufficient liquidity to meet the Fund’s forecast cash
flows. The Fund manages these investment risks as part of its overall Fund risk
management programme.
Responsibility for the Fund’s risk management strategy rests with the Pensions
Committee. Risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks
faced by the Fund’s pensions operations. Policies are reviewed regularly to reflect
changes in activity and in market conditions.
a) Market risk
Market risk is the risk of loss from fluctuations in equity and commodity prices, interest
and foreign exchange rates and credit spreads. The Fund is exposed to market risk from
its investment activities, particularly through its equity holdings. The level of risk exposure
depends on market conditions, expectations of future price and yield movements and the
asset mix.
The objective of the Fund’s risk management strategy is to identify, manage, and control
market risk exposure within acceptable parameters, whilst optimising the return on risk.
In general, excessive volatility in market risk is managed through the diversification of
the portfolio in terms of geographical and industry sectors and individual securities. To
mitigate market risk, the Fund and its investment advisors undertake appropriate
monitoring of market conditions and benchmark analysis. The Fund manages these risks
in two ways:
1. The exposure of the Fund to market risk is monitored through a factor risk analysis,
to ensure that risk remains within tolerable levels.
2. Specific risk exposure is limited by applying risk-weighted maximum exposures to
individual investments.
Equity futures contracts and exchange traded option contracts on individual securities
may also be used to manage market risk on equity investments. It is possible for overthe-counter equity derivative contracts to be used in exceptional circumstances to
manage specific aspects of market risk.
Other price risk – sensitivity analysis
Following analysis of historical data and expected investment return movement during
the financial year, and in consultation with the Fund’s investment advisors, the Fund has

Page 154
Statement of Accounts 2020/21

Pg. 55

determined that the following movements in market price risk are reasonably possible for
the 2020/21 reporting period. The potential price changes disclosed below are broadly
consistent with a one-standard deviation movement in the value of the assets. The
sensitivities are consistent with the assumptions contained in the investment advisors’
most recent review; this analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign
currency exchange rates and interest rates, remain the same.
Potential
market
movement
%
14.7%
26.5%
17.8%
10.6%
17.8%
14.1%
24.0%
9.4%
6.8%
0.0%
0.0%

Asset type
Bonds - LDI
Emerging Market Equities
Sustainable Equities
Private Debt
Global Equities
Pooled Property Investments
Private Equity
Multi Asset Credit
Hedge Funds
Money Market Fund
Cash - GBP

Had the market price of the Fund’s investments increased/decreased in line with the
above percentage movements, the change in the net assets available to pay benefits
would have been as follows (the prior year comparator is also shown below).

Asset type

Value at
31 Mar 21

Potential
market
movement

Value on
increase

Value on
decrease

Bonds - LDI
Emerging Market Equities
Private Debt
Global Equities
Pooled Property Investments
Private Equity
Multi Asset Credit
Hedge Funds
Money Market Fund
London CIV
Total

£000
222,441
191,447
46,175
719,958
159,117
72,508
352,080
387
5,000
150
1,769,263

£000
32,699
50,734
4,895
128,152
22,435
17,402
33,096
26
0
0
289,439

£000
255,139
242,181
51,070
848,110
181,552
89,910
385,175
413
5,000
150
2,058,701

£000
189,742
140,714
41,281
591,805
136,681
55,106
318,984
361
5,000
150
1,479,824

Page 155
Statement of Accounts 2020/21

Pg. 56

Asset type

Value at
31 Mar 20

Bonds - LDI
Emerging Market Equities
Private Debt
Global Equities
Pooled Property Investments
Private Equity
Multi Asset Credit
Diversified Growth
Hedge Funds
Money Market Fund
London CIV
Total

£000
220,362
124,802
24,446
470,190
172,435
67,464
183,060
183,060
79,520
655
60,000
150
1,403,086

Potential
market
movement
£000
30,851
38,065
2,249
107,674
24,486
24,624
15,560
6,554
9,463
50
0
0
253,022

Value on
increase

Value on
decrease

£000
251,213
162,867
26,695
577,864
196,921
92,089
198,621
198,621
88,982
706
60,000
150
1,656,108

£000
189,511
86,738
22,197
362,517
147,949
42,840
167,500
70,057
605
60,000
150
1,150,064

Interest rate risk
The Fund invests in financial assets for the primary purpose of obtaining a return on
investments. These investments are subject to interest rate risks, which represent the
risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market interest rates.
The Fund’s interest rate risk is routinely monitored by the Fund and its investment
advisors in accordance with the Fund’s risk management strategy, including monitoring
the exposure to interest rates and assessment of actual interest rates against the relevant
benchmarks.
The Fund’s direct exposure to interest rate movements as at 31 March 2021 and 31
March 2020 is set out below. These disclosures present interest rate risk based on the
underlying financial assets at fair value.
Interest rate risk – sensitivity analysis
The Fund recognises that interest rates can vary and can affect both income to the Fund
and the carrying value of Fund assets, both of which affect the value of the net assets
available to pay benefits. A 100 basis points movement in interest rates is consistent with
the level of sensitivity applied as part of the Fund’s risk management strategy. The Fund’s
investment advisor has advised that long-term average rates are expected to move less
than 100 basis points from one year to the next.
The analysis that follows assumes that all other variables, in particular exchange rates,
remain constant, and shows the effect in the year on the net assets available to pay
benefits of a +/- 100 basis point change in interest rates.

Page 156
Statement of Accounts 2020/21

Pg. 57
Assets exposed to interest
rate risk
Cash and cash equivalents
Fixed interest securities
Total

Assets exposed to interest
rate risk
Cash and cash equivalents
Fixed interest securities
Total

Value at
31 Mar 21
£000
17,714
222,409
240,123
Value at
31 Mar 20
£000
23,590
220,331
243,921

Potential
market
movement
£000
0
2,224
2,224
Potential
market
movement
£000
0
2,203
2,203

Cash and cash equivalents
Fixed interest securities
Total

Amount
Potential
Receivable
market
2020/21 movement
£000
£000
0
0
3
0
3
0

Income exposed to interest
rate risk

Amount
Potential
Receivable
market
2019/20 movement

Income exposed to interest
rate risk

Cash and cash equivalents
Fixed interest securities
Total

£000
1
7,057
7,058

£000
0
71
71

Value on
increase

Value on
decrease

£000
17,714
224,633
242,347

£000
17,714
220,185
237,899

Value on
increase

Value on
decrease

£000
23,590
222,535
246,125

£000
23,590
218,128
241,718

Value on
increase

Value on
decrease

£000
0
3
3

£000
0
3
3

Value on
increase

Value on
decrease

£000
1
7,127
7,128

£000
1
6,986
6,987

This analysis demonstrates that a 1% increase in interest rates will not affect the interest
received on fixed interest assets but will reduce their fair value, and vice versa. Changes
in interest rates do not influence the value of cash/cash equivalent balances but they will
affect the interest income received on those balances. Changes to both the fair value of
assets and the income received from investments impact on the net assets available to
pay benefits.
Currency risk
Currency risk represents the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Fund is
exposed to currency risk on financial instruments that are denominated in any currency
other than the functional currency of the fund (GBP). The Fund holds both monetary and
non-monetary assets denominated in currencies other than GBP.

Page 157
Statement of Accounts 2020/21

Pg. 58

The Fund’s currency rate risk is routinely monitored by the Fund and its investment
advisors in accordance with the Fund’s risk management strategy, including monitoring
the range of exposure to currency fluctuations.
Currency risk – sensitivity analysis
Following analysis of historical data in consultation with the Fund investment advisors,
the Fund considers the likely volatility associated with foreign exchange rate movements
to be 10% (as measured by one standard deviation).
A 10% fluctuation in the currency is considered reasonable based on the Fund advisor’s
analysis of long-term historical movements in the month-end exchange rates over a
rolling 36-month period.
This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain
constant. A 10% strengthening / weakening of the pound against the various currencies
in which the Fund holds investments would increase / decrease the net assets available
to pay benefits as follows:

Assets exposed to currency
risk
Overseas unquoted securities
Overseas unit trusts
Total

Assets exposed to currency
risk
Overseas unquoted securities
Overseas unit trusts
Total

Value at
31 Mar 21

Potential
market
movement

Value on
increase

Value on
decrease

£000
72,508
116,396
188,903

£000
7,251
11,640
18,890

£000
79,758
128,035
207,794

£000
65,257
104,756
170,013

Value on
increase

Value on
decrease

£000
74,211
143,168
217,379

£000
60,718
117,137
177,855

Value at
31 Mar 20
£000
67,464
130,153
197,617

Potential
market
movement
£000
6,746
13,015
19,762

b) Credit risk
Credit risk represents the risk that the counterparty to a transaction or a financial
instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and cause the Fund to incur a financial loss.
The market value of investments generally reflect an assessment of credit in their pricing
and consequently the risk of loss is implicitly provided for in the carrying value of the
Fund’s financial assets and liabilities.
The Fund believes it has managed its exposure to credit risk and has had no experience
of default or uncollectable deposits over the past five financial years. The Fund’s cash
holding under its treasury management arrangements at 31 March 2021 was £17.7m (31
March 2020: £23.6m). This was held with the following institutions.

Page 158
Statement of Accounts 2020/21

Pg. 59

Rating
Money Market Funds:
Northern Trust - Liquidity Fund
Bank Deposits and Current Account:
Royal Bank of Scotland
Total

31 Mar 21
£000

31 Mar 20
£000

24

19

17,714
17,738

23,590
23,609

AAA
A+

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk represents the risk that the Fund will not be able to meet its financial
obligations as they fall due. The Fund therefore takes steps to ensure it maintains
adequate cash resources to meet its commitments. This will particularly be the case for
cash from the cash flow matching mandates from the main investment strategy to meet
pensioner payroll costs, and cash to meet investment commitments; the Fund has
immediate access to its cash holdings.
The Fund defines liquid assets as assets that can be converted to cash within three
months. Illiquid assets are those assets that will take longer than three months to convert
into cash. As at 31 March 2021 the value of liquid assets was £1,714.6m, which
represented 95.9% of total Fund assets (31 March 2020: £1,358.6m, which represented
95.2% of total Fund assets).
The Fund’s Investment Management team prepares periodic cash flow forecasts to
understand and manage the timing of the Fund’s cash flows. The appropriate strategic
level of cash balances to be held forms part of the Fund investment strategy.
All financial liabilities at 31 March 2021 are due within one year.
Refinancing risk
The key risk is that the Fund will be obligated to replenish a significant proportion of its
financial instruments at a time of unfavourable interest rates. The Fund does not have
any financial instruments that have a refinancing risk as part of its investment strategy.
Note 18: Funding Arrangements
In line with the Regulations the Fund’s actuary undertakes a funding valuation every three
years for setting employer contribution rates for the forthcoming triennial period. The last
such valuation took place as at 31 March 2019.
The key elements of the funding policy are:


To ensure the long-term solvency of the Fund, i.e. that sufficient funds are
available to meet all pension liabilities as they fall due for payment.



To ensure that employer contribution rates are as stable as possible.

Page 159
Statement of Accounts 2020/21

Pg. 60





To minimise the long-term cost of the scheme by recognising the link between
assets and liabilities and adopting an investment strategy that balances risk and
return.
To reflect the different characteristics of employing bodies in determining
contribution rates where the administering authority considers it reasonable to do.
To use reasonable measures to reduce the risk to other employers and ultimately
to the council taxpayer from an employer defaulting on its pension obligations .

The aim is to achieve 100% solvency over a period of 17 years and to provide stability in
employer contribution rates by spreading any increases in rates over a reasonable
period. Solvency is achieved when the funds held, future expected investment returns,
and future contributions are sufficient to meet expected future pension benefits payable.
When an employer’s funding level is less than 10% of the 100% funding target, then a
deficit recovery plan will be put in place requiring additional contributions from the
employer to meet the shortfall.
At the 2019 actuarial valuation the Fund was assessed as 82% funded (80% at the March
2016 valuation). This corresponded to a deficit of £307m (2016 valuation: £287m) at that
time.
Contribution increases were phased in over the three-year period from April 2020 to 31
March 2023 for scheme employers. The common contribution rate (i.e. the rate that all
employers in the Fund pay) is 19.4% until the next triennial valuation in 2023.
Individual employers’ rates will vary from the common contribution rate depending on the
demographic and actuarial factors particular to each employer. Full details of the
contribution rates payable can be found in the 2019 actuarial valuation report and the
Funding Strategy Statement on the Fund’s website.
The valuation of the Fund has been undertaken using the projected unit method under
which the salary increase for each member is assumed to increase until they leave active
service by death, retirement, or withdrawal from scheme. The principal assumptions were
as follows:
Longevity assumptions
The post-retirement mortality tables are the S1PA tables with a multiplier of 110% for
males and 100% for females. These base tables are then projected using the CMI 2018
Model, allowing for a long-term rate of improvement of 1.25% pa. The assumptions used
for the 2019 valuation of assumed life expectancy from age 65 is shown below, together
with the latest assumptions.

Page 160
Statement of Accounts 2020/21

Pg. 61

Retiring today
Males
Females
Retiring in 20 years
Males
Females

31-Mar-21

31-Mar-19

21.5
23.9

21.3
23.5

23.1
25.7

22.7
25.0

Commutation assumption
It was assumed that future retirees will take 25% of the maximum additional tax-free lump
sum up to HMRC limits for pre-April 2008 service and 63% of the maximum for post-April
2008 service.
Note 19: Actuarial Present Value of Promised Retirement Benefits
In addition to the triennial funding valuation, the Fund’s actuary also undertakes a
valuation of the pension fund liabilities, on an IAS 19 basis, every year using the same
base data as the funding valuation rolled forward to the current financial year, taking
account of changes in membership numbers, and updating assumptions to the current
year. This valuation is not carried out on the same basis as that used for setting Fund
contribution rates and the Fund accounts do not take account of liabilities to pay pensions
and other benefits in the future.
To assess the value of the benefits on this basis, the actuary has updated the actuarial
assumptions (set out below) from those used for funding purposes (see note 18). The
actuary has also valued ill health and death benefits in line with the IAS 19.
Calculated on an IAS 19 basis, the actuarial present value of promised retirement
benefits at 31 March 2021 was £2,504m (31 March 2020: £1,885m). The fair value of the
scheme assets was estimated to be £1,747m (31 March 2020: £1,382m), and the net
liability was therefore implied to be £758m (31 March 2020: £504m).
As noted above, the liabilities are calculated on an IAS 19 basis and therefore will differ
from the results of the 2019 triennial funding valuation (see note 18) because IAS 19
stipulates a discount rate rather than a rate which reflects market rates.
Assumptions used
Pension increase rate
Salary increase rate
Discount rate

2020/21
%
2.85
3.35
2.00

2019/20
%
1.90
2.40
2.30

Page 161
Statement of Accounts 2020/21

Pg. 62
Note 20: Current Assets

Sundry debtors
Cash balances
Total

31-Mar-21
£000
600
17,714
18,314

31-Mar-20
£000
571
23,590
24,161

31-Mar-21
£000
(170)
(170)

31-Mar-20
£000
13
13

31-Mar-21
£000

31-Mar-20
£000

X
X
X
X

2,627
490
172
3,289

Note 21: Current Liabilities

Sundry creditors
Total
Note 22: Additional Voluntary Contributions

Prudential
Utmost Life & Pensions
Clerical Medical
Total

Note 23: Related Party Transactions
Lambeth Council administers the Lambeth Pension Fund. Consequently, there is a
strong relationship between the council and the pension fund.
During the reporting period, the council incurred costs of £1.12m (2019/20: £1.27m) in
relation to the administration of the fund and these costs were reimbursed by the Fund.
The Council is also the single largest employer of members of the pension fund and
contributed £40.0m to the fund in 2020/21 (2019/20: £36.0m). The amount payable to
the Council as at 31 March 2021 is shown as a current liability.
Governance
There are no elected Members of the Pensions Committee in receipt of pension benefits
from the Lambeth Pension Fund, but one pensioner representative is in receipt of
pension benefits from the Lambeth Pension Fund. In addition, Pensions Committee staff
representative S SivaAnanthan is an active member of the pension fund. Also, one
Pensions Board staff representative G Williamson is an active member of the pension
fund.
Members of the Pensions Committee are required to declare interests at each meeting.
Note 24: Contingent Liabilities and Contractual Commitments
The total investment commitments as at 31 March 2021 are £212.2m and the outstanding
undrawn commitments are £36.9m (31 March 2020: total commitment £222.9m and
outstanding was £63.7m).

Page 162
Pg. 63

Statement of Accounts 2020/21
These commitments relate to outstanding call payments due on the Private Equity,
Pooled Property & Private Debt mandates of the portfolio. The amounts ‘called’ by these
fund managers are irregular in both size and timing over a period of between four and
six years from the date of each original commitment.
Note 25: Contingent Assets
Admitted body employers in the Lambeth Pension Fund hold bonds to guard against the
possibility of being unable to meet their pension obligations. These bonds are drawn in
favour of the pension fund and payment will only be triggered in the event of employer
default.

Page 163
Funding Strategy Statement

Pg. 64

Funding Strategy Statement
The Funding Strategy Statement (FSS) of the London Borough of Lambeth Pension Fund
is a statutory requirement and has been prepared by the administering authority in
collaboration with the Fund’s actuary, Hymans Robertson LLP, and after consultation
with the Fund’s employers and investment advisor.
Employees’ benefits are guaranteed by the LGPS Regulations, and do not change with
market values or employer contributions. Investment returns will help pay for some of the
benefits, but probably not all, and certainly with no guarantee. Employees’ contributions
are fixed in those Regulations also, at a level which covers only part of the cost of the
benefits.
Therefore, employers need to pay the balance of the cost of delivering the benefits to
members and their dependants.
The FSS is a summary of the Fund’s approach to funding its liabilities, and focuses on
how employer liabilities are measured, the pace at which these liabilities are funded, and
how employers pay for their own liabilities. It sets out how the administering authority has
balanced the conflicting aims of:


Affordability of employer contributions;



Transparency of processes;



Stability of employers’ contributions; and



Prudence in the funding basis.

Following the 2019 triennial valuation the FSS was reviewed and updated; the most
recent version was prepared as at March 2020.
The full version of the FSS is appended to this report as Appendix 1, and is also available
on the Fund’s website at the following link:
https://www.lgpslambeth.org/lambeth-pension-fund/about-us/forms-and-publications/

Page 164
Investment Strategy Statement

Pg. 65

Investment Strategy Statement
Regulation 7(1) of the Local Government Pension Scheme (Management and
Investment of Funds) Regulations 2016 requires administering authorities to formulate
an Investment Strategy Statement (ISS) which must be in accordance with guidance
issued by the Secretary of State.
The ISS is a document that replaces, and largely replicates, the Statement of Investment
Principles. Administering Authorities will be required to prepare and maintain an ISS
documenting how the investment strategy for the Fund is determined and implemented.
The ISS must include:
a) A requirement to invest money in a wide variety of investments;
b) The authority’s assessment of the suitability of particular investments and types
of investments;
c) The authority’s approach to risk, including the ways in which risks are to be
assessed and managed;
d) The authority’s approach to pooling investments, including the use of collective
investment vehicles and shared services;
e) The authority’s policy on how social, environmental and corporate governance
considerations are taken into account in the selection, non-selection, retention and
realisation of investments; and
f) The authority’s policy on the exercise of the rights (including voting rights)
attaching to investments.
Lambeth published its latest ISS in February 2020; the document will be regularly
reviewed and updated at least every three years.
The ISS should be read in conjunction with the following statutory documents:


Funding Strategy Statement



Governance Policy and Compliance Statement



Communications Policy Statement



The Pension Fund Annual Report and Accounts



Actuarial Valuation

The full version of the ISS is appended to this report as Appendix 2, and is also available
on the Fund’s website at the following link:
https://www.lgpslambeth.org/lambeth-pension-fund/about-us/forms-and-publications/

Page 165
Communications Policy Statement

Pg. 66

Communications Policy Statement
Regulation 61 of the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013 requires the
council, as the administering authority, to prepare, maintain, and publish a written
statement setting out its policy concerning communications with members,
representatives of members, prospective members and scheme employers.
It must also set out the authority’s policy on:
a) The provision of information and publicity about the scheme to members,
representatives of members and scheme employers;
b) The format, frequency, and method of distributing such information or publicity;
and
c) The promotion of the scheme to prospective members and their employers.
The Fund’s Communications Policy Statement sets out the processes by which these
objectives are achieved. The most accurate and up-to-date information is usually
communicated in one of two ways;


The Fund’s dedicated website; this contains all relevant information on joining the
scheme, who runs the scheme, and the latest policies and procedures that govern
it. The website can be found at the following link: https://www.lgpslambeth.org.



Annual Benefit Statements; these are sent out to all active and deferred members
and provide details of accrued pension benefits and prospective benefits at
retirement. The Fund will continue to improve and update the statements to ensure
the information provided is accurate, clear and understandable.

The full version of the statement is appended to this report as Appendix 3, and is also
available on the Fund’s website at the following link:
https://www.lgpslambeth.org/lambeth-pension-fund/about-us/forms-and-publications/
Fund Contact Details:
Pension Administration
Lambeth Pension Services
2nd Floor, Lambeth Town Hall
2 Brixton Hill
Brixton
London SW2 1RW

Investment Management
Treasury and Pensions
2nd Floor, Lambeth Town Hall
2 Brixton Hill
Brixton
London SW2 1RW

Telephone: 0207 926 9572
Email: pensions@lambeth.gov.uk

Telephone: 0207 926 0576
Email: pensionfund@lambeth.gov.uk

Page 166
Additional Compliance Statement

Pg. 67

Additional Compliance Statement
The purpose of this Compliance Statement is to disclose additional information required
by law, but which is not considered to be of such significance to members.
Taxation
The Fund is approved under the Income and Corporation Taxes Act 1988. Although
exempt from UK income and capital gains taxes, the Fund is unable to recover the tax
credit on UK dividends.
Transfer Values
Transfer values for Members leaving pensionable service during the year were
calculated in accordance with the Pension Schemes Act 1993, (as amended by the
Pensions Act 1995). No transfer values were reduced because of under-funding. The
rules of the Fund have always provided that deferred pensioners may transfer the value
of their benefits to another approved scheme at any time before any benefits have been
paid from the Fund.
Pension Increases
Pensions are increased in accordance with the pension increase (Review) Order 2009
Statutory Instrument 2009 No 692.

Page 167
Statement of Responsibilities

Pg. 68

Statement of Responsibilities
The Council’s Responsibilities
The Council is required:


To make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to
ensure that one of its officers has responsibility for the administration of those
affairs (usually that officer is the Section 151 officer, or the Chief Financial Officer);



To manage its affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use of resources
and safeguard its assets.



To approve the statement of accounts.

The Chief Financial Officer’s Responsibilities
The Chief Financial Officer is responsible for the preparation of the Fund’s statement of
accounts in accordance with proper practices set out in the CIPFA Code of Practice on
Local Government Accounting, as updated annually.
In preparing this statement of accounts, the Chief Financial Officer has:


Selected suitable accounting policies and then applied them consistently;



Made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent;



Complied with the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the UK
2020/21;



Maintained proper accounting records which are up-to-date; and



Taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other
irregularities.

I certify that these accounts are a true and fair reflection of the financial position of the
London Borough of Lambeth Pension Fund as at 31 March 2021.

Christina Thompson
Chief Financial Officer (S151 Officer)

Page 168
Independent Auditor’s Statement

Pg. 69

Independent Auditor's Statement
Independent auditor’s report to the members of the London Borough of Lambeth on the
pension fund financial statements published with the Lambeth Pension Fund Annual
Report
Available when audit complete.

Page 169

Agenda Item 9

PENSIONS BOARD 12 AUGUST 2021
Report title: Lambeth Pension Fund – Investment Performance Review – 31 March
2021
Wards: All
Portfolio: Cabinet Member for Finance and Performance: Councillor Andy Wilson
Report Authorised by: Strategic Director for Finance and Investment: Fiona
McDermott:
Contact for Enquiries: Robert Browning, Head of Treasury and Pensions, 07394
402801, rbrowning@lambeth.gov.uk

REPORT SUMMARY
The Pensions Committee considers fund managers' performance on a quarterly
basis in order to assess the performance of the Council's Pension Fund investments
and the market outlook.
This report informs members of the fund managers’ performance as measured by
Mercer, the Fund's investment adviser, and keeps members up to date on managing
the implemented investment strategy.

FINANCE SUMMARY
There are no direct financial implications in agreeing this report. For the quarter
ended 31 March 2021, the pension fund costs in respect of fund managers’ fees
totalled £1,890,207.44 of which only £1,125.07 was remitted; the remainder was
deducted in the daily pricing of the individual portfolio’s net asset value. The Fund
meets all fees and there are no additional financial implications for the Council.

1.

RECOMMENDATIONS
That the report, together with the information in the accompanying performance
report, be noted.

Page 170
1
CONTEXT
1.1 The Pensions Committee reviews the performance of the Fund investments and
administration on a quarterly basis and considers the market outlook. In
addition, the Committee considers the Fund arrangements and pension policy
issues. The following narrative provides headlines from the investment
performance report from Mercer.
2

PROPOSALS AND REASONS

Performance to 31 March 2021
2.1 The market value of the Fund’s assets as at 31 March 2021 was £1,785.9m, a
small decrease of £12m or 0.7% over the previous quarter (£1,797.9m as at 31
December 2020).
2.2 The Fund underperformed against the benchmark over the quarter to 31 March
2021 (-0.3% against a benchmark of 0.7%), the main detractors to performance
being the Invesco European Property Fund (returning -5.5% against a
benchmark of 1.9%) and the RBC Sustainable Equity Fund (1.4% against a
benchmark of 4.0%).
2.3 The Fund has however outperformed its overall benchmark over a twelvemonth, three-year and five-year period; performance over the twelve-month
period was particularly notable at 27%, 8.3% ahead of benchmark.
2.4 The full performance report from Mercer is attached at Appendix One; the table
showing asset class performance over three months, one year, three years, and
five years is re-produced below.

Asset Class

Last Quarter
Last Year
Fund B’mark Fund B’mark

Last 3 Years
Fund B’mark
(%
(%
p.a.)
p.a.)

Last 5 Years
Fund B’mark
(%
(%
p.a.)
p.a.)

(%)

(%)

(%)

(%)

1.9

3.8

53.6

39.0

20.9

13.4

20.1

14.5

(0.1)

1.3

53.5

42.3

6.6

7.1

-

-

(5.5)

1.9

(7.3)

8.0

(0.4)

8.0

3.9

8.0

0.2

1.8

1.4

0.7

-

-

-

-

2.0

1.0

24.8

4.3

-

-

-

-

Private Debt

(0.4)

1.0

(0.6)

4.3

-

-

-

-

LDI

(7.6)

(7.6)

0.9

0.9

(6.0)

(6.0)

-

-

(0.3)

0.7

27.0

18.7

9.6

7.8

9.7

8.3

Global Equity
Emerging
Markets
Equity
Property
UK PRS
Property
Multi-Asset
Credit

Total (exAdams Street)

Page 171

Notes on table:
 Figures shown are net of fees and based on performance provided by the
investment managers, Mercer estimates and Thomson Reuters Datastream.
 For periods over one year the figures in the table above have been
annualised.
 Total scheme returns include quarterly returns for Private Debt calculated by
Mercer using a Modified Dietz approach based on data provided by Churchill,
Invesco and Thomson Reuters Datastream. Over the long-term returns are
chain linked using quarterly Total Fund returns.
 Property benchmark return taken as an absolute return target of 8% p.a. for
performance measurement purposes.
 Multi Asset Credit benchmark return taken as 3 Month Sterling LIBOR +4%
p.a. for performance measurement purposes.
 UK Private Rented Sector Property and Private Debt figures shown for all
periods are calculated by Mercer using a Modified Dietz approach over each
period and are based on data provided by Churchill, Invesco and Thomson
Reuters Datastream.
Rebalancing
2.5 As at 31 March 2021 the Fund’s allocation to global equities was approximately
10.3% over benchmark allocation (due to increases in market value), most
notably with Baillie Gifford (7.8% over benchmark), whilst the overall property
allocation is 6.1% under the benchmark (set out on slide 3 of the attached
report at Appendix One) and the LDI allocation 2.5% under benchmark. Officers
are working to address the imbalances in the Fund’s asset allocations.
Fund Management Fees
2.6 For the quarter ended 31 March 2021 the costs in respect of fund managers’
fees totalled £1,890,207.44 of which only £1,125.07 was remitted; the
remainder was deducted in the daily pricing of the individual portfolio’s net asset
value. Fees are calculated on market value of the portfolio as at the end of the
quarter after adjusting for changes in capital value. All fees are met by the
Pension Fund.
Funding Level as at 31 March 2021
2.7 The funding level at the last formal valuation as at 31 March 2019 was 82%.
The actuary’s estimated funding level as at the end of 31 March 2021 had
improved to 94.5%, an increase of approximate12.5% over the current valuation
period. However, it should be noted that market reactions to the Chancellor’s
announcement on RPI reform have indicated their estimate of long-term CPI
may be viewed as optimistic; as a result, the true underlying funding level may
be slightly lower than indicated in this update.
Implementation of Investment Strategy

Page 172
2.8 Following the decision made by Committee at the March 2021 meeting, officers
have confirmed with the Fund’s current Private Debt managers our intention to
top up our existing allocations by approximately 7%, or £125m, across the two
managers, Churchill and Permira; monies will be invested into the latest
iterations of their respective funds.
2.9 Subscription to the Churchill Middle Market Senior Loan Fund IV was completed
at the end of April 2021, with Permira to follow once subscription documents
become available. The Committee is reminded that funds for Private Debt
commitments are currently held in the M&G Multi Asset Credit mandate, to be
drawn down as and when capital calls are issued by the Private Debt
managers.
2.10 In line with the rebalancing requirements of the Fund officers will continue to
explore options to increase the currently underweight property allocation, which
was increased from 12% to 15% as part of the March 2020 revised investment
strategy, and update the Committee at the next meeting.
3
FINANCE
3.1 This report outlines the financial performance of the Pension Fund over the
quarter to 31 March 2021. There are no further financial implications in agreeing
to the recommendations in this report.
4
LEGAL AND DEMOCRACY
4.1 The Lambeth Pension Fund is run in accordance with the Local Government
Pension Scheme Regulations 2013 enacted along with other Regulations under
the Superannuation Act 1972 and the Public Service Pension Act 2013, and is
for the benefit of Council employees and outside organisations which have
entered into an agreement with Lambeth to provide pensions for their staff.
4.2 The Pension Committee must be mindful of their fiduciary duty to obtain the
best possible financial return on the investments it administers within the
investment strategy framework.
4.3 There are no additional comments from Democratic Services.
5
CONSULTATION AND CO-PRODUCTION
5.1 Not Applicable.
6
RISK MANAGEMENT
6.1 Investment decisions involve taking risks that Members of the Committee
should always bear in mind. Generally, risk is taken to mean the variability of
returns. Investments with greater risk must usually promise higher returns than
more ‘stable’ investments before investors will buy them. Members must
consider the risk/reward trade-off; generally, the higher the potential return

Page 173
expected the higher the associated risk. Members in their capacity as Trustees
bear that risk.
7
EQUALITIES IMPACT ASSESSMENT
7.1 None for the purposes of this report.
8
COMMUNITY SAFETY
8.1 None for the purposes of this report.
9

ORGANISATIONAL IMPLICATIONS

Environmental
9.1 None for the purposes of this report.
Health
9.2 None for the purposes of this report.
Corporate Parenting
9.3 None for the purposes of this report.
Staffing and accommodation
9.4 None for the purposes of this report.
Responsible Procurement
9.5 None for the purposes of this report.
10 TIMETABLE FOR IMPLEMENTATION
10.1 Not Applicable.

Page 174
AUDIT TRAIL
Consultation
Name/Position
Councillor Andrew
Wilson, Cabinet
Member
Fiona McDermott,
Strategic Director
Christina Thompson,
Director of Finance
Hamant Bharadia,
Assistant Director of
Finance
Andrew Pavlou,
Legal Services
Marianna Ritchie,
Democratic Services
Mercer (External)

Lambeth
directorate/
division or
partner

Date Sent

Date
Received

Finance and
Performance

22.06.2021

22.06.2021

16.06.2021

24.06.2021

16.06.2021

23.06.2021

16.06.2021

22.06.2021

16.06.2021

23.06.2021

16.06.2021

23.06.2021

22.06.2021

24.06.2021

Finance and
Investment
Finance and
Investment
Finance and
Investment
Legal and
Democratic
Services
Legal and
Democratic
Services
Consultant

REPORT HISTORY
Original discussion with Cabinet
Member
Report deadline
Date final report sent
Part II Exempt from
Disclosure/confidential
accompanying report?
Key decision report
Date first appeared on forward plan
Key decision reasons
Background information
Appendices

Comments
in para:

N/A
16 June 2021

No
No
N/A
N/A
N/A
 Appendix One – Lambeth Pension
Fund Investment Performance
Report March 2021

Page 175

Page 176

Page 177

Page 178

Page 179

Page 180

Page 181

Growth Assets - Index Performance
5.2

UK Equities

Sterling Return
Local Currency Return

3.8

Global Equity

4.0

Overseas Equities

6.2

6.6
4.7
5.6

US Equities
2.4

Europe (ex-UK) Equities

8.2

1.2

Japanese Equities

9.3
4.2

Asia Pacific (ex-Japan) Equities

7.4
1.9

Emerging Markets Equities

4.1

6.6
7.6

Global Small Cap Equities

Page 182

1.1
1.3

Hedge Funds
-1.0

High Yield Bonds

0.7
-7.5

Emerging Market Debt

-3.2
2.2

Property

12.5
13.5

Commodities
-20

-15

-10

-5

0

5

10

15

20

25

Total Return (%)
Source: Thomson Reuters Datastream.

Defensive Assets - Index Performance
-12.5

Over 15 Year Gilts

Sterling Return
-7.0

Over 5 Year Index-Linked Gilts

Local Currency Return

-5.6

Global Bonds

-2.8
-4.1

UK Credit

-4.6
-3.7

Global Credit
-7.0

Eurozone Government Bonds

-2.3
0.0

Cash
-20
Source: Thomson Reuters Datastream.

-15

-10

-5

0

5

Total Return (%)

10

15

20

25

Page 183

Page 184

Page 185

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 187
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Agenda Item 10

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 193
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 221
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 223
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

This page is intentionally left blank

